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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report contains forward-looking statements. The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) encourages companies to disclose
forward-looking information so that investors can better understand a company’s future prospects and make informed investment
decisions. This report and other written and oral statements that we make from time to time contain such forward-looking statements that
set out anticipated results based on management’s plans and assumptions regarding future events or performance. We have tried, wherever
possible, to identify such statements by using words such as “project”, “believe”, “anticipate”, “plan”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”,
“should”, “would”, “could”, or “may”, or other such words, verbs in the future tense and words and phrases that convey similar meaning
and uncertainty of future events or outcomes to identify these forward–looking statements. There are a number of important factors beyond
our control that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results anticipated by these forward–looking statements. While we
make these forward–looking statements based on various factors and using numerous assumptions, you have no assurance the factors and
assumptions will prove to be materially accurate when the events they anticipate actually occur in the future. Factors that could cause our
actual results of operations and financial condition to differ materially are discussed in greater detail under Item 1A, “Risk Factors” of this
annual report on Form 10-K.
The forward–looking statements are based upon our beliefs and assumptions using information available at the time we make these
statements. We caution you not to place undue reliance on our forward–looking statements as (i) these statements are neither predictions
nor guaranties of future events or circumstances, and (ii) the assumptions, beliefs, expectations, forecasts and projections about future
events may differ materially from actual results. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward–looking statement to reflect
developments occurring after the date of this report.
PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Company Overview
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. (“Company”, “InnerScope”) is a Nevada Corporation incorporated on June 15, 2012, with its
principal place of business in Roseville, California. The Company was originally named InnerScope Advertising Agency, Inc. and was
formed to provide advertising and marketing services to retail establishments in the hearing device industry. On August 25, 2017, the
Company changed its name to InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. to better reflect the Company’s current direction as a technology
driven company with highly scalable business to business (B2B) solutions and business to consumer (and B2C) solutions. Recently, the
Company began offering its own line of “Hearable”, and “Wearable” Personal Sound Amplifier Products (PSAPs) and revolutionary APPs
on the iOS and Android markets in the Direct-to-Consumer (DTC) markets. The Company plans on offering a B2B SaaS based Patient
Management System (PMS) software program, designed to improve operations and communication with patients and also plans to offer a
Buying Group experience for audiology practice, enabling owners to lower product costs and increase their margins. The Company plans
on using management’s unique and successful talents on acquiring and opening audiological brick and mortar clinics to be owned and
operated by the company.
We continue to monetize the experience of our founders in generating traffic through the front doors of hearing aid dispensing practices by
providing advertising and marketing and design services that are unique to the industry. We also provide consulting services including store
set-up, customer relations management and sales techniques, all to take advantage of the customers acquired in the course of the advertising
and marketing campaigns. We are dedicated to serving the retail hearing aid dispensing community and developing a program to contribute
to various hearing aid focused charities.
Corporate Overview
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. (“InnerScope”) is a Nevada Corporation incorporated on June 15, 2012, with its principal place of
business in Roseville, California. InnerScope was formed to provide advertising and marketing services to retail establishments in the
hearing device industry.
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On June 20, 2012, InnerScope acquired InnerScope Advertising Agency, LLC. Through this Acquisition and Plan of Share Exchange with
InnerScope Advertising Agency, LLC (“ILLC”), a commonly owned entity, InnerScope acquired a 100% interest of all membership
interests in ILLC. On November 1, 2013, InnerScope entered into an Acquisition and Plan of Share Exchange with Intela-Hear, LLC
(“Intela-Hear”), a commonly owned entity, whereby InnerScope acquired 100% of the outstanding membership interests of Intela-Hear.
InnerScope (herein after referring to InnerScope, ILLC and Intela-Hear or “the Company”) was formed to fill the gap in the
advertising/marketing side of the hearing device industry. Both ILLC and Intela-Hear were controlled and majority owned by our
Chairman.
On October 28, 2016, a majority of the Company’s shareholders, based on the recommendation of the Company’s Board of Directors (the
“BOD”), approved a forward split of the common stock, whereby an additional two shares of common stock were issued for every share of
common stock outstanding (the “Forward Split”). The Company filed Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation with the State of
Nevada on October 31, 2016. All share amounts for all periods presented have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the Forward Split.
InnerScope is an "emerging growth company" within the meaning of the federal securities laws. For as long as we are an emerging growth
company, we will not be required to comply with the requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not "emerging
growth companies" including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements
and the exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of
any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We intend to take advantage of these reporting exemptions until we are no longer
an emerging growth company.
InnerScope will continue to be an emerging growth company until the earliest to occur of (1) the last day of the fiscal year during which we
had total annual gross revenues of at least $1 billion (as indexed for inflation), (2) the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth
anniversary of the date of our initial public offering under this prospectus, (3) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year
period, issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt and (4) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filer,” as
defined under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (which we refer to as the “Exchange Act”).
InnerScope also qualifies as a “smaller reporting company” under Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which is
defined as a company with a public equity float of less than $75 million. To the extent that we remain a smaller reporting company at such
time as we are no longer an emerging growth company, we will still have reduced disclosure requirements for our public filings some of
which are similar to those of an emerging growth company including not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports
and proxy statements.
Our authorized capital stock currently consists of 225,000,000 shares of common stock, and 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Our
common stock is listed on The OTCQB under the symbol “INND.”
Our principal corporate headquarters are located at 2151 Professional Drive, Second Floor, Roseville, CA. 95661. Our telephone number is
(916) 218-4100. Our website address is www.innd.com. (The information contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not
a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.)
Customers
Moore Family Hearing Company (“MFHC”), a related party, controlled by our Chairman, pursuant to a Marketing Agreement (the “MFHC
Marketing Agreement”), accounted for approximately 48% and 83% of our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. On August 5, 2016, MFHC and the Company agreed to cancel the MFHC Marketing Agreement as a result of the sale by
MFHC of substantially all of their assets, including the hearing aid dispensaries to which we were providing services. Prior to the sale,
MFHC stores increased from 18 as of January 1, 2015 to 20 as August 5, 2016. We charged MHFC $3,200 per store per month effective
January 1, 2015. Beginning April 1, 2016, through August 5, 2016, the Company also provided direct print and mail advertising services to
MFHC. For the year ended December 31, 2016, one customer accounted for approximately 52% of our revenues.
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On August 5, 2016, the Company along with Mark Moore (“Mark”, the Company’s chairman), Matthew Moore (“Matthew”, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer) and Kim Moore (“Kim”, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer) entered into a Store Expansion
Consulting Agreement (the “Expansion Agreement”). Mark, Matthew and Kim are herein referred to collectively as the Moores. Pursuant
to the Expansion Agreement, the Company and the Moores were responsible for all physical plant and marketing details for new store
openings during the initial term of six-months. The Expansion Agreement was cancelled on January 6, 2017. The Company’s client has
decided to do their own marketing in-house and eliminate this out-sourced contract, and has decided to delay the opening of any new
stores. The Company has recognized a gain on the cancellation of the Expansion Agreement of $160,000 and $64,000 in other income for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Also on August 5, 2016, the Company and the Moores entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with the same
party as the store Expansion Agreement. Under the Consulting Agreement, including the Non-Compete provision covering a ten- mile
radius of any retail store, the Company and the Moores will provide unlimited licensing of the Intela-Hear brand name, exclusive access to
the Aware Aural Rehab Program within 10 miles of retail stores, exclusive territory of all services within 10 miles of retail stores and 40
hours per month of various consulting services. The Consulting Agreement continues until January 31, 2019, unless terminated for cause,
as defined in the Consulting Agreement. On May 2, 2017, the Company received a demand letter threatening litigation unless all monies
paid pursuant to the Consulting Agreement are returned. On May 26, 2017, a complaint (the “Complaint”) was filed against the Company
and the Moores, which includes a request for rescission of the Consulting Agreement. The Company believes the Complaint by the third
party is frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient cause for the Agreement to be terminated. The Company has filed a
countersuit against this third party for breach of contract so that it may recover the amounts owed under the Consulting Agreement,
however, effective January 1, 2017, the Company has not recognized revenue from the Consulting Agreement, and accordingly, $847,223
is classified as deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets presented herein.
The Company recognized $402,777 of revenue from the Consulting Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Effective August 5, 2016, the Company entered into a Marketing Agreement (the “Marketing Agreement”) with the same customer as
noted above. Pursuant to the Marketing Agreement, the Company was to provide marketing concepts and designs to promote its’ products
and use the Company’s advertising services for an initial six- month period. Pursuant to the Marketing Agreement, the Company was to
receive $50,000 per month. On January 6, 2017, the Marketing Agreement was cancelled. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the
Company recognized $193,548 of revenue from the Marketing Agreement.
We typically focus on the medium size hearing aid providers and practices (4 to 20 locations) to large hearing aid 20+ dispensing practice
locations where the advantages of strategic, cost-effective advertising are appreciated but practice ownership cannot afford or have the time
or expertise in-house to create and maintain these programs. The Company is currently marketing its’ services to potential new clients.
Revenue Generation
The Company has begun to implement an industry encompassing revenue strategy, including the current revenue model to other major
sectors of the global hearing industry. The Company plans include generating revenues from 7 separate revenue streams. Each stream will
generate revenue and be poised for growth, increasing the Company’s market penetration.
The 7 revenue streams are:
Patient Management System (PMS): a SaaS based software program which was created, designed and customized by and for audiologists,
specifically to fill a much-needed clinical gap solved in other multidiscipline software programs. It allows audiological retail clinics to better
manage their day-to-day operations through efficient clinical workflow, patient follow up, and logical organization of data. The PMS
software platform delivers a comprehensive business solution. Once the data is uploaded, the platform seamlessly integrates the needs of
the audiologist, management, patient and marketing. The software also provides a link between an electronic medical record (EMR) system
containing patient's medical history, all while seamlessly integrating the schedule and patient files of the clinics’ patient management
platform. EMR systems are not designed for Audiology and the records are often not integrated. The Company’s PMS software solves that
problem by linking the two platforms.
Buying Group: The Company will create an exclusive Buying Group experience that will permit hearing aid practices of all sizes to reduce
their wholesale costs by aggregating their orders with other practices to obtain a lower per unit cost.
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Direct-to-Consumer (DTC): The Company has begun the marketing and selling of products within the new emerging “Hearables” and
“Wearables” markets in “Personal Sound Amplification Products” (PSAP’s) and the Over-the-Counter (OTC) hearing aid market created
by the result of recently passed Congressional legislation, known as “The Hearing Aid Act of 2017”, which allows the purchase of hearing
aids and related products without seeking a medical professional. The Company will continue to market and sell these products, as well as
invest in “Hearable” technology and has and will continue to create its own brands and technology in the PSAP and OTC hearing aids in the
DTC markets.
APP Development: The Company plans on building apps for the iOS and Android markets that will be dedicated to serving the hearing
impairment population around the world. The APPs will be developed to help the audiology and hearing aid retail practices that have
joined the Buying Group or using the Company’s PMS software, as well as APPs for the hearing-impaired consumer to use for a better
hearing experience.
Advertising and Marketing: This division will be built on the Company’s current business and will include graphic artists, digital and print
marketing experts, and telemarketers. This division will assist all divisions in helping to market and deploy all products and services to
practices and consumers, as well as assisting Buying Group members with advertising and marketing for their own practices. Whether the
hearing aid dispensary is small, medium or large, we have previously shown an ability to increase the total revenue of our clients without
increasing cost. There are over 14,000 retail hearing aid dispensing practices in the United States. The company operates in a highly
competitive and growing industry. The proliferation of media channels, including the rapid development of interactive technologies and
mediums, along with their integration within all offerings has fragmented consumer audiences, especially the 55+ age sector which is our
clients’ primary targeted audience. These developments make it more complex for marketers to reach their target audiences in a costeffective way, causing them to turn to marketing service providers for a customized mix of advertising and marketing communications
services designed to make the best use of their total marketing expenditures. We provide a comprehensive range of services (including
consulting services), grouped into four fundamental disciplines: advertising/marketing, customer relationship management, public relations
and specialty communications.
Retail: The Company plans to open a chain of Audiological and Hearing Aid Clinics throughout the United States and eventually abroad.
Research and Development (“R&D”): Management has been researching and developing products and solutions for the Business to
Business (“BTB”) and Business to Consumer (“BTC”) hearing impaired markets for more than 3 decades. The R&D team which will be
comprised of world renowned scientists, business professionals and industry leaders, will develop and deploy products.
Consulting Agreements
On April 3, 2017, the Company entered into a one (1) year Financial Consulting Agreement (the “FC Agreement”), with a Consultant (the
“FC Consultant”). Pursuant to the FC Agreement, the FC Consultant will assist the Company in its’ public company filing requirements.
The Company has agreed to compensate the FC Consultant $4,500 per month and to issue 333,334 shares of restricted common stock of
the Company. The Company valued the shares at $0.30 per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement) and
will amortize the cost over the one-year life of the agreement, accordingly, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $75,000
for the year ended December 31, 2017, and there remains a $25,000 balance of deferred stock compensation (in the equity section of the
balance sheet herein) that will be amortized over the remaining term of the agreement. Under certain circumstances, the monthly fee can be
reduced to $3,500 after the first six months of the FC Agreement. The FC Consultant was previously providing services for the Company.
For the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, the Company expensed fees to the FC Consultant of $54,000 and $47,300 respectively.
On April 7, 2017, the Company entered into a Consulting and Representation Agreement (the “CR Agreement”), with a consultant (the
“CR Consultant”). Pursuant to the CR Agreement the CR Consultant will assist the Company to broaden its visibility to the investing
public. The Company has agreed to compensate the CR Consultant $700 per month and to issue 300,000 restricted shares of the
Company’s common stock to the CR Consultant. The Company valued the shares at $0.30 per share (the market price of the common stock
on the date of the agreement) and recorded stock compensation expense of $90,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017. The initial term
was for fifteen (15) days with an automatic extension for one hundred seventy (170) days.
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Effective December 1, 2017, the Company entered into a one-year Marketing Services Agreement (the “MSA”). Pursuant to the terms of
the MSA, the Company will receive consulting and advisory services regarding the implementation of marketing programs, including the
design and creation of commercial websites and commercialization of products through social media or other marketing methods. The
Company will pay consideration for the services of $5,000 cash and $5,000 of common stock each month. The Company will issue the
number of shares of common stock equal to a twenty-five percent (25%) discount to the lowest closing price of the common stock for the
five (5) last trading days of the common stock for that month. The Company recorded 102,564 shares of common stock to be issued as of
December 31, 2017 and recorded $8,974 of stock-based compensation expense (based on the market price on the date of the agreement) for
the year ended December 31, 2017. The shares were issued on February 27, 2018.
On December 1, 2017, the Company entered into a three-month Consulting and Marketing Agreement (the “CMA”) with a third party.
Pursuant to the terms of the CMA the Company will compensate the third-party $15,000 per month in consideration for consulting services
related to development of business plans, corporate strategy and marketing.
On December 8, 2017, the Company entered in a month to month contract regarding investor relation services with a third-party for $3,600
per month beginning January 1, 2018.
Competition
We have numerous direct, indirect and partial competitors, many of which have valuable industry relationships and access to greater
resources than we do. There is no assurance that we will be able to provide services that will be competitive in the marketplace, and even if
competitive, that we will be able to earn a profit.
The numerous types of direct or indirect competitors that exist in the market today include, but may not be limited to, sales and marketing
firms, marketing consultants, design services, ad agencies, media buying firms, Internet marketing firms, online social media firms and
others: Key competitors include Chicago Advertising & Marketing (CAM), a leader in direct marketing for the Hearing Aid Industry since
1995, Beeman Marketing, a marketing firm specializing in hearing care practitioners and audiologists since 2004, and Nutshell Marketing,
a high quality direct response marketing firm specialized in targeting 55 and older age group.
Our Buying Group plan faces competition from major retail distributors and/or networks, as there is presently rapid growth of
manufacturer-owned retail stores. Major consolidation has taken place in the US market by the hearing aid manufacturers in the last few
years, with almost every manufacturer participating in buying out other smaller manufacturers, resulting in many different brand labels
controlled under the same parent company umbrella. This consolidation has allowed the manufacturers to increase and control more of
their distribution by offering different levels in their product lines throughout their different brands. This has also allowed the
manufacturers to implement different price strategies for the same technology throughout their brands. This consolidation has not only
increased their market share but also increased their profit margins.
The Internet is fast becoming a major factor in the distribution of hearing aids in the U.S. Numerous small companies are on the Internet
advertising hearing aids for the cheapest price, and the largest hearing aid manufacturer, Sonova, which owns HearingPlanet, is most
prominent among these online offerings. However, Internet sales still require the participation of a local practitioner for testing and fitting.
This limits the widespread geographic appeal of Internet sales.
Technology and Development
We are equipped with three (3) G5 MacPros and one (1) iMac, which are up-to-date with the latest in software package from Adobe
Creative Cloud and other graphic design software. We also utilize a large format printer and a production color printer to handle all
proofing needs. All design and client information is held on a cloud computing network, which allows all designers and customer relation
associates to access all design and customer files from on-site and off-site, to improve productivity and decrease lag time. Files are
encrypted and password protected to make sure files are securely stored.
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Intellectual Property
We have copyrights on all materials that are created or modified by any designers, which includes all conceptual and final artwork. Over
the years, we have developed proprietary processes in how we manage our marketing programs; these processes are not protected by any
patents but are covered by non-disclosure agreements executed with clients, consultants and employees. In the future we may utilize the
services of contract developers, consultants, and/or third party personnel. Our success may depend in part upon our ability to preserve our
trade secrets, obtain and maintain patent protection for our technologies, products and processes, and operate without infringing upon the
proprietary right of other parties. However, we may rely on certain proprietary technologies, trade secrets, and know-how that are not
patentable. Although we may take action to protect our unpatented trade secrets and our proprietary information, in part, by the use of
confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants and certain of our contractors, we cannot guarantee that:
(a) these agreements will not be breached;
(b) we would have adequate remedies for any breach; or
(c) our proprietary trade secrets and know-how will not otherwise become known or be independently developed or discovered by
competitors.
We cannot guarantee that our actions will be sufficient to prevent imitation or duplication of either our products or services by others or
prevent others from claiming violations of their trade secrets and proprietary rights.
Government Regulation.
We are subject to a limited variety of local, state, and federal regulations. While we believe that our operations are in compliance with all
applicable regulations, there can be no assurances that from time to time unintentional violations of such regulations will not occur. We are
subject to federal, state and local laws and regulation applied to businesses, such as payroll taxes on the state and federal levels. Our current
business requires that we comply with state corporate filings, city or county business license and the necessary business liability insurance.
The requirements of these regulations are minimal and do not cause any undue burden.
Internet access and online services are not subject to direct regulation in the United States. Changes in the laws and regulations relating to
the telecommunications and media industry, however, could impact our business. For example, the Federal Communications Commission
could begin to regulate the Internet and online service industry, which could result in increased costs for us. The laws and regulations
applicable to the Internet and to our services are evolving and unclear and could damage our business. There are currently few laws or
regulations directly applicable to access to, or commerce on, the Internet. Due to the increasing popularity and use of the Internet, it is
possible that laws and regulations may be adopted, covering issues such as user privacy, defamation, pricing, taxation, content regulation,
quality of products and services, and intellectual property ownership and infringement. Such legislation could expose us to substantial
liability as well as dampen the growth in use of the Internet, decrease the acceptance of the Internet as a communications and commercial
medium, or require us to incur significant expenses in complying with any new regulations.
Employees
As of March 31, 2018, we have 5 employees.
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ITEM 1A – RISK FACTORS
You should carefully consider the risks described below, as well as other information provided to you in this document, including
information in the section of this document entitled “Forward-Looking Statements.” The risks and uncertainties described below are not
the only ones facing the Company. If any of the following risks actually occur, the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.
Investors should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as
of the date on which such statement is made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or
circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events or
circumstances. Our business, financial condition and/or results of operation may be materially adversely affected by the nature and impact
of these risks. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all of such factors. Further, we cannot assess
the impact of each such factor on our results of operations or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual
results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.
Risks Related to Our Business and Our Industry
For the year ended December 31, 2017, four customers accounted for approximately 75% of our business, one of which was a related
party.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, four customers accounted for approximately 75% of our business, of which one (18.3%), was a
related party. In August 2016, we entered into a 30- month Consulting Agreement with an unaffiliated party, as well as a Store Expansion
Agreement and Marketing Agreement. The Store Expansion Agreement and Marketing Agreement were subsequently cancelled, and the
Consulting Agreement is currently the subject of litigation. The unaffiliated party represented approximately 27.6% and 51.7%,
respectively, of our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016.
Our independent auditors have expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
We incurred a net loss of $1,913,332 for the year ending December 31, 2017 and had net income of $69,744 for the year ended December
31, 2016. Because of the current year operating loss, negative cash flows from operations and working capital deficit, in their report on our
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, our independent auditors included an explanatory paragraph regarding their
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We may continue to experience net operating losses in the foreseeable
future. Our ability to continue as a going concern is subject to our ability to generate a profit and/or obtain necessary funding from outside
sources, including obtaining additional funding from the sale of our securities, increasing sales or obtaining loan from various financial
institutions where possible. Our continued net operating losses increase the difficulty in meeting such goals and there can be no assurances
that such methods will prove successful.
A significant part of our business plan depends on marketing of our products and services, which may not be accepted in the
marketplace.
Our industry is extremely competitive and we have yet to attain any significant market share. In order to achieve successful operations we
will depend on effective marketing to gain a significantly larger market share. We do not engage independent sales representatives. We do
not employ a marketing agency. Employing a greater number of marketing personnel or a marketing agency would require greater financial
resources than we currently possess. Furthermore, our ability to attract independent sales representatives may be limited without greater
name recognition, an advertising campaign and market penetration. Unless we are able to address these limitations in our marketing
capabilities, you may expect our revenues to be limited and we may have difficulty staying in business. And under such circumstances, our
stock would not gain in value.
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We operate in and plan to expand into extremely competitive environments, which will make it difficult for us to achieve market
recognition and revenues.
We operate in an extremely competitive environment and the markets for our products and services are characterized by rapidly changing
technologies, frequent new product introductions, short product life cycles and evolving industry standards. Our success depends, in
substantial part, on the timely and successful introduction of our new products and services and thereafter upgrades of our products and
services to comply with emerging industry standards and to address competing technological and product developments by our competitors.
We may focus our resources on technologies that do not become widely accepted, are not timely released or are not commercially viable. In
addition, our products may contain defects or errors that are detected only after deployment. If our products are not competitive or do not
work properly, our business could suffer and our financial performance could be negatively impacted. You have no assurance that our new
products and services, which we intend to be a significant part or our business, will be accepted in the marketplace. If our products and
services do not achieve market acceptance, our revenues will be significantly below the level we anticipate.
We are an early-stage company with an unproven business model and our business may not become profitable.
We are an early-stage company with a limited operating history upon which you can evaluate our business. We have very limited historical
financial data. As a result of these factors, the revenue and income potential of our business is unproven, and we have only a limited
operating history upon which to base an evaluation of our current business and future prospects. Because of our limited operating history
and because the health care industry is rapidly evolving, we have limited insight into trends that may emerge and affect our business. We
may make errors in predicting and reacting to relevant business trends, which could harm our business. Early-stage companies in new and
rapidly evolving markets such as ours frequently encounter risks, uncertainties and difficulties, including those described in this section. We
may not be able to successfully address any or all of these risks. Failure to adequately address such risks could cause our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects to suffer.
Our revenues are highly susceptible to declines as a result of unfavorable economic conditions.
Economic downturns could affect the hearing aid industry more severely than other industries, and the recovery of the hearing aid industry
could lag behind that of the economy generally. In the past, some clients have responded to weakening economic conditions by reducing
their purchases of hearing aids in general and marketing budgets specifically, which include discretionary components that are easier to
reduce in the short term than other operating expenses. This pattern may recur in the future. A decrease in our revenue could pose a
challenge to our cash generation from operations.
Our financial condition could be adversely affected if our available liquidity is insufficient.
If our business is significantly adversely affected by further deterioration in the economic environment or otherwise, it could lead us to
seek new or additional sources of liquidity to fund our needs. Currently, for a non-investment-grade company such as ours, the capital
markets are challenging, with limited available financing and at higher costs than in recent years. There can be no guarantee that we would
be able to access any new sources of liquidity on commercially reasonable terms or at all.
We may lose or fail to attract and retain key employees and management personnel.
Our employees, including creative, research, media and account specialists, and their skills and relationships with clients, are among our
most important assets. An important aspect of our competitiveness is our ability to attract and retain key employees and management
personnel. Our ability to do so is influenced by a variety of factors, including the compensation we award, and could be adversely affected
by our financial or market performance.
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We currently have only a small management team and staff, which could limit our ability to effectively seize market opportunities and
grow our business.
Our operations are subject to all of the risks inherent in a growing business enterprise, including the likelihood of operating losses. As a
smaller company with a limited operating history, our success will depend, among other factors, upon how we manage the problems,
expenses, difficulties, complications and delays frequently encountered in connection with the growth of a new business, products and
channels of distribution, and current and future development. In addition, as a company with a limited operating history and only a small
management team and staff to grow the business and manage the risks inherent in a growing business enterprise, these factors could limit
our ability to effectively seize market opportunities and grow.
We are subject to regulations and other governmental scrutiny that could restrict our activities or negatively impact our revenues.
Our marketing sector is subject to government regulation and other governmental action, both domestic and foreign. There has been an
increasing tendency on the part of advertisers and consumer groups to challenge advertising through legislation, regulation, the courts or
otherwise. For example, challenges have been made in the courts on the grounds that the advertising is false and deceptive or injurious to
public welfare. Through the years, there has been a continuing expansion of specific rules, prohibitions, media restrictions, labeling
disclosures and warning requirements with respect to the advertising for certain products. Representatives within government bodies, both
domestic and foreign, continue to initiate proposals to ban the advertising of specific products and to impose taxes on or deny deductions for
advertising, which, if successful, may have an adverse effect on advertising expenditures and consequently our revenues.
We will be subject to the periodic reporting requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act that will require us to incur audit fees
and legal fees in connection with the preparation of such reports. These additional costs could reduce or eliminate our ability to earn a
profit.
We will be subject to the periodic reporting requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act that will require us to incur audit fees and
legal fees in connection with the preparation of such reports. These additional costs could reduce or eliminate our ability to earn a profit.
We will be required to file periodic reports with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder. In order to comply with these requirements, our independent registered public accounting firm will have to review our financial
statements on a quarterly basis and audit our financial statements on an annual basis. Moreover, our legal counsel will have to review and
assist in the preparation of such reports. The incurrence of such costs will obviously be an expense to our operations and thus have a
negative effect on our ability to meet our overhead requirements and earn a profit. We may be exposed to potential risks resulting from any
new requirements under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud,
our business and operating results could be harmed, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information, and the trading
price of our common stock, if a market ever develops, could drop significantly.
If we experience significant fluctuations in our rate of anticipated growth and fail to balance our expenses with our revenue forecasts,
our results could be harmed.
Due to our evolving business model, the unpredictability of new markets that we intend to enter, and the unpredictability of future general
economic and financial market conditions, we may not be able to accurately forecast our rate of growth. We plan our expense levels and
investment on estimates of future revenue and future anticipated rate of growth. As a result, we expect that our revenues, operating results
and cash flows may fluctuate significantly on a quarterly basis.
We may in the future be sued by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary rights.
The software and Internet industries are characterized by the existence of a large number of patents, trademarks and copyrights and by
frequent litigation based on allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights. We may receive in the future
communications from third parties claiming that we have infringed the intellectual property rights of others. We may in the future be sued
by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary rights. Our technologies may not be able to withstand any third-party claims
against their use. The outcome of any litigation is inherently uncertain. Any intellectual property claims, whether with or without merit,
could be time-consuming and expensive to resolve, could divert management attention from executing our business plan and could require
us to change our technology, change our business practices and/or pay monetary damages or enter into short- or long-term royalty or
licensing agreements which may not be available in the future at the same terms or at all.
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We rely on third-party computer hardware and software that may be difficult to replace or which could cause errors or failures of our
service.
We will rely on computer hardware purchased or leased and software licensed from third parties in order to offer our proposed service,
including database software from Oracle Corporation and an open source content management system. This hardware and software may not
continue to be available at reasonable prices or on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Any loss of the right to use any of this
hardware or software could significantly increase our expenses and otherwise result in delays in the provisioning of our service until
equivalent technology is either developed by us, or, if available, is identified, obtained and integrated, which could harm our business. Any
errors or defects in third-party hardware or software could result in errors or a failure of our service which could harm our business.
Our business could be adversely affected if our customers are not satisfied with their purchase through us or the implementation and
customization services provided by third party Service Providers.
Our business will depend on our ability to satisfy our potential customers. If a customer is not satisfied with the quality of the product or
service, the customer's dissatisfaction could damage our ability to obtain additional or future orders from that customer. In addition,
potential negative publicity related to our customer relationships, regardless of its accuracy, may further damage our business by affecting
our ability to compete for new business with prospective customers.
We are dependent on our CEO and outsourced consultants, and the loss of one or more of these individuals could harm our business
and prevent us from implementing our business plan in a timely manner.
Our success depends substantially upon the continued services of our executive officers and other key members of management,
particularly our CEO, Matthew Moore. We do not maintain key person life insurance policies on our CEO. The loss of the services of our
CEO could seriously harm our business.
Our CEO is also an Officer or a managing member of Moore Family Hearing Company, Moore Holdings, LLC and Value Hearing, LLC.
Our future growth may be dependent, in part, on our distribution arrangements directly with retailers and regional retail accounts. If
we are unable to establish and maintain these arrangements, our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely
affected.
Our future growth may be dependent in part on our distribution arrangements directly with retailers and regional retail accounts. If we are
unable to establish and maintain these arrangements, our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. We
currently have distribution arrangements with a few regional retail accounts to distribute our products directly through their venues;
however, there are several risks associated with this distribution strategy. First, we do not have long-term agreements in place with any of
these accounts and thus, the arrangements are terminable at any time by these retailers or us. Accordingly, we may not be able to maintain
continuing relationships with any of these national accounts. A decision by any of these retailers, or any other large retail accounts we may
obtain, to decrease the amount purchased from us or to cease carrying our products could have a material adverse effect on our reputation,
financial condition or results of operations. In addition, we may not be able to establish additional distribution arrangements with other
national retailers. In addition, our dependence on large regional retail chains may result in pressure on us to reduce our pricing to them or
seek significant product discounts. In general, our margins are lower on our sales to these customers because of these pressures. Any
increase in our costs for these retailers to carry our product, reduction in price, or demand for product discounts could have a material
adverse effect on our profit margin.
Our ability to grow our business may depend on developing a positive brand reputation and member loyalty.
Establishing and maintaining a positive brand reputation and nurturing member loyalty is critical to attracting new customers. We expect to
expend reasonable but limited resources to develop, maintain and enhance our brand in the near future. In addition, nurturing customer
loyalty will depend on our ability to provide a high-quality, user experience. If we are unable to maintain and enhance our brand reputation
and customer satisfaction, our ability to attract new customers will be harmed.
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Investors may lose their entire investment if we fail to reach profitability.
We commenced business in 2006. We have no demonstrable operations record from which you can evaluate the business and its prospects.
Our prospects must be considered in light of the risks, uncertainties, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by companies in their
early stages of development. We cannot guarantee that we will be successful in accomplishing our objectives. To date, we have incurred
losses and will continue to do so in the foreseeable future. Investors should therefore be aware that they may lose their entire investment in
the securities.
In order to execute our business plan, we will need to raise additional capital. If we are unable to raise additional capital, we may not be
able to achieve our business plan and you could lose your investment.
We may need to raise additional funds through public or private debt or equity financings as well as obtain credit from vendors to be able to
fully execute our business plan. Any additional capital raised through the sale of equity may dilute your ownership interest. We may not be
able to raise additional funds on favorable terms, or at all. If we are unable to obtain additional funds or credit from our vendors, we will be
unable to execute our business plan and you could lose your investment. Management estimates we will need approximately $500,000 to
fully implement, execute, market and launch our plans of multiple revenue streams.
We have limited protection of our intellectual property.
Our business prospects do not rely upon company-owned patented technologies. Our business prospects will depend largely on our ability
to service and support customers and deliver services and solutions. There can be no assurance that we will be able to adequately protect
our trade secrets. In the event competitors independently develop or otherwise obtain access to our know-how, concepts or trade secrets,
we may be adversely affected.
Litigation or legal proceedings could expose us to significant liabilities and damage our reputation.
Litigation or legal proceedings could expose us to significant liabilities and damage our reputation.
We may become party to litigation claims and legal proceedings. Litigation involves significant risks, uncertainties and costs, including
distracting of management’s attention away from our current business operations. We evaluate litigation claims and legal proceedings to
assess the likelihood of unfavorable outcomes and to estimate, if possible, the amount of potential losses. Based on these assessments and
estimates, we establish reserves and/or disclose the relevant litigation claims or legal proceedings, as appropriate. These assessments and
estimates are based on the information available to management at the time and involve a significant amount of management judgment. We
caution you that actual outcomes or losses may differ materially from those envisioned by our current assessments and estimates. Our
policies and procedures require strict compliance by our employees and agents with all United States and local laws and regulations
applicable to our business operations, including those prohibiting improper payments to government officials. Nonetheless, there can be no
assurance that our policies and procedures will always ensure full compliance by our employees and agents with all applicable legal
requirements. Improper conduct by our employees or agents could damage our reputation in the United States and internationally or lead to
litigation or legal proceedings that could result in civil or criminal penalties, including substantial monetary fines, as well as disgorgement
of profits.
Our business model is subject to change
We may elect from time to time to make pricing, service, hiring and marketing decisions that could increase our expenses, affect our
revenues and impact our financial results. Moreover, because our expense levels in any given quarter are based, in part, on management’s
expectations regarding future revenues, if revenues are below expectations, the effect on our operating results may be magnified by our
inability to adjust spending in a timely manner to compensate for a shortfall in revenues. The extent to which expenses are not subsequently
followed by increased revenues would harm our operating results and could seriously impair our business.
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Our Directors and Officers possess the majority of our voting power, and through this ownership, control our Company and our
corporate actions.
Our current Officers and Directors, as a group hold approximately 92% of the voting power of our outstanding shares. As a result of this
substantial ownership in our common stock, our officers and directors have a controlling influence in determining the outcome of any
corporate transaction or other matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including mergers, consolidations and the sale of all or
substantially all of our assets, election of directors, and other significant corporate actions. Our officers and/or directors may also have the
power to prevent or cause a change in control. In addition, without their consent, we could be prevented from entering into transactions that
could be beneficial to us. For additional details concerning voting power please refer to the section below entitled “Description of
Securities.”
Our management team has limited experience managing a public company, and regulatory compliance may divert its attention from the
day-to-day management of our business.
Our management team has limited experience managing a public company, and regulatory compliance may divert its attention from the
day-to-day management of our business. Some of the individuals who now constitute our management team have limited experience
managing a publicly traded company and limited experience complying with the increasingly complex laws pertaining to public companies.
Our management team may not successfully or efficiently manage our continued transition to a public company that will be subject to
significant regulatory oversight and reporting obligations under the federal securities laws. In particular, these new obligations will require
substantial attention from our senior management and could divert their attention away from the day-to-day management of our business,
which could materially and adversely impact our business operations
We will incur increased costs as a result of being a public company. These costs will adversely impact our results of operations.
As a public company. We will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that a private company does not incur. We estimate
these costs to be approximately $150,000 annually and include the costs associated with having our financial statements prepared, reviewed
quarterly, audited annually and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) via EDGAR (the Electronic Data Gathering,
Analysis, and Retrieval system) and XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language) costs. In addition, we have costs associated with our
transfer agent. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (SOX) and related rules resulted in an increase in costs of maintaining compliance with the
public reporting requirements, as well as making it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain directors' and officers' liability
insurance.
If we do not effectively manage changes in our business, these changes could place a significant strain on our management and
operations.
To manage our growth successfully, we must continue to improve and expand our systems and infrastructure in a timely and efficient
manner. Our controls, systems, procedures and resources may not be adequate to support a changing and growing company. If our
management fails to respond effectively to changes and growth in our business, including acquisitions, this could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.
As we attempt to expand our customer base through our marketing efforts, our new customers may use our products differently than
our existing customers and, accordingly, our business model may not be as efficient at attracting and retaining new customers.
As we attempt to expand our customer base, our new customers may use our products differently than our existing customers. For example,
a greater percentage of new customers may take advantage of the free trial period we offer but ultimately choose to use another form of
marketing to reach their constituents. If our new customers are not as loyal as our existing customers, our attrition rate will increase and our
customer referrals will decrease, which would have an adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, as we seek to expand our
customer base, we expect to increase our spending on sales and marketing activities in order to attract new customers, which will increase
our operating costs. There can be no assurance that these sales and marketing efforts will be successful
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U.S. federal legislation entitled Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 imposes certain
obligations on the senders of commercial emails, which could minimize the effectiveness of our email marketing solution, and
establishes financial penalties for non-compliance, which could increase the costs of our business.
U.S. federal legislation entitled Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 imposes certain
obligations on the senders of commercial emails, which could minimize the effectiveness of our email marketing solution, and establishes
financial penalties for non-compliance, which could increase the costs of our business. In December 2003, Congress enacted Controlling
the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003, or the CAN-SPAM Act, which establishes certain requirements for
commercial email messages and specifies penalties for the transmission of commercial email messages that are intended to deceive the
recipient as to source or content. The CAN-SPAM Act, among other things, obligates the sender of commercial emails to provide recipients
with the ability to opt out of receiving future emails from the sender. In addition, some states have passed laws regulating commercial
email practices that are significantly more punitive and difficult to comply with than the CAN-SPAM Act, particularly Utah and Michigan,
which have enacted do-not-email registries listing minors who do not wish to receive unsolicited commercial email that markets certain
covered content, such as adult or other harmful products. Some portions of these state laws may not be preempted by the CAN-SPAM Act.
The ability of our customers’ constituents to opt out of receiving commercial emails may minimize the effectiveness of our email
marketing solution. Moreover, non-compliance with the CAN-SPAM Act carries significant financial penalties. If we were found to be in
violation of the CAN-SPAM Act, applicable state laws not preempted by the CAN-SPAM Act, or foreign laws regulating the distribution
of commercial email, whether as a result of violations by our customers or if we were deemed to be directly subject to and in violation of
these requirements, we could be required to pay penalties, which would adversely affect our financial performance and significantly harm
our business. We also may be required to change one or more aspects of the way we operate our business, which could impair our ability to
attract and retain customers or increase our operating costs.
Government regulation of the Internet, e-commerce and m-commerce is evolving, and unfavorable changes or failure by us to comply
with these laws and regulations could substantially harm our business and results of operations.
Government regulation of the Internet, e-commerce and m-commerce is evolving, and unfavorable changes or failure by us to comply with
these laws and regulations could substantially harm our business and results of operations. We are subject to general business regulations
and laws as well as regulations and laws specifically governing the Internet, e-commerce and m-commerce in a number of jurisdictions
around the world. Existing and future regulations and laws could impede the growth of the Internet, e-commerce, m-commerce or other
online services. These regulations and laws may involve taxation, tariffs, privacy and data security, anti-spam, data protection, content,
copyrights, distribution, electronic contracts, electronic communications and consumer protection. It is not clear how existing laws and
regulations governing issues such as property ownership, sales and other taxes, libel and personal privacy apply to the Internet as the vast
majority of these laws and regulations were adopted prior to the advent of the Internet and do not contemplate or address the unique issues
raised by the Internet, e-commerce or m-commerce. It is possible that general business regulations and laws, or those specifically governing
the Internet, e-commerce or m-commerce may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent from one jurisdiction to another
and may conflict with other rules or our practices. We cannot assure you that our practices have complied, comply or will comply fully
with all such laws and regulations. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with any of these laws or regulations could result in
damage to our reputation, a loss in business, and proceedings or actions against us by governmental entities or others. Any such proceeding
or action could hurt our reputation, force us to spend significant resources in defense of these proceedings, distract our management,
increase our costs of doing business, and cause consumers and retailers to decrease their use of our marketplace, and may result in the
imposition of monetary liability. We may also be contractually liable to indemnify and hold harmless third parties from the costs or
consequences of noncompliance with any such laws or regulations. In addition, it is possible that governments of one or more countries
may seek to censor content available on our websites and mobile applications or may even attempt to completely block access to our
marketplace. Adverse legal or regulatory developments could substantially harm our business. In particular, in the event that we are
restricted, in whole or in part, from operating in one or more countries, our ability to retain or increase our customer base may be adversely
affected and we may not be able to maintain or grow our net revenues as anticipated
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Our business practices with respect to data and consumer protection could give rise to liabilities or reputational harm as a result of
governmental regulation, legal requirements or industry standards relating to consumer privacy, data protection and consumer
protection.
Our business practices with respect to data and consumer protection could give rise to liabilities or reputational harm as a result of
governmental regulation, legal requirements or industry standards relating to consumer privacy, data protection and consumer protection.
Federal, state and international laws and regulations govern the collection, use, retention, sharing and security of data that we collect. We
strive to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, self-regulatory requirements and legal obligations relating to privacy, data protection
and consumer protection, including those relating to the use of data for marketing purposes. It is possible, however, that these requirements
may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent from one jurisdiction to another and may conflict with other rules or our
practices. We cannot assure you that our practices have complied, comply, or will comply fully with all such laws, regulations,
requirements and obligations. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with federal, state or international laws or regulations,
including laws and regulations regulating privacy, data security, marketing communications or consumer protection, or other policies, selfregulatory requirements or legal obligations could result in harm to our reputation, a loss in business, and proceedings or actions against us
by governmental entities, consumers, retailers or others. We may also be contractually liable to indemnify and hold harmless performance
marketing networks or other third parties from the costs or consequences of noncompliance with any laws, regulations, self-regulatory
requirements or other legal obligations relating to privacy, data protection and consumer protection or any inadvertent or unauthorized use
or disclosure of data that we store or handle as part of operating our business. Any such proceeding or action, and any related
indemnification obligation, could hurt our reputation, force us to incur significant expenses in defense of these proceedings, distract our
management, increase our costs of doing business and cause consumers and retailers to decrease their use of our marketplace, and may
result in the imposition of monetary liability.
The Company may lose its status as an Emerging Growth Company.
Under Section 2(a)(19) of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 3(a)(80) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), an Emerging Growth Company ("EGC") will lose its EGC status upon the earliest of:
the last day of the first fiscal year in which the company's annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion;
the date on which the company is deemed to be a large accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act);
the date on which the company has, during the previous three-year period, issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt; and
the last day of the fiscal year in which the fifth anniversary of the company's first sale of equity securities pursuant to an effective
registration statement occurs.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock
We have raised capital through the use of convertible debt instruments that causes substantial dilution to our stockholders.
Because of the size of our Company and its status as a “penny stock” as well as the current economy and difficulties of companies our size
experience in finding adequate sources of funding, we have been forced to raise capital through the issuance of convertible notes and other
debt instruments. These debt instruments carry favorable conversion terms to their holders of up to 35% discounts to the market price of
our common stock on conversion and in some cases provide for the immediate sale of our securities into the open market, which will cause
dilution to our stockholders. As of December 31, 2017, we had approximately $260,339 in convertible debt and potential convertible debt
outstanding. This convertible debt balance as well as additional convertible debt we incur in the future will cause substantial dilution to our
stockholders.
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Because we are quoted on the OTCQB instead of an exchange or national quotation system, our investors may have a tougher time
selling their stock or experience negative volatility on the market price of our common stock.
Our common stock is quoted on the OTCQB. The OTCQB is often highly illiquid, in part because it does not have a national quotation
system by which potential investors can follow the market price of shares except through information received and generated by a limited
number of broker-dealers that make markets in particular stocks. There is a greater chance of volatility for securities that are quoted on the
OTCQB as compared to a national exchange or quotation system. This volatility may be caused by a variety of factors, including the lack of
readily available price quotations, the absence of consistent administrative supervision of bid and ask quotations, lower trading volume, and
market conditions. Investors in our common stock may experience high fluctuations in the market price and volume of the trading market
for our securities. These fluctuations, when they occur, have a negative effect on the market price for our securities. Accordingly, our
stockholders may not be able to realize a fair price from their shares when they determine to sell them or may have to hold them for a
substantial period of time until the market for our common stock improves.
Our stock is listed on the OTCQB, if we fail to remain current on our reporting requirements, we could be removed from the OTCQB
which would limit the ability of broker-dealers to sell our securities in the secondary market.
Companies trading on the OTCQB, must be reporting issuers under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
must be current in their reports under Section 13, in order to maintain price quotation privileges on the OTCQB. As a result, the market
liquidity for our securities could be severely adversely affected by limiting the ability of broker-dealers to sell our securities and the ability
of stockholders to sell their securities in the secondary market. In addition, we may be unable to get relisted on the OTCQB, which may
have an adverse material effect on the Company.
The Possible Sale of Shares of Common Stock by Our Selling Security Holders May Have a Significant Adverse Effect on the Market
Price of Our Common Stock.
We have registered 906,000 shares of common stock with the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission. The security holders may sell some
or all of their shares at anytime. In the event that the security holders sell some or all of their shares, the price of our common stock could
decrease significantly.
Our ability to raise additional capital through the sale of our stock in a private placement may be harmed by these competing re-sales of our
common stock by the selling security holders. Potential investors may not be interested in purchasing shares of our common stock if the
selling security holders are selling their shares of common stock. The selling of stock by the security holders could be interpreted by
potential investors as a lack of confidence in us and our ability to develop a stable market for our stock. The price of our common stock
could fall if the selling security holders sell substantial amounts of our common stock. These sales may make it more difficult for us to sell
equity or equity-related securities in the future at a time and price that we deem appropriate because the selling security holders may offer
to sell their shares of common stock to potential investors for less than we do.
We are an ‘Emerging Growth Company” and we intend to take advantage of reduced disclosure and governance requirements
applicable to Emerging Growth Companies, which could result in our stock being less attractive to investors.
We are an "emerging growth company," as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, which we refer to as the JOBS Act,
and we intend to take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies
that are not emerging growth companies including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and
proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and
shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We cannot predict if investors will find our common
stock less attractive because we will rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there
may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile. We expect to take advantage of these
reporting exemptions until we are no longer an emerging growth company, which in certain circumstances could be for up to five years.
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The Company’s election to take advantage of the jobs act’s extended accounting transition period may not make its financial statements
easily comparable to other companies.
Pursuant to the JOBS Act of 2012, as an emerging growth company the Company can elect to take advantage of the extended transition
period for any new or revised accounting standards that may be issued by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") or
the Securities & Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The Company has elected take advantage of such extended transition period which means
that when a standard is issued or revised and it has different application dates for public or private companies, the Company, as an
emerging growth company, can adopt the standard on the private company timeframe. This may make comparison of the Company's
financial statements with any other public company which is not either an emerging growth company nor an emerging growth company
which has opted out of using the extended transition period difficult or impossible as possible different or revised standards may be used.
The Jobs Act will also allow the Company to postpone the date by which it must comply with certain laws and regulations intended to
protect investors and reduce the amount of information provided in reports filed with the
The JOBS Act is intended to reduce the regulatory burden on “emerging growth companies. The Company meets the definition of an
emerging growth company and so long as it qualifies as an “emerging growth company,” it will, among other things:
be exempt from the provisions of Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requiring that its independent registered public
accounting firm provide an attestation report on the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting.
be exempt from the “say on pay” provisions (requiring a non-binding shareholder vote to approve compensation of certain
executive officers) and the “say on golden parachute” provisions (requiring a non-binding shareholder vote to approve golden
parachute arrangements for certain executive officers in connection with mergers and certain other business combinations) of the
Dodd-Frank Act and certain disclosure requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act relating to compensation of its chief executive officer;
be permitted to omit the detailed compensation discussion and analysis from proxy statements and reports filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and instead provide a reduced level of disclosure concerning executive compensation; and
be exempt from any rules that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board requiring mandatory audit firm
rotation or a supplement to the auditor’s report on the financial statements
The Company currently intends to take advantage of some or all of the reduced regulatory and reporting requirements that will be available
to it so long as it qualifies as an “emerging growth company”.
As long as the Company qualifies as an Emerging Growth Company, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm will
not be required to attest to the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Because the Company has elected to take advantage of the extended time periods for compliance with new or revised accounting standards
provided for under Section 102(b) of the JOBS Act, among other things, this means that the Company's independent registered public
accounting firm will not be required to provide an attestation report on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting so long as it qualifies as an emerging growth company, which may increase the risk that weaknesses or deficiencies in the internal
control over financial reporting go undetected. Likewise, so long as it qualifies as an emerging growth company, the Company may elect
not to provide certain information, including certain financial information and certain information regarding compensation of executive
officers that would otherwise have been required to provide in filings with the SEC, which may make it more difficult for investors and
securities analysts to evaluate the Company. As a result, investor confidence in the Company and the market price of its common stock
may be adversely affected.
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The Penny Stock Rules Could Restrict the Ability of Broker-Dealers to Sell Our Shares.
The SEC has adopted penny stock regulations which apply to securities traded over-the-counter. These regulations generally define penny
stock to be any equity security that has a market price of less than $5.00 per share or an equity security of an issuer with net tangible assets
of less than $5,000,000 as indicated in audited financial statements, if the corporation has been in continuous operations for less than three
years. Subject to certain limited exceptions, the rules for any transaction involving a penny stock require the delivery, prior to the
transaction, of a risk disclosure document prepared by the SEC that contains certain information describing the nature and level of risk
associated with investments in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must disclose the commissions payable to both the brokerdealer and the registered representative and current quotations for the securities. Monthly account statements must be sent by the brokerdealer disclosing the estimated market value of each penny stock held in the account or indicating that the estimated market value cannot be
determined because of the unavailability of firm quotes. In addition, the rules impose additional sales practice requirements on brokerdealers who sell such securities to persons other than established customers and institutional accredited investors (generally institutions
with assets in excess of $5,000,000). These practices require that, prior to the purchase, the broker-dealer determined that transactions in
penny stocks were suitable for the purchaser and obtained the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction. If a market for our common
stock does develop and our shares trade below $5.00 per share, it will be a penny stock. Consequently, the penny stock rules will likely
restrict the ability of broker-dealers to sell our shares and will likely affect the ability of purchasers in the offering to sell our shares in the
secondary market. Trading in our common stock will be subject to the “penny stock” rules. Due to the thinly traded market of these shares
investors are at a much higher risk to lose all or part of their investment. Not only are these shares thinly traded but they are subject to
higher fluctuations in price due to the instability of earnings of these smaller companies. As a result of the lack of a highly traded market in
our shares investors are at risk of a lack of brokers who may be willing to trade in these shares.
We do not expect to pay dividends in the future; any return on investment may be limited to the value of our common stock.
We do not currently anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The payment of dividends on our common stock will
depend on earnings, financial condition and other business and economic factors affecting it at such time as the board of directors may
consider relevant. Our current intention is to apply net earnings, if any, in the foreseeable future to increasing our capital base and
development and marketing efforts. There can be no assurance that the Company will ever have sufficient earnings to declare and pay
dividends to the holders of our common stock, and in any event, a decision to declare and pay dividends is at the sole discretion of our
board of directors. If we do not pay dividends, our common stock may be less valuable because a return on your investment will only occur
if its stock price appreciates.
The market price of our common stock may be volatile and may decline in value.
The market price of our common stock has been and will likely continue to be highly volatile, as is the stock market in general, and the
market for OTC Marketplace quoted stocks, in particular. Some of the factors that may materially affect the market price of our common
stock are beyond our control, such as changes in financial estimates by industry and securities analysts, conditions or trends in the industry
in which we operate or sales of our common stock. These factors may materially adversely affect the market price of our common stock,
regardless of our performance. In addition, the public stock markets have experienced extreme price and trading volume volatility. This
volatility has significantly affected the market prices of securities of many companies for reasons frequently unrelated to the operating
performance of the specific companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
Our stockholders may experience significant dilution if future equity offerings are used to fund operations or acquire complementary
businesses.
If our future operations or acquisitions are financed through the issuance of equity securities, our stockholders could experience significant
dilution. In addition, securities issued in connection with future financing activities or potential acquisitions may have rights and
preferences senior to the rights and preferences of our common stock.
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Our current management can exert significant influence over us and make decisions that are not in the best interests of all
stockholders.
Our executive officers and directors beneficially own as a group approximately 92% of our outstanding shares of common stock. As a
result, these stockholders will be able to assert significant influence over all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election
and removal of directors and any change in control. In particular, this concentration of ownership of our outstanding shares of common
stock could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control, or otherwise discouraging or preventing a potential acquirer from
attempting to obtain control. This, in turn, could have a negative effect on the market price of our common stock. It could also prevent our
stockholders from realizing a premium over the market prices for their shares of common stock. Moreover, the interests of the owners of
this concentration of ownership may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of other stockholders and, accordingly, could
cause us to enter into transactions or agreements that we would not otherwise consider.
We could issue “blank check” preferred stock without stockholder approval with the effect of diluting then current stockholder interests
and impairing their voting rights, and provisions in our charter documents and under Nevada law could discourage a takeover that
stockholders may consider favorable.
Our certificate of incorporation provides for the authorization to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock with
designations, rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by our board of directors. Our board of directors is
empowered, without stockholder approval, to issue one or more series of preferred stock with dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting or
other rights which could dilute the interest of, or impair the voting power of, our common stockholders. The issuance of a series of
preferred stock could be used as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control. For example, it would be possible
for our board of directors to issue preferred stock with voting or other rights or preferences that could impede the success of any attempt to
change control of our company. In addition, advanced notice is required prior to stockholder proposals.
Investors who purchase shares of our common stock should be aware of the possibility of a total loss of their investment.
An investment in our common stock involves a substantial degree of risk. Before making an investment decision, you should give careful
consideration to the risk factors described in this section in addition to the other information contained in this prospectus. The risk factors
described herein, however, may not reflect all of the risks associated with our business or an investment in our common stock. You should
invest in our Company only if you can afford to lose your entire investment.
The Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, or FINRA, sales practice requirements may also limit a stockholder's ability to buy and
sell our stock.
In addition to the Penny Stock Rules described above, FINRA has adopted rules that require that in recommending an investment to a
customer, a broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for that customer. Prior to
recommending speculative low-priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable efforts to obtain
information about the customer's financial status, tax status, investment objectives and other information. Under interpretations of these
rules, FINRA believes that there is a high probability that speculative low priced securities will not be suitable for at least some customers.
FINRA requirements make it more difficult for broker-dealers to recommend that their customers buy our common stock, which may limit
your ability to buy and sell our stock and have an adverse effect on the market for our shares.
A significant amount of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock are restricted securities and may not be freely resold to the
public. When the restriction on any or all of these shares is lifted, and the shares are sold in the open market, the price of our common
stock could be adversely affected.
A significant amount of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock are "restricted securities" as defined under Rule 144
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and may only be sold pursuant to an effective registration statement or an
exemption from registration, if available. Although Rule 144 may not be immediately available to permit resale of such shares, once
available, and given the number of shares that would no longer be restricted, sales of shares by our shareholders, whether pursuant to Rule
144 or otherwise, could have an immediate negative effect upon the price of our common stock.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, four customers accounted for approximately 75% of our business, one of which was a related
party.
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For the year ended December 31, 2017, four customers accounted for approximately 75% of our business, of which one (18.3%), was a
related party. In August 2016, we entered into a 30- month Consulting Agreement with an unaffiliated party, as well as a Store Expansion
Agreement and Marketing Agreement. The Store Expansion Agreement and Marketing Agreement were subsequently cancelled. The
unaffiliated party represented approximately 27.6% and 51.7%, respectively, of our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2017, and
2016.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable to a smaller reporting company.
ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
Leased Office Space
On April 1, 2013, the Company entered into a five- year sublease agreement with MFHC to sublease approximately 729 square feet of
office space for $1,500 per month. The monthly rent reduced the amounts owed to the Company from MFHC for the marketing services
provided to MFHC.
On February 1, 2014, the Company entered into a two- year sublease agreement for approximately 2,119 square feet of office space in
Roseville, Ca, for $3,000 per month.
Effective February 1, 2016, the Company entered into a one- year sublease for office space from MFHC for a monthly cost of $4,026. The
parties terminated the sublease effective April 30, 2016.
On February 1, 2017, the Company and MFHC terminated the above leases and the Company agreed to a month to month lease directly
with the landlord for $8,436 per month.
On June 14, 2017, the company entered into a five-year lease with LLC1 for approximately 6,944 square feet and a monthly rent of
$12,000.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
On May 26, 2017, Helix Hearing Care (California), Inc. a California corporation (“Helix”), filed a complaint (the “Complaint”) against
InnerScope and the Moores, in the Circuit Court of the 11th Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida, that includes a
rescission of the Consulting Agreement, on the basis that an injunction against certain Officers and Directors renders the Consulting
Agreement impossible to perform. InnerScope was not named as an enjoined party in such previous litigation, and the services
contemplated under the Consulting Agreement are not within the scope of the injunction, thus InnerScope believes the accusation by the
third party is frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient cause for the Agreement to be terminated.
InnerScope and the Moores filed their Answer and Affirmative Defenses to the Complaint on June 27, 2017. On the same date,
InnerScope, the Moores, and MFHC filed a counterclaim. On February 27, 2018, the Counterclaim was amended to include four claims for
breach of contract, one claim for anticipatory breach of contract, one claim for negligent misrepresentation, and one claim for account
stated. Helix’s response to the Amended Counterclaim is due on April 5, 2018. The parties have also sent each other written discovery
requests. The written responses to Helix’s discovery is due on April 25, 2018.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
The Company’s common stock began trading on February 14, 2017, on the over-the-counter market, and quoted on the OTCQB tier of the
OTC Markets Group Inc. under the symbol “INND.”
(a) Market Information
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated the high and low bid quotations for our common stock. These quotations represent
inter-dealer quotations, without adjustment for retail markup, markdown, or commission and may not represent actual transactions.
Period
Fiscal Year 2017
First Quarter (January 1, 2017 – March 31, 2017)
Second Quarter (April 1, 2017 – June 30, 2017)
Third Quarter (July 1, 2017 – September 30, 2017)
Fourth Quarter (October 1, 2017 – December 31,2017)

High

Low

$
$
$
$

0.30
0.55
0.39
0.40

$
$
$
$

0.25
0.30
0.30
0.0535

Fiscal Year 2016
First Quarter (January 1, 2016 – March 31, 2016)
Second Quarter (April 1, 2016 – June 30, 2016)
Third Quarter (July 1, 2016 - September 30, 2016)
Fourth Quarter (October 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016)

$
$
$
$

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$
$
$
$

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

(b) Holders
The number of record holders of our common stock as of April 13, 2018 was approximately 36.
(c) Dividends
The Company did not declare any cash dividends for the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016. Our Board of Directors does not
intend to distribute any cash dividends in the near future. The declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends will be made at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, and will depend upon, among other things, the results of our operations, cash flows and financial
condition, operating and capital requirements, and other factors as the Board of Directors considers relevant. There is no assurance that
future dividends will be paid, and if dividends are paid, there is no assurance with respect to the amount of any such dividend.
(d) Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plan s
None
Recent Sales of Unregistered Equity Securities
On April 3, 2017, the Company issued 333,334 shares of restricted common stock to a consultant. The Company valued the shares at $0.30
per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement) and will amortize the cost over the one-year life of the
agreement, accordingly, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $75,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017.
On April 7, 2017, the Company issued 300,000 shares of restricted common stock to a consultant. The Company valued the shares at $0.30
per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement) and recorded stock compensation expense of $90,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2017.
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company did not issue any shares of common stock, nor were any unregistered equity
securities sold.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable to a smaller reporting company.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following is management’s discussion and analysis of certain significant factors that have affected our financial position and
operating results during the periods included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, as well as information relating to the
plans of our current management. This report includes forward-looking statements. Generally, the words “believes,” “anticipates,”
“may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “continue,” and similar expressions or the negative thereof or comparable
terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including
the matters set forth in this report or other reports or documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time to time,
which could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those projected. Undue reliance should not be placed on these
forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to update these forward-looking
statements.
The independent auditors’ reports on our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 includes a “going concern”
explanatory paragraph that describes substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to
the factors prompting the explanatory paragraph are discussed below and also in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements filed
herein.
While our financial statements are presented on the basis that we are a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business over a reasonable length of time, our auditors have raised a substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a going concern.
Results of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to the year ended December 31, 2016
Revenues
Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $470,626 compared to $1,897,668 for the year ended December 31, 2016. The
revenue decrease was primarily the result of the cancellation of the Marketing Agreement with MFHC in August 2016 and the
cancellations of the third-party Consulting and Marketing Agreements in January 2017. For the year ended December 31, 2017, three
customers accounted for 27.6%, 16.4% and 14.8%, respectively, and a related party customer accounted for 18.3% of sales. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, one customer accounted for 52% of our revenues and a related party customer accounted for the remaining
48%. A breakdown of the net decrease in sales is as follows:

Related party-Marketing and consulting fee
Related party-Direct print and mail services
Total related party
Consulting and design and marketing fees
Direct print, mail services and misc.
Sub total
Total revenues

$

$
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For the year ended
December 31,
2017
2016
50,000
$
586,667
36,449
330,353
86,449
917,020
160,000
596,325
224,177
383,343
384,177
980,668
470,626
$
1,897,668

Related Party
Beginning in March 2017, the Company provided consulting and marketing services to Value Hearing, LLC, (“Value Hearing”), a related
party, of $50,000, comprised of a monthly of $2,500 for each of the 2 stores that operate under Value Hearing. The Company also provided
direct print and mail advertising services to the Value Hearing stores. On August 5, 2016, in consideration of $128,000 (the “Cancellation
Fee”), MFHC and the Company agreed to cancel the Marketing Agreement as a result of the sale by MFHC of substantially all of their
assets. Prior to the sale, MFHC stores increased from 18 as of January 1, 2016 to 20 as August 5, 2016. The Company charged MHFC
$3,200 per store per month during that period. Beginning April 1, 2016, through August 5, 2016, the Company also provided direct print
and mail advertising services to MFHC.
Other
Consulting and design and marketing
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded $100,000 of income related to the Store Expansion Agreement, $30,000 of
income from the cancellation of the Marketing and Store Expansion Agreements and $30,000 of consulting income from new clients. The
Company intends to pursue additional new consulting clients. For the year ended December 31, 2016, pursuant to the Consulting
Agreement, the Company recorded consulting income of $402,777. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company recorded
design and marketing consulting income of $193,548 related to the Marketing Agreement. The Marketing Agreement has been cancelled on
January 2, 2017.
Direct print, mail service and miscellaneous
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company developed marketing materials, including printing and mailing services, for direct
marketing campaigns and the sale of accessory products and recorded revenues of $224,177. The Company introduced a line of hearables
and wearables in the 4th quarter of 2017 and has expanded this line of products and has begun marketing campaigns to bring awareness to
the products and anticipates sales of these products to increase in 2018.
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company developed marketing materials including printing and mailing services for direct
marketing campaigns and the sale of accessory products and recorded revenues of $384,343. The services were provided to the same client
that was a party to the Consulting and Marketing Agreements.
Cost of sales
The Company records the costs of designing, producing, printing and mailing advertisements for our client’s direct mail marketing
campaigns in cost of sales as well as the licensing of telemarketing software. Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
was as follows:

Related party
Other
Total cost of sales

$
$

For the year ended
December 31,
2017
2016
36,303
$
326,987
256,918
449,620
293,221
$
776,607

The decrease in related party cost of sales occurred beginning August 5, 2016, when the Company no longer incurred costs, as the direct
print and mail advertising services provided to MFHC ceased. Beginning in March 2017, the Company incurred related party cost of sales
for the direct print and mail advertising services provided to Value Hearing. Cost of sales, other, for the year ended December 31, 2017
decreased compared to the previous year as a result of the cancellation of the Marketing Agreement in January 2017, partially offset by the
same costs for new customers, as well as the costs of the hearables and wearable products the Company introduced in the 4th quarter of
2017.
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Operating Expenses
Operating expenses increased to $1,403,897 for the year ended December 31, 2017 from $1,076,454 for the year ended December 31,
2016. The increase in expenses in the current period was as follows:

Description
Compensation and benefits
Professional fees
Stock based compensation
Consulting fees, stockholder
Bad debt expense
Rent, related party
General and other administrative
Total

$

$

For the year ended
December 31,
2017
2016
645,723
$
612,114
217,193
136,828
173,974
—
60,000
241,666
63,799
1,144
111,377
33,078
131,821
51,624
1,403,897
$
1,076,454

Compensation and benefits increased for the year ended December 31, 2017, as a result of the Company, effective August 1, 2016,
compensating the CEO and CFO at an annual rate of $225,000 and $125,000, respectively, offset by decreased personnel costs related to
telemarketing services.
Stock based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2017, was as a result of on April 3, 2017, the Company issued
333,334 shares of restricted common stock to a third party, pursuant to a one-year consulting agreement. The Company valued the shares at
$0.30 per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement). The Company is amortizing the $100,000 cost over
the term of the agreement, and accordingly has included $75,000 in stock-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2017. On
April 7, 2017, the Company issued 300,000 shares of restricted common stock to a third party, pursuant to a consulting agreement. The
Company valued the shares at $0.30 per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement) and recorded an
expense of $90,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017. On December 31. 2017, pursuant to an agreement for marketing services, the
Company recorded an expense of $8,974 for 102,564 shares of common stock to be issued (certificated on February 28, 2018). The
Company valued the shares at $0.0875 (the market price of the common stock on December 31, 2017).
Professional fees (excluding stock based compensation) for the year ended December 31, 2017, were $217,203 compared to $136,828 for
the year ended December 31, 2016. Professional fees consisted of:

Legal fees
Business consulting
Accounting and auditing fees
Information technology
Total

$

$

For the year ended
December 31,
2017
2016
68,580
$
15,225
30,000
30,695
87,303
78,799
31,320
12,109
217,203
$
136,828

Consulting fees, stockholder, were the result of the Company recording fees due on all amounts recognized as revenue in the period related
to the Consulting Agreement and Store Expansion Agreement.
Rent, related party, increased for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to the year ended December 31, 2016 as a result of the new
rental agreement of $12,000 per month, effective June 2017.
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General and administrative costs increased to $113,821 for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to $51,624 for the year ended
December 31, 2016, respectively, and is comprised of the following:

Description
Travel
Transfer agent and filing fees
Investor relations
Office supplies and expense
Other general and other administrative
Total

$

$

For the year ended
December 31,
2017
2016
21,750
$
1,391
9,293
19,303
43,845
6,748
31,636
7,334
7,297
16,848
113,821
$
51,624

Office expenses include telephone, office supplies and computer and internet costs. Investor relations costs include web hosting on our
website, investor presentations and meetings as well as press releases. Travel increased as a result of travel related to trade shows, and
investor, customer and supplier meetings.
Other income (expense), net
Other expenses were $686,840 for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to other income of $62,169 for the year ended December
31, 2016. The 2017 increase was primarily a result of the write off of deferred commissions of $508,334 related to the Consulting
Agreement, due to the uncertainty of future services being provided, based on the Complaint (see Note 12 to the financial statements), an
increase in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2017, as a result of interest expense on new convertible notes issued in 2017,
as well as the amortization of debt discounts recorded to interest expense and derivative expense related to the convertible notes. These
increases were partially offset by the Company recognizing a gain $160,000 on the cancellation of Store Expansion Agreement. During
2017, the Company received $400,000 and also paid $240,000 to a stockholder for services provided related to the income received
pursuant to the Cancellation Agreement.
Net income (loss)
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2017, was $1,913,332 compared to net income of $69,744 for the year ended December 31,
2016. This resulted from the lower revenues as well as increased costs as described above. Additionally, the Company has not recognized
$847,223 of deferred revenue pending the outcome of the Complaint.
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Capital Resources and Liquidity
Liquidity is the ability of an enterprise to generate adequate amounts of cash to meet its needs for cash requirements. As of December 31,
2017, we had cash and cash equivalents of $84,720, a decrease of $408,795, from $493,514 as of December 31, 2016. At December 31,
2017, we had current liabilities of $600,163 (excluding $847,223 of deferred revenue and $540,695 of derivative liabilities) compared to
current assets of $278,735 which resulted in a working capital deficit of $321,428. The current liabilities are comprised of accounts
payable, accrued expenses, amounts due to stockholders and related parties, income taxes payable and deferred revenue.
For the next twelve months, we expect to be able to meet our cash needs for our current operations from the revenues we receive from
providing advertising and marketing services to our clients, as well as the cash provided from the Consulting Agreement (See Note 12 to
the financial statements), provided we achieve a successful outcome in the litigation. We are continuing to actively pursue additional clients
and we are seeking other revenue streams within the industry. Our ability to operate over the next twelve months, is contingent upon
continuing to realize sales revenue sufficient to fund our ongoing expenses, as well as achieving a successful outcome in the litigation which
would provide cash owed pursuant to the Consulting Agreement. If we are unable to sustain our ongoing operations through sales revenue,
we intend to fund operations through debt and/or equity financing arrangements, which may be insufficient to fund our working capital, or
other cash requirements. There can be no assurance that such additional financing will be available to us on acceptable terms, or at
all. Since December 31, 2017, the Company has received $345,100 from the issuance of $313,750 of convertible notes, a note issued of
$32,600, and related party notes payable issued of in the aggregate of $27,500.
Operating Activities
The Company used $589,945 cash in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to cash provided of $425,761
for the year ended December 31, 2016. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the cash used in operations was a result of the net loss of
$1,913,332, offset be the changes in the current assets and liabilities of $818,043, as well the non- cash expenses of $265,674 for the initial
expense and fair value change in derivatives, $173,974 of stock- based compensation and $63,434 of amortization of debt discounts. The
cash was provided in 2016 from net income of $69,744, and an increase in liabilities of $390,526. Increases of $42,382 in assets reduced
the net cash provided.
Investing Activities
Cash used in investing activities was $203,413 for the year ended December 31, 2017. Such investing activities was materially comprised
of the purchase of a 49% interest in a building. The Company also received $17,938 as payments on a note receivable from an officer and
paid $3,000 to acquire the web address innd.com. The 2016 period was comprised of purchases of office equipment and payments on a
note receivable from an officer.
Financing Activities
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company received $65,000 in exchange for a note payable issued to a related party and
$345,000 from the issuance of convertible notes of $397,000. The Company made principal payments of $18,200 on one of the convertible
notes issued. There was no financing activity for the year ended December 31, 2016.
OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.
Critical Accounting Policies
Basis of presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the
United States of America ("US GAAP"). The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the consolidated accounts of
InnerScope and its’ wholly owned subsidiaries ILLC and Intela-Hear, a California limited liability company. All intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Emerging Growth Companies
The Company qualifies as an “emerging growth company” under the 2012 JOBS Act. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an
emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for
complying with new or revised accounting standards. As an emerging growth company, the Company can delay the adoption of certain
accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. The Company has elected to take advantage of the
benefits of this extended transition period.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reported period. Significant estimates relied upon in preparing these financial statements include collectability of accounts receivable,
accounts receivable from a related party and notes receivable from an officer, inventory allowances for slow moving or obsolete inventory
and the allocation of our CEO’s compensation to the Company. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original term of three months or less to be cash equivalents. These
investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash and cash equivalent balances may, at certain times, exceed federally
insured limits. If the amount of a deposit at any time exceeds the federally insured amount at a bank, the uninsured portion of the deposit
could be lost, in whole or in part, if the bank were to fail.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash. The Company
maintains deposits in federally insured financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to significant risk on its cash due to the financial position of the depository institution
in which those deposits are held.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. ASC 605 requires that four basic criteria are
met (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery of products and services has occurred, (3) the fee is fixed or
determinable and (4) collectability is reasonably assured. The Company recognizes revenue during the period in which the services are
performed. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company received and recognized $100,000 of revenue related to the Store
Expansion agreement, and $30,000 of income from the cancellation of the Marketing and Store Expansion Agreements. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, the Company recognized $596,325 into revenue related to the Marketing and Consulting Agreements.
Deferred Revenue
The Company records deferred revenues from the Consulting Agreement when cash has been received, but the related services have not
been provided. Deferred revenue will be recognized when the services are provided and the terms of the agreements have been fulfilled.
On May 26, 2017, the Company and the Moores were named in an action filed that included a demand that all monies paid pursuant to the
Consulting Agreement be returned. The Company believes the claim is frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient
cause for the Agreement to be terminated (See Note 12). The Company has not recognized any revenue in 2017 from the Consulting
Agreement as a result of this litigation. As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, the Company has deferred revenue of $847,223 and $222,223,
respectively, related to the Consulting Agreement.
Advertising and Marketing Expenses
The Company expenses advertising and marketing costs as incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did
not incur any advertising and marketing expenses.
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Investment in Undivided Interest in Real Estate
The Company accounts for its’ investment in undivided interest in real estate using the equity method, as the Company is severally liable
only for the indebtedness incurred with its interest in the property. The Company includes its allocated portion of net income or loss in
Other income (expense) in its Statement of Operations, with the offset to the equity investment account on the balance sheet. For the year
ended December 31, 2017, the Company recognized a loss of $1,378. As of December 31, 2017, the carrying value the carrying value of
our investment in undivided interest in real estate was $1,224,903.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company measures assets and liabilities at fair value based on an expected exit price as defined by the authoritative guidance on fair
value measurements, which represents the amount that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability, as the case
may be, in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value may be based on assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability. The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements establishes a consistent framework for
measuring fair value on either a recurring or nonrecurring basis whereby inputs, used in valuation techniques, are assigned a hierarchical
level.
The following are the hierarchical levels of inputs to measure fair value:
·

Level 1 - Observable inputs that reflect quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

·

Level 2 - Inputs reflect quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities; or inputs
that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

·

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company's assumptions incorporated in valuation techniques used to determine
fair value. These assumptions are required to be consistent with market participant assumptions that are reasonably available.

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets and liabilities, such as cash, prepaid expenses, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued expenses, certain notes payable and notes payable - related party, approximate their fair values because of the short
maturity of these instruments.
The following table represents the Company’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31,
2017, for each fair value hierarchy level:
December 31, 2017
Level I
Level II
Level III

Derivative
Liability
$
$
$

Total

—
—
540,965

$
$
$

—
—
540,965

Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740-10, Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
to reflect the estimated future tax effects, calculated at the tax rate expected to be in effect at the time of realization. A valuation allowance
related to a deferred tax asset is recorded when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of the changes in tax laws and rates of the date of enactment.
ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold that a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements
and provides guidance on recognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition issues. Interest and penalties are classified as a component of interest and other expenses. To date, the Company has not been
assessed, nor paid, any interest or penalties.
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Uncertain tax positions are measured and recorded by establishing a threshold for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Only tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the
effective date may be recognized or continue to be recognized.
Earnings (loss) Per Share
The Company reports earnings (loss) per share in accordance with ASC 260, "Earnings per Share." Basic earnings (loss) per share is
computed by dividing net income (loss), after deducting preferred stock dividends accumulated during the period, by the weighted-average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net loss by the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock, common stock equivalents and other potentially dilutive securities outstanding
during the period. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had outstanding common stock equivalents or any other potentially dilutive
securities that can convert to 10,043,445 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2016, the Company did not have any outstanding
common stock equivalents or any other potentially dilutive securities.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not required for smaller reporting companies.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
See Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules appearing on pages F-1 to F-12 of this annual report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
A review and evaluation was performed by the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”)
and Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”), as of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K, of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.
Based on that review and evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that as of December 31, 2017 disclosure controls and procedures
were not effective at ensuring that the material information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported as required in the application of SEC rules and forms.
Management’s Report on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is a set of processes designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP and includes
those policies and procedures that:
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•
•
•

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and disposition
of our assets;
Provide reasonable assurance our transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of our financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our
management and directors; and
Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. It should be noted that
any system of internal control, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the system will be met. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
Our CEO and CFO have evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as described in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) as of the end of the period covered by this report based upon criteria established in “Internal Control-Integrated
Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework). As a result of this
evaluation, we concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2017, as described below.
We assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of evaluation date and identified the following
material weaknesses:
Insufficient Resources: We have an inadequate number of personnel with requisite expertise in the key functional areas of finance
and accounting.
Inadequate Segregation of Duties: We have an inadequate number of personnel to properly implement control procedures.
Lack of Audit Committee: We do not have a functioning audit committee, resulting in lack of independent oversight in the
establishment and monitoring of required internal controls and procedures.
We are committed to improving the internal controls and will (1) consider to use third party specialists to address shortfalls in staffing and
to assist us with accounting and finance responsibilities, (2) increase the frequency of independent reconciliations of significant accounts
which will mitigate the lack of segregation of duties until there are sufficient personnel and (3) may consider appointing additional outside
directors and audit committee members in the future.
We have discussed the material weakness noted above with our independent registered public accounting firm. Due to the nature of these
material weaknesses, there is a more than remote likelihood that misstatements which could be material to the annual or interim financial
statements could occur that would not be prevented or detected.
This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant
to the rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only management’s report in this annual report.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Identification of directors and executive officers.
The names and ages of our directors and executive officers are set forth below. Also included is their principal occupation(s). Our By-Laws
provide for three directors. All directors are elected annually by the stockholders to serve until the next annual meeting of the stockholders
and until their successors are duly elected and qualified.
Name
Mark Moore
Kim Moore
Matthew Moore

Age
56
62
32

Position
Chairman
Treasurer and Director
CEO and Director

Director Since
June 18, 2012
June 18, 2012
June 18, 2012

Mark Moore, Chairman
Mr. Moore has 30 years in hearing aid dispensing, practice management, private label brand management and marketing, Mr. Moore brings
a wealth of experience and perspective to our field. Mr. Moore’s expertise in not only running a successful multi-office retail dispensing
practice, but also developing time-tested proven new marketing and advertising strategies over the past 25 years has made him one of the
most sought after experts in the hearing aid industry. He has personally helped over ten thousand people hear better with hearing
amplification.
Mr. Moore previously was a columnist for Advanced for Audiologists as well as Senior Publications throughout Northern California. Mark
has also developed patented and patent-pending products in the areas of Nutritional Supplements for hearing related issues, Aural
Rehabilitation programs, and Low-Level Laser Therapy for Tinnitus and Sensorineural hearing loss.
Mr. Moore is a graduate of San Diego Golf Academy with a business degree. He and his wife, Kim, who is also a licensed dispenser, lives
in Granite Bay, CA.
Kim Moore, Treasurer and Director
Mrs. Moore has over 40 years of experience in the Hearing Aid Industry. She literally grew up in the industry helping her father, Marvin
Posey, develop and maintain his hearing aid practice, Posey’s Hearing Aid Center, in Central Valley, California.
Mrs. Moore started working for her father at age eight, when she would help stuff direct mail pieces for an upcoming marketing campaign.
She learned from her father that no potential customer walks through the door unless you advertise and market properly to the people that
want to hear better. Mrs. Moore became a Hearing Instrument Specialist, just as her father did so she can help people hear better. Kim lives
in Granite Bay, CA with her husband, Mark Moore.
Matthew Moore, CEO, Secretary and Director
For the last five years Matthew Moore has directed marketing and advertising for Moore Family Hearing Company. Matthew specializes in
developing print and demographically tailored mail campaigns, as well as monitoring and consulting on key business performance
indicators for all business, especially for audiological practices. Matthew has the ability and track record of consulting with businesses, as
well as his own business streamline effacacies from top to bottom to extract better performance from every level of an organization.
Matthew is also third generation in the hearing device industry and has literally grown up around hearing aids.
Matthew Moore’s expertise is in the senior demographics and customized market analysis for elderly related products, including hearing
aids across the United States. He lives in Roseville, CA with his wife and two children.
Family Relationships
Mark Moore and Kim Moore are married to one another. Matthew Moore is the son of Mark and Kim Moore.
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Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
No director, executive officer, significant employee or control person of the Company has been involved in any legal proceeding listed in
Item 401(f) of Regulation S-K in the past 10 years.
Corporate Governance
Our Board has not established any committees, including an audit committee, a compensation committee or a nominating committee, or any
committee performing a similar function. The functions of those committees are being undertaken by our Board. Because we do not have
any independent directors, our Board believes that the establishment of committees of our Board would not provide any benefits to our
Company and could be considered more form than substance.
We do not have a policy regarding the consideration of any director candidates that may be recommended by our stockholders, including
the minimum qualifications for director candidates, nor have our officers and directors established a process for identifying and evaluating
director nominees. We have not adopted a policy regarding the handling of any potential recommendation of director candidates by our
stockholders, including the procedures to be followed. Our officers and directors have not considered or adopted any of these policies as we
have never received a recommendation from any stockholder for any candidate to serve on our Board of Directors.
Given our relative size and lack of directors’ and officers’ insurance coverage, we do not anticipate that any of our stockholders will make
such a recommendation in the near future. While there have been no nominations of additional directors proposed, in the event such a
proposal is made, all current members of our Board will participate in the consideration of director nominees.
As with most small, early stage companies until such time as our Company further develops our business, achieves a revenue base and has
sufficient working capital to purchase directors’ and officers’ insurance, we do not have any immediate prospects to attract independent
directors. When we are able to expand our Board to include one or more independent directors, we intend to establish an audit committee of
our Board of Directors. It is our intention that one or more of these independent directors will also qualify as an audit committee financial
expert. Our securities are not quoted on an exchange that has requirements that a majority of our Board members be independent and we
are not currently otherwise subject to any law, rule or regulation requiring that all or any portion of our Board of Directors include
“independent” directors, nor are we required to establish or maintain an audit committee or other committee of our Board.
Conflicts of Interests
In September 2016, the officers and directors of the Company formed a California Limited Liability Company (“LLC1”), for the purpose
of acquiring commercial real estate and other business activities. On December 24, 2016, LLC1 acquired two retail stores from the buyer of
the MFHC stores. On March 1, 2017, the Company entered into a twelve-month Marketing Agreement with each of the stores to provide
telemarketing and design and marketing services for $2,500 per month per store, resulting in $50,000 of revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company invoiced LLC1 $36,499, for the Company’s
production, printing and mailing services. As of December 31, 2017, LLC1 owes the Company $73,996. On May 9, 2017, the Company
and LLC1 purchased certain real property from an unaffiliated party (see Note 8). On June 14, 2017, the Company entered into a five-year
lease with LLC1 for approximately 6,944 square feet and a monthly rent of $12,000. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company
expensed $64,499 related to this lease.
In November 2016, the Company’s Chairman formed a California Limited Liability Company (“LLC2”), for the purpose of providing
consulting services to the Company. The Company entered into an agreement with LLC2, and paid LLC2 $375,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2016, for services performed and to be performed. Of the $375,000 amount paid, $241,667 was recognized as consulting
fees- stockholder for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the remaining $133,334 was recorded as deferred commissions- stockholder
as of December 31, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company paid LLC2 an additional $771,000 ($96,000 of which
reduced previous amounts owed) and expensed $808,334 ($60,000 as commissions for services performed and $748,334 as other expense)
due to uncertainty of future services being provided, based on the Complaint filed on May 26, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, the deferred
commissions-stockholder is $-0-.
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On May 9, 2017, the Company and LLC1 purchased certain real property from an unaffiliated party. The Company and LLC1 have agreed
that the Company purchased and owns 49% of the building and LLC1 purchased and owns 51% of the building. The contracted purchase
price for the building was $2,420,000 and the total amount paid at closing was $2,501,783 including, fees, insurance, interest and real estate
taxes. The Company paid for their building interest by delivering cash at closing of $209,971 and being a co-borrower on a note in the
amount of $2,057,000, of which the Company has agreed with LLC1 to pay $1,007,930.
MFHC accounted for approximately 48% of our sales for the years ended December 31, 2016. Our CEO, Mr. Matthew Moore, and
members of our board of directors, control MFHC, which could create a conflict of interest. Mr. Moore is the Director of Marketing of
MFHC, our Chairman is the Chief Executive Officer of MFHC and our treasurer and director is also the Chief Financial Officer and
director of MFHC. On August 5, 2016, MFHC and the Company agreed to cancel the Marketing Agreement as a result of the sale by
MFHC of substantially all of their assets, including the hearing aid dispensaries to which we were providing services.
Code of Ethics
We adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Management to promote honest and ethical conduct and to deter wrongdoing. This Code
applies to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and other employees performing similar functions. The obligations of
the Code of Ethics supplement, but do not replace, any other code of conduct or ethics policy applicable to our employees generally.
Under the Code of Ethics, all members of the senior financial management shall:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Act honestly and ethically in the performance of their duties at our company,
Avoid actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships,
Provide full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file with, or submits to,
the SEC and in other public communications by our company,
Comply with rules and regulations of federal, state and local governments and other private and public regulatory agencies
that effect the conduct of our business and our financial reporting,
Act in good faith, responsibly, with due care, competence and diligence, without misrepresenting material facts or allowing
the member’s independent judgment to be subordinated
Respect the confidentiality of information in the course of work, except when authorized or legally obtained to disclosure
such information,
Share knowledge and maintain skills relevant to carrying out the member’s duties within our company,
Proactively promote ethical behavior as a responsible partner among peers and colleagues in the work environment and
community,
Achieve responsible use of and control over all assets and resources of our company entrusted to the member, and
Promptly bring to the attention of the Chief Executive Officer any information concerning (a) significant deficiencies in
the design or operating of internal controls which could adversely affect to record, process, summarize and report financial
data or (b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
our financial reporting or internal controls.

Director Independence
None of the members of our Board of Directors qualifies as an independent director in accordance with the published listing requirements
of the NASDAQ Global Market. The NASDAQ independence definition includes a series of objective tests, such as that the director is not,
and has not been for at least three years, one of our employees and that neither the director, nor any of his family members has engaged in
various types of business dealings with us. In addition, our Board has not made a subjective determination as to each director that no
relationships exist which, in the opinion of our Board, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the
responsibilities of a director, though such subjective determination is required by the NASDAQ rules. Had our Board of Directors made
these determinations, our Board would have reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and us with regard to each
director’s business and personal activities and relationships as they may relate to us and our management.
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In performing the functions of the audit committee, our board oversees our accounting and financial reporting process. In this function, our
board performs several functions. Our board, among other duties, evaluates and assesses the qualifications of the Company’s independent
auditors; determines whether to retain or terminate the existing independent auditors; meets with the independent auditors and financial
management of the Company to review the scope of the proposed audit and audit procedures on an annual basis; reviews and approves the
retention of independent auditors for any non-audit services; reviews the independence of the independent auditors; reviews with the
independent auditors and with the Company’s financial accounting personnel the adequacy and effectiveness of accounting and financial
controls and considers recommendations for improvement of such controls; reviews the financial statements to be included in our annual
and quarterly reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission; and discusses with the Company’s management and the
independent auditors the results of the annual audit and the results of our quarterly financial statements.
Our board as a whole considers executive officer compensation, and our entire board participates in the consideration of director
compensation. Our board as a whole oversees our compensation policies, plans and programs, reviews and approves corporate performance
goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of our executive officers, if any, and reviews the compensation and other terms of
employment of our Chief Executive Officer and our other executive officers. Our board also administers our equity incentive and stock
option plans, if any.
Each of our directors participates in the consideration of director nominees. In addition to nominees recommended by directors, our board
will consider nominees recommended by shareholders if submitted in writing to our secretary. Our board believes that any candidate for
director, whether recommended by shareholders or by the board, should be considered on the basis of all factors relevant to our needs and
the credentials of the candidate at the time the candidate is proposed. Such factors include relevant business and industry experience and
demonstrated character and judgment.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who
beneficially own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities to file with the SEC initial statements of beneficial ownership,
reports of changes in ownership and annual reports concerning their ownership of our common shares and other equity securities, on Forms
3, 4 and 5 respectively. Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% shareholders are required by the SEC regulations to furnish us
with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely upon a review of such reports, and on written representations from certain
reporting persons, the Company believes that, with respect to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, each director, executive officer and
10% stockholder made timely filings of all reports required by Section 16 of the Exchange Act.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
The following tables set forth all of the compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to: (i) each individual serving as our principal
executive officer; and (ii) each other individual that served as an executive officer at the conclusion of the fiscal year ended December 31,
2017 and who received in excess of $100,000.
Summary Compensation Table

Name and principal position
Matthew Moore, CEO,
Secretary & Director
Kim Moore, Treasurer
& Director
Mark Moore, Chairman

Salary
$
Year
2017 225,000
2016 117,522
2017 125,000
2016 52,884
2017
0
2016
0

Bonus
$
0
0
0
0
0
0
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Stock
Options
$
0
0
0
0
0
0

Option
Awards
$
0
0
0
0
0
0

NonEquity
Incentive
Plan
Compensation
$
0
0
0
0
0
0

Nonqualified
Deferred
Compensation
Earnings
$
0
0
0
0
0
0

All
Other
Compensation
Total
$
$
0
225,000
9,332
126,854
0
125,000
0
52,884
0
0
0
0

Mr. Matthew Moore’s 2016 salary compensation includes an allocation of a portion of his pay from his salary from MFHC for estimated
time spent in his capacity at InnerScope of $23,291 for the year ended December 31, 2016. Effective August 1, 2016, Matthew began to
receive an annual compensation of $225,000 from the Company. Other compensation is comprised of club membership dues.
Employment Agreements
On November 15, 2016, the Company executed an employment agreement with Matthew Moore for an annual compensation of $225,000
and with Kimberly Moore for $125,000 annual compensation.
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End
No executive officer received any equity awards or holds exercisable or unexercisable options as of December 31, 2017.
Long-Term Incentive Plans
There are no arrangements or plans in which the Company would provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for directors or executive
officers.
Compensation Committee
We currently do not have a compensation committee of our Board of Directors. The Board as a whole determines executive compensation.
Director Compensation
We do not pay fees to our directors for attendance at meetings of the board; however, we may adopt a policy of making such payments in
the future. We will reimburse out-of-pocket expenses incurred by directors in attending board and committee meetings.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.
The following table sets forth information known to the Company with respect to the beneficial ownership (as such term is defined in Rule
13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of the outstanding common stock of the Company as of March 31, 2018 by:
(1) each person known by the Company to beneficially own 5% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock; (2) each of the
named executive officers as defined in Item 402(m)(2); (3) each of the Company’s directors; and (4) all of the Company’s executive
officers and directors as a group. The number of shares beneficially owned is determined under rules promulgated by the SEC, and the
information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Including those shares in the tables does not,
however, constitute an admission that the named stockholder is a direct or indirect beneficial owner of those shares.
Common Stock
Beneficially Owned
19,020,000
19,020,000
19,020,000
57,060,000

Name of Beneficial Owner (1)
Mark Moore (2)
Kimberly Moore (3)
Matthew Moore (4)
Officers and Directors as a group, 3 persons (5)

Percentage of Common
Stock
30.8%
30.8%
30.8%
92.4%

(1) Beneficial Ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and generally
includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Percentages are based on a total of shares of common stock outstanding
of 61,763,406 shares outstanding as of March 31, 2018.
(2) Excludes 19,020,000 shares owned by Kimberly Moore, the spouse of Mark Moore.
(3) Excludes 19,020,000 shares owned by Mark Moore, the spouse of Kimberly Moore.
(4) Excludes 450,000 shares owned by Margaret May Moore, the spouse of Matthew Moore.
(5) Includes Matthew Moore 19,020,000 shares, Kimberly Moore 19,020,000 shares and Mark Moore 19,020,000 shares
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
On November 1, 2013, the Company acquired Intela-Hear, in exchange for 27,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. This
resulted in Intela-Hear becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The shares were issued equally to Mark Moore and Kim
Moore, who owned all of the outstanding equity of Intela-Hear. Because of the common ownership, all accounts were recorded at IntelaHear’s historical cost basis. The Company also issued 1,530,000 shares of common stock to its’ CEO for services rendered. The shares
were recorded as compensation expense at $40,800 ($0.0267 per share), based upon the Company’s internal valuation on a discounted cash
flow basis.
The Company loaned the CEO $20,500 during the year ended December 31, 2013. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Company received payments in full of all principal and interest due. As of December 31, 2017, the balance owed the Company is $-0-. The
Company recorded interest income of $228 and $299 for the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, respectively.
Pursuant to a Marketing Agreement (cancelled August 5, 2016), the Company provided marketing programs to promote and sell hearing
aid instruments and related devices to Moore Family Hearing Company (“MFHC”). MFHC owned and operated retail hearing aid stores.
Based on common control of MFHC and the Company, all transactions with MFHC are classified as related party transactions. On August
8, 2016, in consideration of $128,000 (the “Cancellation Fee”), MFHC and the Company agreed to cancel the Marketing Agreement as a
result of the sale by MFHC of substantially all of their assets (see Note 6). On August 11, MFHC paid $229,622 to the Company (inclusive
of the balance owed as of June 30, 2016, the Cancellation Fee and other related party activity).
Pursuant to the Marketing Agreement, beginning in January 2014, the monthly fee was increased from $2,500 to $3,200 per retail location.
For January through June 2015, there were 18 MFHC retail stores and one store was added July 1, 2015. From January 1, 2016 thru August
5, 2016, there were 20 stores resulting in revenue of $458,667 and $720,000 for the year ended December 31, 2016. Also, during the year
ended December 31, 2016, the Company invoiced MFHC $330,353 for the production, printing and mailing of direct mail advertising
materials. Lastly, the Company recognized $128,000 from the Cancellation Fee of the Marketing Agreement as related party income for
the year ended December 31, 2016. The Company has offset the accounts receivable owed from MFHC for expenses of the Company that
have been paid by MFHC. As a result of these payments in addition to MFHC’s payments to the Company during the years ended
December 31, 2017, and 2016, the balance due to MFHC as of December 31, 2017, and 2016, was $22,548 and $13,048, respectively.
On April 1, 2013, the Company entered into a five-year sublease agreement with MFHC to sublease approximately 729 square feet of
office space for $1,500 per month. The monthly rent reduced the amounts owed to the Company from MFHC for the marketing services
provided to MFHC. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company expensed $1,500 and $18,000, respectively, related to
this lease.
On February 1, 2016, the Company entered into a one year sublease agreement with MFHC to sublease approximately 2,119 square feet of
office space for $4,026 per month. The monthly rent reduced the amounts owed to the Company from MFHC for the marketing services
provided to MFHC. Effective April 30, 2016, MFHC released the Company from the sublease. For the years ended December 31, 2017,
and 2016, the Company expensed $12,078 and $15,078, respectively, related to this lease.
Prior to August 1, 2016, the Company’s CEO was being compensated from MFHC, as he also held a position with MFHC. During that time
the Company estimated the portion of the CEO’s salary that should be allocated to the Company, and subsequent to August 1, 2016, the
Company agreed to compensation of $225,000 per year. Effective August 1, 2016, the Company agreed to compensate our Chief Financial
Officer $125,000 per annum. On November 15, 2016, the Company entered into an employment agreement with our CEO and CFO which
includes an annual base salary of $225,000 and $125,000, respectively. The Company has expensed $225,000 and $117,522 for the CEO,
for the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, respectively, and the Company recognized $124,519 and $52,885 of expense for the
CFO for the year ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, respectively.
In September 2016, the officers and directors of the Company formed a California Limited Liability Company (“LLC1”), for the purpose
of acquiring commercial real estate and other business activities. On December 24, 2016, LLC1 acquired two retail stores from the buyer of
the MFHC stores. On March 1, 2017, the Company entered into a twelve-month Marketing Agreement with each of the stores to provide
telemarketing and design and marketing services for $2,500 per month per store, resulting in $50,000 of revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company invoiced LLC1 $36,499, for the Company’s
production, printing and mailing services. As of December 31, 2017, LLC1 owes the Company $73,996.
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On May 9, 2017, the Company and LLC1 purchased certain real property from an unaffiliated party. The Company and LLC1 have agreed
that the Company purchased and owns 49% of the building and LLC1 purchased and owns 51% of the building. The contracted purchase
price for the building was $2,420,000 and the total amount paid at closing was $2,501,783 including, fees, insurance, interest and real estate
taxes. The Company paid for their building interest by delivering cash at closing of $209,971 and being a co-borrower on a note in the
amount of $2,057,000, of which the Company has agreed with LLC1 to pay $1,007,930. On June 14, 2017, the company entered into a
five-year lease with LLC1 for approximately 6,944 square feet and a monthly rent of $12,000. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Company expensed $64,499 related to this lease and is included in Rent, related party, on the consolidated statement of operations,
included herein.
In November 2016, our Chairman formed a California limited liability Company (“LLC”), for the purpose of providing consulting services
to the Company. The Company entered into an agreement with the LLC and paid the LLC, $375,000 during the year ended December 31,
2016 for services performed and to be performed. Of the $375,00 amount paid, $241,667 was recognized as consulting fees- stockholder
for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the remaining $133,334 was recorded as deferred commissions- stockholder as of December
31, 2016. Additionally, the Company has accrued and recorded $96,000 in other expense- stockholder and $96,000 was recorded as
commission payable, stockholder. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company paid the LLC an additional $771,000 ($96,000
of which reduced previous amounts owed) and expensed $808,334 ($60,000 as commissions for services performed and $748,334 as other
expense) due to uncertainty of future services being provided, based on the Complaint filed on May 26, 2017. As of December 31, 2017,
the deferred commissions-stockholder is $-0-.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The following table shows the fees that were billed for the audit and other services provided by D. Brooks and Associates CPA’s P.A. for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Audit Fees
Audit-Related Fees
Tax Fees
All Other Fees
Total

$

$

2016
28,606
—
—
—
28,606

$

$

2016
20,583
—
—
—
20,583

Audit Fees — This category includes the audit of our annual financial statements, review of financial statements included in our Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and services that are normally provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in connection with
engagements for those fiscal years. This category also includes advice on audit and accounting matters that arose during, or as a result of,
the audit or the review of interim financial statements.
Audit-Related Fees — This category consists of assurance and related services by the independent registered public accounting firm that
are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not reported above under “Audit Fees.”
The services for the fees disclosed under this category include consultation regarding our correspondence with the SEC and other
accounting consulting.
Tax Fees — This category consists of professional services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm for tax
compliance and tax advice.
All Other Fees — This category consists of fees for other miscellaneous items.
Our board of directors has adopted a procedure for pre-approval of all fees charged by our independent registered public accounting firm.
Under the procedure, the board approves the engagement letter with respect to audit, tax and review services. Other fees are subject to preapproval by the board. All audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the auditors with respect to 2016 and 2015 were preapproved by the board of directors.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS.
(a)1. Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements and Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms are included on pages F-1
through F-13
2. Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules for which provisions made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Commission”) are either not required under the related instructions, are not applicable (and therefore have been omitted), or the
required disclosures are contained in the financial statements included herein.
3. Exhibits (including those incorporated by reference).
Exhibit
Number
3.1*
3.2*
3.3*
3.4*
4.3*
10.2*
10.3*
10.4*
10.5*
10.6*
10.7*
10.8+*
10.9+*
10.10+*
10.11#*
10.12#*
10.13*
10.14*
10.15*
10.16*
10.17*
10.18*
10.19*
10.20*

Description of Exhibit
Articles of Incorporation
Bylaws of InnerScope Advertising Agency, Inc.
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation dated August 25, 2017
Private Placement Offering Memorandum
InnerScope, Inc. Marketing Agreement between the Company and Moore Family Hearing Company, Inc.
Acquisition Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange dated June 20, 2012, between the Company and InnerScope
Advertising Agency, LLC
Acquisition Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange dated November 1, 2013, between the Company and IntelaHear, LLC
Promissory Note dated April 1, 2013, between the Company and Matthew Moore
Promissory Note dated June 25, 2013, between the Company and Matthew Moore
June 2012 Business Consulting Agreement
GN ReSound Sales Agreement
Store Expansion Consulting Agreement
Consulting Agreement
Employment Agreement with Matthew Moore, CEO
Employment Agreement with Kimberly Moore, CFO
Financial Consulting Agreement between the Company and Venture Equity, LLC
Consulting and Representation Agreement between the Company and CorporateAds.com
Business Loan Agreement, dated May 5, 2017, between InnerScope Advertising Agency, Inc. and Moore Holdings,
LLC and First Community Bank.
Commercial Security Agreement, dated May 5, 2017, between InnerScope Advertising Agency, Inc. and Moore
Holdings, LLC and First Community Bank.
U.S. Small Business Administration Note.
Deed of Trust, dated May 5, 2017, among InnerScope Advertising Agency, Inc. and Moore Holdings, LLC. and First
Community Bank and Placer Title Company.
Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 5, 2017 by and between InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. and
Power Up Lending Group, LTD.
Convertible Promissory Note dated October 5, 2017, by and between InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. and
Power Up Lending Group, LTD.
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10.21*
10.22*
10.23**
10.24**
10.25**
10.26**
31.1**
31.2**
32.1**
101.INS**
101.SCH**
101.CAL**
101.DEF**
101.LAB**
101.PRE**
*
+
**
#

Securities Purchase Agreement dated November 10, 2017, by and between InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.
and Carebourn Capital, L.P.
Convertible Promissory Note dated November 10, 2017, by and between InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. and
Carebourn Capital, L.P.
Securities Purchase Agreement dated February 8, 2018 by and between InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. and
Power Up Lending Group, LTD.
Convertible Promissory Note dated February 8, 2018, by and between InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. and
Power Up Lending Group, LTD.
Securities Purchase Agreement dated April 8, 2019, by and between InnerScope Hearing
Technologies, Inc. and Carebourn Capital, L.P.
Convertible Promissory Note dated April 8, 2018, by and between InnerScope Hearing
Technologies, Inc. and Carebourn Capital, L.P.
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
XBRL Instance
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

Previously filed.
Confidential Treatment has been requested for certain portions thereof pursuant to Confidential Treatment Request under Rule 406
promulgated under the Securities Act. Such provisions and attachments have been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
Filed Herewith
Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.
By:

/s/ Matthew Moore
Matthew Moore
Chief Executive Officer

Date:

April 17, 2018

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Mark Moore
Mark Moore

Chairman

April 17, 2018

/s/ Matthew Moore
Matthew Moore

Chief Executive Officer, CEO and
Director (principal executive officer)

April 17, 2018

/s/ Kimberly Moore
Kimberly Moore

Chief Financial Officer and
Director (chief accounting officer)

April 17, 2018
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. (the Company) as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows
for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the years in the two year period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether
due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred a net loss of $1,913,332 for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Additionally, the Company has a working capital deficit of $1,709,346 and an accumulated deficit of
$1,787,012 at December 31, 2017. These and other factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Management’s plan regarding these matters is also described in Note 3 to the financial statements. The
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

D. Brooks and Associates CPA’s, P.A.
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2015.
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida
April 17, 2018
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INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2017

2016

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable from related party
Deferred commissions, stockholder
Prepaid assets
Inventory
Notes and interest receivable, current portion, officer
Total current assets
Domain name
Property, furniture and fixtures and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,068
(2017) and $184 (2016)
Notes and interest receivable, long term portion, officer
Investment in undivided interest in real estate
Total assets

$

84,720
12,950
73,996
—
101,110
5,959
—
278,735

$

$

3,000

$

$

1,583
—
1,224,903
1,508,221

$

493,514
—
—
133,334
6,223
2,321
10,396
645,788
—
2,467
7,688
—
655,943

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable to related party
Notes payable - stockholder
Advances payable, stockholders
Current portion of convertible notes payable, net of discounts
Current portion of note payable
Commissions payable - stockholder
Officer salaries payable
Income taxes payable
Derivative liability

$

161,919
22,548
65,000
176,838
74,140
18,518
—
47,248
33,682
540,965

$

42,939
13,048
—
—
—
—
96,000
6,731
38,482
—

Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

847,223
1,988,081

222,223
419,423

Long term portion of note payable
Long term portion of convertible note payable, net of discounts
Total liabilities

982,176
12,587
2,982,844

—
—
419,423

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit):
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 225,000,000 shares authorized; 61,539,334 and
60,906,000 shares issued and outstanding December 31, 2017, and 2016, respectively
Common stock to be issued, $0.0001 par value, 102,564 shares
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued
Additional paid-in capital
Deferred stock compensation
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

6,153
10
—
331,227
(25,000)
(1,787,012)

6,090
—
—
104,110
—
126,320

Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

(1,474,623)

236,520

Commitments and contingencies

$

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1,508,221

$

655,943

INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31,
2017
2016
Revenues:
Revenues, other
Revenues, related party
Total revenues

$

384,177
86,449
470,626

$

917,020
980,668
1,897,688

Cost of sales
Cost of sales, other
Cost of sales, related
Total cost of sales

256,918
36,303
293,221

—
776,607
776,607

Gross profit

177,405

1,121,081

645,723
63,799
391,177
60,000
111,377
131,821
1,403,897

612,114
1,144
136,828
241,666
33,078
51,624
1,076,454

Operating Expenses:
Compensation and benefits
Bad debt expense
Professional fees (including stock based fees of $173,974 for 2017)
Consulting fees, stockholder
Rent, related party
Other general and administrative

Income (loss) from operations
Other Income (Expense):
Other income
Derivative expense
Loss on investment in undivided interest in real estate
Write off of deferred commissions (see note 2)
Gain on contract cancellations
Interest income, including $228 (2017) and $299 (2016) from officer
Interest expense and finance charges
Total other income (expense)
Income (loss) before income taxes

(1,226,492)

44,627

5,533
(265,674)
(1,378)
(508,334)
160,000
300

—
—
—
—
64,000
317

(77,287)
(686,840)

(2,148)
62,169

(1,913,332)

Income tax provision

106,796

—

37,052

Net income (loss)

$

(1,913,332)

$

69,744

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share

$

(0.03)

$

0.00

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Basic and diluted

61,320,706
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60,906,000

INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES , INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 and 2016

Common stock
Shares
Amount
Balances January 1, 2016
Net income
Balances December 31, 2016
Common stock issued for
services

60,906,000
—

$ 6,090

—

$

—

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

$

$ 104,110

—

—

60,906,000

6,090

—

—

633,334

63

—

—

—

—

—

—

Stock based compensation

—

—

Net loss

—

—

61,539,334

Deferred
stock
Compensation

—

Reclassification of derivative
liabilities
upon payment of convertible debt

Balances December 31, 2017

Common stock to be
issued
Shares
Amount

$ 6,153

102,564

(100,000)

—

10

—
102,564

—

75,000

—
$

F-5

10

—
$

(25,000)

104,110

Retained
Earnings
(deficit)
$

56,576

Total
Stockholders’
Equity
(Deficit)
$

166,776

69,744

69,744

126,320

236,520

189,937

—

90,000

28,215

—

28,215

8,965

—

83,975

—
$ 331,227

(1,913,332)

(1,913,332)

$(1,787,012 )

$ (1,474,623 )

INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended
December 31,
2017
2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operations
Loss on fair value of derivatives
Amortization of debt discounts
Depreciation
Stock compensation expense
Loss on investment in undvided interest in real estate
Security deposit used for rent payment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Interest receivable, related party
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Deferred commissions, stockholder
Prepaid assets
Other receivables
Due from related party
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Commissions payable, stockholder
Officer salaries payable
Deferred revenue
Due to related party
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

(1,913,332)

$

265,674
63,434
884
173,974
1,378
—

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of intangible asset
Purchase of office and computer equipment
Repayments from shareholder loans receivable
Investment in undivided interest in real estate
Net cash used in investing activities

69,744
—
—
184
—
—
7,026

146
(12,950)
(3,638)
133,334
(94,887)
—
(73,996)

665
—
(2,321)
(133,334)
(6,223)
—
99,496

114,179
(96,000)
40,517
625,000
186,338

52,524
96,000
6,731
222,223
13,048

(589,945)

425,761

(3,000)
—
17,938
(218,351)
(203,413)

—
(2,651)
2,563
—
(88)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from advances, shareholder
Proceeds from issuances of convertible notes payable
Payments of note payable
Payments of principal of convertible note payable
Net cash provided by financing activities

65,000
345,000
(7,236)
(18,200)
384,564

—
—
—
—
—

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(408,795)

425,673

493,514

67,841

Cash and cash equivalents, Beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, End of year

$

84,720

$

493,514

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

$
$

4,521
—

$
$

2,148
24,758

Schedule of non-cash Investing or Financing Activity:
Issuance of note payable for investment in undivided interest in real estate

$

1,007,930

$

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION
Business
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. (“Company”, “InnerScope”) is a Nevada Corporation incorporated on June 15, 2012, with its
principal place of business in Roseville, California. The Company was originally named InnerScope Advertising Agency, Inc. and was
formed to provide advertising and marketing services to retail establishments in the hearing device industry. On August 25, 2017, the
Company changed its name to InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. to better reflect the Company’s current direction as a technology
driven company with a scalable business to business (B2B) solution and business to consumer (and B2C) solution. Recently, the Company
began offering its own line of “Hearable”, and “Wearable” Personal Sound Amplifier Products (PSAPs).
On June 20, 2012, the Company entered into an Acquisition and Plan of Share Exchange with InnerScope Advertising Agency, LLC
(“ILLC”), a commonly owned entity, whereby the Company acquired 100% of ILLC. On November 1, 2013, the Company entered into an
Acquisition and Plan of Share Exchange with Intela-Hear, LLC (“Intela-Hear”), a commonly owned entity, whereby the Company acquired
100% of the outstanding equity of Intela-Hear in exchange for 27,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. This resulted in IntelaHear becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
On August 5, 2016, the Company along with Mark Moore (“Mark”, the Company’s Chairman of the Board), Matthew Moore (“Matthew”,
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer) and Kim Moore (“Kim”, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer) entered into a Store Expansion
Consulting Agreement (the “Expansion Agreement”) with a third party (the “Client”). Mark, Matthew and Kim are herein referred to
collectively as the “Moores”. Pursuant to the Expansion Agreement, the Company and the Moores were responsible for all physical plant
and marketing details for the Client’s new store openings during the initial term of six-months. The Expansion Agreement was cancelled on
January 6, 2017. The Client has decided to do their own marketing in-house and eliminate this out-sourced contract and decided to open
only one location and delay the opening of any other new stores. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has recognized
$100,000 of income for the one new store, opened in January 2017, and $400,000 in other income for payments received for the Expansion
Agreement pursuant to the cancellation. The Client also paid an additional $30,000 for the cancellation of the Store Expansion Agreement
and a marketing agreement.
Also, on August 5, 2016, the Company and the Moores entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with the same
Client as the store Expansion Agreement. Under the Consulting Agreement, including the Non-Compete provision covering a ten-mile
radius of any retail store, the Company and the Moores were to provide unlimited licensing of the Intela-Hear brand name, exclusive access
to the Aware Aural Rehab Program within 10 miles of retail stores, exclusive territory of all services within 10 miles of retail stores and up
to 40 hours per month of various consulting services. The Consulting Agreement continues until January 31, 2019, unless terminated for
cause, as defined in the Consulting Agreement. On May 26, 2017, the Company and the Moores were named in an action filed by the
Client, that included a demand that all monies paid pursuant to the Consulting Agreement be returned. The Company believes the claim is
frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient cause for the Agreement to be terminated (See Note 12).
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the
United States of America ("US GAAP"). The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the consolidated accounts of
InnerScope and its’ wholly owned subsidiaries ILLC and Intela-Hear. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
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Emerging Growth Companies
The Company qualifies as an “emerging growth company” under the 2012 JOBS Act. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an
emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for
complying with new or revised accounting standards. As an emerging growth company, the Company can delay the adoption of certain
accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. The Company has elected to take advantage of the
benefits of this extended transition period.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reported period. Significant estimates relied upon in preparing these financial statements include through July 31, 2016, the allocation of
our President’s compensation to the Company. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original term of three months or less to be cash equivalents. These
investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash and cash equivalent balances may, at certain times, exceed federally
insured limits. If the amount of a deposit at any time exceeds the federally insured amount at a bank, the uninsured portion of the deposit
could be lost, in whole or in part, if the bank were to fail.
Accounts receivable
The Company records accounts receivable at the time products and services are delivered. An allowance for losses is established through a
provision for losses charged to expenses. Receivables are charged against the allowance for losses when management believes
collectability is unlikely. The allowance (if any) is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses on
existing receivables, based on evaluation of the collectability of the accounts and prior loss experience. As of December 31, 2017,
management’s evaluation resulted in the establishment of an allowance for uncollectible receivables of $63,799.
Sales Concentration and Credit Risk
Following is a summary of customers who accounted for more than ten percent (10%) of the Company’s revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and accounts receivable balance as of December 31, 2017:
December 31,
2017
%
Customer A
Customer B
Customer C, related
Customer D

2016
%
16.4%
14.8%
18.3%
27.6%

—
—
48.3%
51.7%

$

Accounts
Receivable
as of
December 31, 2017
63,799
4,000
81,193
—

Deferred Commission and Commission Payable, Stockholder
The Company records deferred commission when cash has been paid, but the related services have not been provided by the party
(stockholder). Commission expense will be recognized when the services are provided. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had
advanced $133,334, and in January 2017, an additional $375,000 was advanced. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company
expensed $508,334 (included in other expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations), due to uncertainty of future services being
provided, based on the Complaint filed on May 26, 2017 (see Note 7 and 12).
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Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is determined using the first in first out (FIFO) method. Provision for
potentially obsolete or slow-moving inventory is made based on management analysis or inventory levels and future sales forecasts.
Notes Receivable, Officer
The Company records notes receivable when a recipient has issued a note to the Company in exchange for cash. The Company records as a
current asset, any portion of the note that is due in the subsequent twelve (12) months for the date of the balance sheet, and any payments
due in excess of twelve months of the balance sheet are classified as long term. Interest income, related party of $228 and $299 was
recorded for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, notes and interest receivable,
related party was $-0- and $18,063, respectively. Principal amounts due in the next 12 months of the balance sheet date are shown as a
current asset and amounts due after 12 months are shown as a long-term asset. The Company received payments of $18,311 of principal
and interest during the year ended December 31, 2017.
Intangible Assets
Costs for intangible assets are accounted for through the capitalization of those costs incurred in connection with developing or obtaining
such assets. Capitalized costs are included in intangible assets in the consolidated balance sheet. During the year ended December 31,
2017, the Company purchased the domain name www.innd.com from a third party for $3,000.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, and depreciation is provided by use of a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Company reviews property and equipment for potential impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts of assets may not be recoverable. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows:
Computer equipment

3 years

The Company's property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Computer equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Balance

$
$

December 31,
2017
2,651
(1,068)
1,583

$
$

December 31,
2016
2,651
(184)
2,467

Depreciation expense of $884 and $184 was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, respectively.
Investment in Undivided Interest in Real Estate
The Company accounts for its’ investment in undivided interest in real estate using the equity method, as the Company is severally liable
only for the indebtedness incurred with its interest in the property. The Company includes its allocated portion of net income or loss in
Other income (expense) in its Statement of Operations, with the offset to the equity investment account on the balance sheet. For the year
ended December 31, 2017, the Company recognized a loss of $1,378. As of December 31, 2017, the carrying value of the Company’s
investment in undivided interest in real estate was $1,224,903 (see Note 6).
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company measures assets and liabilities at fair value based on an expected exit price as defined by the authoritative guidance on fair
value measurements, which represents the amount that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability, as the case
may be, in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value may be based on assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability. The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements establishes a consistent framework for
measuring fair value on either a recurring or nonrecurring basis whereby inputs, used in valuation techniques, are assigned a hierarchical
level.
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The following are the hierarchical levels of inputs to measure fair value:
·
·

·

Level 1 - Observable inputs that reflect quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs reflect quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities; or inputs
that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company's assumptions incorporated in valuation techniques used to determine
fair value. These assumptions are required to be consistent with market participant assumptions that are reasonably available.

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets and liabilities, such as cash, prepaid expenses, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued expenses, certain notes payable and notes payable - related party, approximate their fair values because of the short
maturity of these instruments.
The following table represents the Company’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31,
2017, for each fair value hierarchy level:
December 31, 2017
Level I
Level II
Level III

Derivative
Liability
$
$
$

—
—
540,965

Total
$
$
$

—
—
540,965

Embedded Conversion Features
The Company evaluates embedded conversion features within convertible debt under ASC 815 "Derivatives and Hedging" to determine
whether the embedded conversion feature(s) should be bifurcated from the host instrument and accounted for as a derivative at fair value
with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. If the conversion feature does not require derivative treatment under ASC 815, the
instrument is evaluated under ASC 470-20 "Debt with Conversion and Other Options" for consideration of any beneficial conversion
feature.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company does not use derivative instruments to hedge exposures to cash flow, market, or foreign currency risks. The Company
evaluates all of it financial instruments, including stock purchase warrants, to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain
features that qualify as embedded derivatives. For derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as liabilities, the derivative
instrument is initially recorded at its fair value and is then re-valued at each reporting date, with changes in the fair value reported as
charges or credits to income.
For option-based simple derivative financial instruments, the Company uses the Monte Carlo simulations to value the derivative
instruments at inception and subsequent valuation dates. The classification of derivative instruments, including whether such instruments
should be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is re-assessed at the end of each reporting period.
Debt Issue Costs and Debt Discount
The Company may record debt issue costs and/or debt discounts in connection with raising funds through the issuance of debt. These costs
may be paid in the form of cash, or equity (such as warrants). These costs are amortized to interest expense through the maturity of the
debt. If a conversion of the underlying debt occurs prior to maturity a proportionate share of the unamortized amounts is immediately
expensed.
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Original Issue Discount
For certain convertible debt issued, the Company may provide the debt holder with an original issue discount. The original issue discount
would be recorded to debt discount, reducing the face amount of the note and is amortized to interest expense through the maturity of the
debt. If a conversion of the underlying debt occurs prior to maturity a proportionate share of the unamortized amounts is immediately
expensed.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition. ASC 605 requires that four basic criteria are
met (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery of products and services has occurred, (3) the fee is fixed or
determinable and (4) collectability is reasonably assured. The Company recognizes revenue during the period in which the services are
performed, or when the delivery of services and product occur. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company received and
recognized $100,000 of revenue related to the Store Expansion agreement, and $30,000 of income from the cancellation of the Marketing
and Store Expansion Agreements.
Deferred Revenue
The Company records deferred revenues from the Consulting Agreement when cash has been received, but the related services have not
been provided. Revenue will be recognized when the services are provided and the terms of the agreement have been fulfilled. As of
December 31, 2017, the Company has deferred revenue of $847,223 related to the Consulting Agreement. On May 26, 2017, the Company
and the Moores were named in an action filed that included a demand that all monies paid pursuant to the Consulting Agreement be
returned. The Company believes the claim is frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient cause for the Agreement to be
terminated (See Note 12). The Company has not recognized any revenue in 2017 from the Consulting Agreement as a result of this
litigation.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740-10, Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
to reflect the estimated future tax effects, calculated at the tax rate expected to be in effect at the time of realization. A valuation allowance
related to a deferred tax asset is recorded when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of the changes in tax laws and rates of the date of enactment.
ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold that a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements
and provides guidance on recognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition issues. Interest and penalties are classified as a component of interest and other expenses. To date, the Company has not been
assessed, nor paid, any interest or penalties.
Uncertain tax positions are measured and recorded by establishing a threshold for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Only tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the
effective date may be recognized or continue to be recognized.
Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The Company reports earnings (loss) per share in accordance with ASC 260, "Earnings per Share." Basic earnings (loss) per share is
computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock, common stock
equivalents and other potentially dilutive securities outstanding during the period. As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s outstanding
convertible debt is convertible into approximately 10,043,445 shares of common stock. This amount is not included in the computation of
dilutive loss per share because their impact is antidilutive. As of December 31, 2016, the Company did not have any outstanding common
stock equivalents or any other potentially dilutive securities.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB and the SEC did not have, or are not believed by management to have, a material
impact on the Company's present or future consolidated financial statements.
NOTE 3 – GOING CONCERN AND MANAGEMENT’S PLANS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. which
assumes the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. The Company
experienced a net loss of $1,913,332 for the year ended December 31, 2017. At December 31, 2017, the Company had a working capital
deficit of $1,709,346, and an accumulated deficit of $1,787,012. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to operate in the normal course of business. These consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or amounts and classification of liabilities that might
result from this uncertainty.
Through August 5, 2016, the Company was dependent on the Marketing Agreement with MFHC, (the Company and MFHC agreed to
cancel the Marketing Agreement, which generated approximately 48.3%, of the Company’s revenues for the year ended December 31,
2016, as a result of the sale by MFHC of substantially all of their assets) and is now dependent on the sale of our products and services to
third parties. On May 2, 2017, the Company received a demand that all monies paid pursuant to the Consulting Agreement be returned. On
May 26, 2017, the Company and the Moores were named in an action filed that includes a demand that all monies paid pursuant to the
Consulting Agreement be returned. The Company believes the claim is frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient
cause for the Agreement to be terminated (See Note 8). The Company has filed a countersuit for breach of contract, demanding that all
monies owed to it, pursuant to the Consulting Agreement, be paid, together with interest thereon.
Management’s Plans
The Company has begun to implement an industry encompassing revenue strategy, including the current revenue model to other major
sectors of the global hearing industry. The Company plans include generating revenues from 7 separate revenue streams. Each stream will
generate revenue and be poised for growth, increasing the Company’s market penetration.
NOTE 4 – NOTE RECEIVABLE, OFFICER
On April 1, and June 25, 2013, in exchange for two notes receivable, the Company loaned the President of the Company $10,000 and
$10,500, respectively. The terms of the notes include an interest rate of 1.5% per annum and the notes, as amended are due on their fifthyear anniversary, with quarterly payment beginning October 1, 2016. Interest income, related party of $228 and $299 was recorded for the
years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, respectively. The note and interest were paid in full during the year ended December 31, 2017.
As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, notes and interest receivable, related party was $-0- and $18,084, respectively.
NOTE 5 – ADVANCES PAYABLE, SHAREHOLDERS
Chief Executive Officer
During the year ended December 31, 2017, our CEO (stockholder) paid expenses of the Company and accounts payable on behalf of the
Company of $149,370. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company reimbursed the CEO $10,733 of the amount advanced. As
of December 31, 2017, the Company owed the President $138,637, which is included in Advances payable, stockholders on the
consolidated balance sheet included herein.
Chief Financial Officer
During the year ended December 31, 2017, our Chief Financial Officer (stockholder) made, in the aggregate, advances to the Company of
$14,500. These advances were due on demand and were paid back during the year ended December 31, 2017.
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Director
During the year ended December 31, 2017, our Chairman (stockholder) paid expenses of the Company and accounts payable on behalf of
the Company of $39,201. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company reimbursed the Chairman $1,000. As of December 31,
2017, the Company owed the Chairman $38,201, which is included in Advances payable, stockholders on the consolidated balance sheet
included herein.
NOTE 6 – NOTE PAYABLE, STOCKHOLDER
On December 29, 2017, our CEO (stockholder) loaned the Company $65,000. The note is due on demand and carries interest at 8% per
annum.
NOTE 7 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company loaned the CEO $20,500 during the year ended December 31, 2013 (see Note 4). The Company recorded interest income of
$228 and $299 for the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, respectively. The note and interest were paid in full during the year
ended December 31, 2017.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, our Chief Financial Officer (stockholder) made, in the aggregate, advances to the Company of
$14,500. These advances were paid back during the year ended December 31, 2017.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, our CEO (stockholder) paid expenses of the Company and accounts payable on behalf of the
Company of $149,370. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company reimbursed the CEO $10,733. As of December 31, 2017,
the Company owed the CEO $138,637, which is included in Advances payable, stockholders on the consolidated balance sheet included
herein.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, our Chairman (stockholder) paid expenses of the Company and accounts payable on behalf of
the Company of $39,201. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company reimbursed the Chairman $1,000. As of December 31,
2017, the Company owed the Chairman $38,201, which is included in Advances payable, stockholders on the consolidated balance sheet
included herein.
Pursuant to a Marketing Agreement (cancelled August 5, 2016), the Company provided marketing programs to promote and sell hearing
aid instruments and related devices to Moore Family Hearing Company (“MFHC”). MFHC owned and operated retail hearing aid stores.
Based on common control of MFHC and the Company, all transactions with MFHC are classified as related party transactions. On August
8, 2016, in consideration of $128,000 (the “Cancellation Fee”), MFHC and the Company agreed to cancel the Marketing Agreement as a
result of the sale by MFHC of substantially all of their assets. On August 11, 2016, MFHC paid $229,622 to the Company (inclusive of the
balance owed as of June 30, 2016, the Cancellation Fee and other related party activity).
Pursuant to the Marketing Agreement, beginning in January 2014, the monthly fee was increased from $2,500 to $3,200 per retail location.
For the year ended December 31, 2016 (through August 5, 2016), there were 20 stores resulting in revenue of $458,667. The Company has
offset the accounts receivable owed from MFHC for expenses of the Company that have been paid by MFHC. As a result of these
payments, in addition to MFHC’s payments to the Company during the year ended December 31, 2016, the balance due to MFHC as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $22,548 and $13,048, respectively.
On April 1, 2013, the Company entered into a five-year sublease agreement with MFHC to sublease approximately 729 square feet of
office space for $1,500 per month. The monthly rent reduced the amounts owed to the Company from MFHC for the marketing services
provided to MFHC. For the year ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, the Company expensed $1,500 and $13,500, respectively, related to
this lease.
On February 1, 2016, the Company entered into a one-year sublease agreement with MFHC to sublease approximately 2,119 square feet of
office space for $4,026 per month. The monthly rent reduced the amounts owed to the Company from MFHC for the marketing services
provided to MFHC. Effective April 30, 2016, MFHC released the Company from the sublease. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the
Company expensed $12,078 related to this lease.
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Prior to August 1, 2016, the Company’s CEO was being compensated from MFHC, as he also held a position with MFHC. During that time
the Company estimated the portion of the President’s salary that should be allocated to the Company, and subsequent to August 1, 2016,
the Company agreed to compensation of $225,000 per year. Effective August 1, 2016, the Company agreed to compensate our Chief
Financial Officer $125,000 per annum. On November 15, 2016, the Company entered into employment agreements with its CEO and CFO,
which includes annual base salaries of $225,000 and $125,000, respectively. The Company expensed $225,000 and $124,519 for the CEO
and CFO, for the year ended December 31, 2017, respectively, and $117,522 and $52,885, respectively, of expense for the CEO and CFO,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2017, the Company owes the CEO and CFO $4,327 and $40,385,
respectively for accrued and unpaid wages. The Company has also recorded payroll tax liability of $2,536 for the unpaid wages. These
amounts are included in Officer salaries payable on the balance sheets included herein.
In September 2016, the officers and directors of the Company formed a California Limited Liability Company (“LLC1”), for the purpose
of acquiring commercial real estate and other business activities. On December 24, 2016, LLC1 acquired two retail stores from the buyer of
the MFHC stores. On March 1, 2017, the Company entered into a twelve-month Marketing Agreement with each of the stores to provide
telemarketing and design and marketing services for $2,500 per month per store, resulting in $50,000 of revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company invoiced LLC1 $36,499, for the Company’s
production, printing and mailing services. As of December 31, 2017, LLC1 owes the Company $73,996. On May 9, 2017, the Company
and LLC1 purchased certain real property from an unaffiliated party (see Note 8). On June 14, 2017, the Company entered into a five-year
lease with LLC1 for approximately 6,944 square feet and a monthly rent of $12,000. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company
expensed $64,499 related to this lease and is included in Rent, related party, on the consolidated statement of operations, included herein.
In November 2016, the Company’s Chairman formed a California Limited Liability Company (“LLC2”), for the purpose of providing
consulting services to the Company. The Company entered into an agreement with LLC2, and paid LLC2 $375,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2016, for services performed and to be performed. Of the $375,000 amount paid, $241,667 was recognized as consulting
fees- stockholder for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the remaining $133,334 was recorded as deferred commissions- stockholder
as of December 31, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company paid LLC2 an additional $771,000 ($96,000 of which
reduced previous amounts owed) and expensed $808,334 ($60,000 as commissions for services performed and $748,334 as other expense)
due to uncertainty of future services being provided, based on the Complaint filed on May 26, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, the deferred
commissions-stockholder is $-0- (see Note 12).
On May 9, 2017, the Company and LLC1 purchased certain real property from an unaffiliated party. The Company and LLC1 have agreed
that the Company purchased and owns 49% of the building and LLC1 purchased and owns 51% of the building. The contracted purchase
price for the building was $2,420,000 and the total amount paid at closing was $2,501,783 including, fees, insurance, interest and real estate
taxes. The Company paid for their building interest by delivering cash at closing of $209,971 and being a co-borrower on a note in the
amount of $2,057,000, of which the Company has agreed with LLC1 to pay $1,007,930 (see Note 8).
NOTE 8– INVESTMENT IN UNDIVIDED INTEREST IN REAL ESTATE
On May 9, 2017, the Company and LLC1 purchased certain real property from an unaffiliated party. The Company and LLC1 have agreed
that the Company purchased and owns 49% of the building and LLC1 purchased and owns 51% of the building. The contracted purchase
price for the building was $2,420,000 and the total amount paid at closing was $2,501,783 including, fees, insurance, interest and real estate
taxes. The Company paid for their building interest by delivering cash at closing of $209,971 and being a co-borrower on a note in the
amount of $2,057,000, of which the Company has agreed with LLC1 to pay $1,007,930.
The allocated portion of the results in an equity method investment in a privately-held, related party, company are included in the
Company’s consolidated statements of operations. For the year ended December 31, 2017, a net loss of $1,378 is included in “Other
income (expense), net”. As of December 31, 2017, the carrying value of our investment in undivided interest in real estate was $1,224,903.
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The condensed balance sheet as of December 31, 2017 and the condensed statement of operation for the year ended December 31, 2017 for
the real property is as follows:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Land and Building, net
Other assets, net
Total assets

$

$

8,331
2,711
37,471
48,512
2,397,848
54,246
2,500,606

Current portion of mortgage payable
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Mortgage payable, long-term
Total liabilities
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$

$

37,792
19,828
57,620
2,004,440
2,062,060
438,546
2,500,606

Rental income
Expenses:
Property taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Other
Interest expense
Total expenses
Net loss

$

154,454

$

16,752
27,229
6,253
17,829
15,083
74,120
157,266
(2,812)

NOTE 9– NOTE PAYABLE - UNDIVIDED INTEREST IN REAL ESTATE
On May 9, 2017, the Company and LLC1 purchased certain real property from an unaffiliated party. The Company and LLC1 have agreed
that the Company purchased and owns 49% of the building and LLC1 purchased and owns 51% of the building. The contracted purchase
price for the building was $2,420,000 and the total amount paid at closing was $2,501,783 including, fees, insurance, interest and real estate
taxes. The Company is a co-borrower on a $2,057,000 Small Business Administration Note (the “SBA Note”). The SBA Note carries a 25year term, with a 6% per annum interest rate and is secured by a first position Deed of Trust and business assets located at the property. The
Company initially recorded a liability of $1,007,930 for its portion of the SBA Note, with the offset being to Investment in undivided
interest in real estate on the balance sheet presented herein. As of December 31, 2017, the current and long-term portion of the SBA Note is
$18,518 and $982,176, respectively. Future principal payments for the Company’s portion are:
Year
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total

$

$

Amount
18,518
19,660
20,708
22,150
23,516
896,142
1,000,694
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NOTE 10– CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
On October 11, 2017, the Company completed the closing of a private placement financing transaction (the “Transaction”) with a thirdparty investor, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated October 5, 2017. Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, the investor purchased a 12% Convertible Promissory Note (the “Note”), dated October 5, 2017, in the principal amount of
$48,000. On October 11, 2017, the Company received proceeds of $45,000 which excluded transaction costs, fees, and expenses of $3,000.
Principal and interest is due and payable July 15, 2018, and the Note is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time
after one hundred eighty (180) days, at the average of the two lowest closing bid prices during the ten (10) prior trading days from which a
notice of conversion is received by the Company multiplied by sixty-five percent (65%), representing a thirty-five percent (35%) discount.
The embedded conversion feature included in the note resulted in an initial debt discount of $40,300, and an initial derivative liability of
$40,300. For the year ended December 31, 2017, amortization of the debt discount of $12,561 was charged to interest expense. The
Company also recorded a debt issue discount of $3,000 and has amortized $935 to interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2017.
As of December 31, 2017, the note balance is $48,000, with a carrying value of $18,196, net of unamortized discounts of $29,804.
On November 10, 2017, the Company issued a convertible promissory note (the “Note”), with a face value of $299,000, maturing on
January 12, 2019, and stated interest of 10% to a third-party investor. The note is convertible at any time after ninety (90) days of the
funding of the note into a variable number of the Company's common stock, based on a conversion ratio of 65% of the lowest trading price
for the 20 days prior to conversion. The note was funded on November 10, 2017, when the Company received proceeds of $250,000, after
disbursements for the lender’s transaction costs, fees and expenses. The Note also requires daily payments of $700 per day via ACH
through January 12, 2019, when all unpaid principal and interest is due. The embedded conversion feature included in the note resulted in
an initial debt discount of $250,000, an initial derivative expense of $213,549 and an initial derivative liability of $463,549. For the year
ended December 31, 2017, amortization of the debt discount of $41,417 was charged to interest expense. The Company also recorded an
original issue discount and debt issue discount of $49,000 and has amortized $8,118 to interest expense for the year ended December 31,
2017. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company made principal payments of $18,200 and as of December 31, 2017, the
note balance is $280,800 (of which $112,800 is classified as long- term liability), with a carrying value of $86,727 (of which $12,587 is
classified as long-term liability), net of unamortized discounts of $249,465 (of which $100,213 is classified as long-term liability).
On December 12, 2017, the Company completed the closing of a private placement financing transaction (the “Transaction”) when a thirdparty investor purchased a convertible note (the “Convertible Note”). The Convertible Note carries a 10% annual interest rate and is in the
principal amount of $50,000. Principal and interest is due and payable December 12, 2018, and the Note is convertible into shares of the
Company’s common stock at any time after one hundred eighty (180) days, at a conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) equal to seventyfive percent (75%) of the average closing price of the Company’s common stock for the ten (10) days immediately preceding the
conversion, representing a twenty-five percent (25%) discount. The embedded conversion feature included in the note resulted in an initial
debt discount of $13,207, and an initial derivative liability of $13,207. For the year ended December 31, 2017, amortization of the debt
discount of $404 was charged to interest expense. As of December 31, 2017, the note balance is $50,000, with a carrying value of $37,197,
net of unamortized discounts of $12,803.
A summary of the convertible notes payable balance as of December 31, 2017, is as follows:

Principal balance
Unamortized discount
Ending balance, net

Current portion
266,000
(191,860)
$
74,140
$

Long-term portion
112,800
(100,213)
$
12,587
$

$
$

Total
378,800
(292,073)
86,727

The following is a roll-forward of the Company’s convertible notes and related discounts for the year ended December 31, 2017:

Balance at January 1, 2017
New issuances
Cash payments
Amortization
Balance at December 31, 2017

Principal Balance
-0397,000
(18,200)
—
$
378,800
$
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Debt Discounts
-0(355,507)
—
63,434
$
(292,073)
$

Total
$

$

-041,493
(18,200)
63,434
86,727

NOTE 11 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES
The Company determined that the conversion features of the convertible notes represented embedded derivatives since the Notes are
convertible into a variable number of shares upon conversion. Accordingly, the notes are not considered to be conventional debt under
EITF 00-19 and the embedded conversion feature is bifurcated from the debt host and accounted for as a derivative liability. Accordingly,
the fair value of these derivative instruments is recorded as liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet with the corresponding amount
recorded as a discount to each Note, with any excess of the fair value of the derivative component over the face amount of the note
recorded as an expense on the issue date. Such discounts are amortized from the date of issuance to the maturity dates of the Notes. The
change in the fair value of the derivative liabilities are recorded in other income or expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of
operations at the end of each period, with the offset to the derivative liabilities on the balance sheet. See Note 10.
The Company valued the derivative liabilities at issuance and December 31, 2017, at $517,056 and $540,965, respectively. The Company
used the Monte Carlo simulation valuation model with the following assumptions as of December 31, 2017, risk-free interest rates from
1.53% to 1.76% and volatility of 303% to 355%.
A summary of the activity related to derivative liabilities for the year ended on December 31, 2017, is as follows:
December 31,
2017
Beginning Balance
Initial Derivative Liability
Fair Value Change
Reclassification for principal payments
Ending Balance

$

$

-0517,056
52,125
(28,216)
540,965

Derivative liability expense of $265,674 for the year ended December 31, 2017, consisted of the initial derivative expense of $213,549 and
the above fair value change of $52,125.
NOTE 12– COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Agreements
On April 1, 2013, the Company entered into a five-year sublease agreement with MFHC to sublease approximately 729 square feet of
office space for $1,500 per month. The monthly rent reduced the amounts owed to the Company from MFHC for the marketing services
provided to MFHC.
On February 1, 2014, the Company entered into a two-year sublease agreement for approximately 2,119 square feet of office space in
Roseville, Ca, for $3,000 per month.
On February 1, 2017, the Company and MFHC terminated any remaining subleases with MFHC and the Company agreed to a month-tomonth lease directly with the landlord for $8,436 per month.
On June 14, 2017, the company entered into a five-year lease with LLC1 for approximately 6,944 square feet and a monthly rent of
$12,000.
Future principal payments for the Company’s portion are:
Year
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Total

$

$

Amount
144,000
144,000
144,000
144,000
66,000
642,000
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Consulting Agreements
On August 5, 2016, the Company along with Mark Moore (“Mark”, the Company’s chairman), Matthew Moore (“Matthew”, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer) and Kim Moore (“Kim”, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer) entered into a Store Expansion
Consulting Agreement (the “Expansion Agreement”) Mark, Matthew and Kim are herein referred to collectively as the Moores. Pursuant to
the Expansion Agreement, the Company and the Moores were responsible for all physical plant and marketing details for new store
openings during the initial term of six-months. The Expansion Agreement was cancelled on January 6, 2017. The Company’s client has
decided to do their own marketing in-house and eliminate this out-sourced contract and has decided to delay the opening of any new stores.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has received and recognized $160,000 in other income, net, for payments received
for the cancellation of the Expansion Agreement.
Also on August 5, 2016, the Company and the Moores entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with the same
party as the store Expansion Agreement. Under the Consulting Agreement, including the Non-Compete provision covering a ten- mile
radius of any retail store, the Company and the Moores were to provide unlimited licensing of the Intela-Hear brand name, exclusive access
to the Aware Aural Rehab Program within 10 miles of retail stores, exclusive territory of all services within 10 miles of retail stores and 40
hours per month of various consulting services. The Consulting Agreement was to continue until January 31, 2019, unless terminated for
cause, as defined in the Consulting Agreement. On May 2, 2017, the Company received a demand letter threatening litigation unless all
monies paid pursuant to the Consulting Agreement are returned. On May 26, 2017, a complaint (the “Complaint”) was filed against the
Company and the Moores, which includes a request for rescission of the Consulting Agreement. The Company believes the Complaint by
the third party is frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient cause for the Agreement to be terminated. The Company
has filed a countersuit against this third party for breach of contract so that it may recover the amounts owed under the Consulting
Agreement, however, effective January 1, 2017, the Company has not recognized revenue from the Consulting Agreement, and
accordingly, $847,223 is classified as deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets presented herein.
Effective August 5, 2016, the Company entered into a Marketing Agreement (the “Marketing Agreement”) with MFHC. Pursuant to the
Marketing Agreement, the Company will provide marketing concepts and designs to promote its’ products and use the Company’s
advertising services for an initial six-month period. Pursuant to the Marketing Agreement and the current structure, the Company will
receive $50,000 per month. On January 6, 2017, the Marketing Agreement was cancelled.
On November 17, 2016, the Company entered into an Agreement with a Limited Liability Company, whose sole member is the Company’s
Chairman. Pursuant to the Agreement, consulting services are to be provided to the Company related to the physical plant and marketing of
new store openings for hearing aid dispensaries as well as the marketing and general operations of hearing aid dispensary business. For the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Company paid LLC2 an additional $771,000 ($96,000 of which reduced previous amounts owed) and
expensed $808,334 ($60,000 as commissions for services performed and $748,334 as other expense) due to uncertainty of future services
being provided, based on the Complaint filed on May 26, 2017. A summary of the activity for the year ended December 31, 2017, is as
follows:
Deferred commissions-stockholder
Beginning balance
Payments made
Reduction of commissions owed
Commission expense recorded
Other expense recorded
Ending balance

2017
133,334
771,000
(96,000)
(60,000)
(748,334)
—

$

$

On April 3, 2017, the Company entered into a one (1) year Financial Consulting Agreement (the “FC Agreement”), with a Consultant (the
“FC Consultant”). Pursuant to the FC Agreement, the FC Consultant will assist the Company in its’ public company filing requirements.
The Company has agreed to compensate the FC Consultant $4,500 per month and to issue 333,334 shares of restricted common stock of
the Company. The Company valued the shares at $0.30 per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement) and
will amortize the cost over the one-year life of the agreement, accordingly, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $75,000
for the year ended December 31, 2017, and there remains a $25,000 balance of deferred stock compensation (in the equity section of the
balance sheet herein) that will be amortized over the remaining term of the agreement. Under certain circumstances, the monthly fee can be
reduced to $3,500 after the first six months of the FC Agreement. The FC Consultant was previously providing services for the Company.
For the years ended December 31, 2017, and 2016, the Company expensed fees to the FC Consultant of $54,000 and $47,300 respectively.
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On April 7, 2017, the Company entered into a Consulting and Representation Agreement (the “CR Agreement”), with a consultant (the
“CR Consultant”). Pursuant to the CR Agreement the CR Consultant will assist the Company to broaden its visibility to the investing
public. The Company has agreed to compensate the CR Consultant $700 per month and to issue 300,000 restricted shares of the
Company’s common stock to the CR Consultant. The Company valued the shares at $0.30 per share (the market price of the common stock
on the date of the agreement) and recorded stock compensation expense of $90,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017. The initial term
was for fifteen (15) days with an automatic extension for one hundred seventy (170) days.
On August 18, 2017, the Company signed a Letter of Intent (the “LOI”) to acquire all of the outstanding equity interests (the “Stock”) of
AUDserv, Inc. (“AUDserve”), a Delaware corporation and any and all of its affiliates and/or subsidiaries. AUDserv operates three
divisions, predominantly in the business-to-business sector, including a highly scalable SaaS based practice management platform, and key
infrastructure. The LOI contemplated a future executed agreement calling for the Company to acquire the AUDserv Stock in exchange for
Company stock worth $1,000,000 at the date of closing, or a minimum of 2,898,550 shares of common stock, subject to an increase in the
number of shares based on the market price at the closing. Among the conditions of a contemplated closing is that the Company is required
to pay all debts and payables of AUDserve at the time of closing, unless other agreements are reached with such creditors, with the
Company providing sufficient evidence to the satisfaction of the creditors. The LOI, as amended, contemplated a closing date no later than
March 31, 2018, which did not occur and the parties have been released from their obligations under the LOI.
Effective December 1, 2017, the Company entered into a one-year Marketing Services Agreement (the “MSA”). Pursuant to the terms of
the MSA, the Company will receive consulting and advisory services regarding the implementation of marketing programs, including the
design and creation of commercial websites and commercialization of products through social media or other marketing methods. The
Company will pay consideration for the services of $5,000 cash and $5,000 of common stock each month. The Company will issue the
number of shares of common stock equal to a twenty-five percent (25%) discount to the lowest closing price of the common stock for the
five (5) last trading days of the common stock for that month. The Company recorded 102,564 shares of common stock to be issued as of
December 31, 2017 and recorded $8,974 of stock-based compensation expense (based on the market price on the date of the agreement) for
the year ended December 31, 2017. The shares were issued on February 27, 2018.
On December 1, 2017, the Company entered into a three-month Consulting and Marketing Agreement (the “CMA”) with a third party.
Pursuant to the terms of the CMA the Company will compensate the third-party $15,000 per month in consideration for consulting services
related to development of business plans, corporate strategy and marketing.
On December 8, 2017, the Company entered in a month to month contract regarding investor relation services with a third-party for $3,600
per month beginning January 1, 2018.
Legal Matters
On May 26, 2017, Helix Hearing Care (California), Inc. a California corporation (“Helix”), filed a complaint (the “Complaint”) against the
InnerScope and the Moores, in the Circuit Court of the 11th Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida, that includes a
rescission of the Consulting Agreement, on the basis that an injunction against certain Officers and Directors renders the Consulting
Agreement impossible to perform. InnerScope was not named as an enjoined party in such previous litigation, and the services
contemplated under the Consulting Agreement are not within the scope of the injunction, thus InnerScope believes the accusation by the
third party is frivolous and without merit, as well as not providing sufficient cause for the Agreement to be terminated.
InnerScope and the Moores filed their Answer and Affirmative Defenses to the Complaint on June 27, 2017. On the same date,
InnerScope, the Moores, and MFHC filed a counterclaim. On February 27, 2018, the Counterclaim was amended to include four claims for
breach of contract, one claim for anticipatory breach of contract, one claim for negligent misrepresentation, and one claim for account
stated. Helix’s response to the Amended Counterclaim is due on April 5, 2018. The written responses to Helix’s discovery is due on April
25, 2018.
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NOTE 13 – STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock
The Company has 225,000,000 authorized shares of $0.0001 common stock. As of December 31, 2017, there are 61,539,334 shares of
common stock outstanding.
On April 3, 2017, the Company issued 333,334 shares of restricted common stock to a consultant. The Company valued the shares at $0.30
per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement) and will amortize the cost over the one-year life of the
agreement, accordingly, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $75,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017, and there
remains a balance of $25,000 of deferred stock compensation (in the equity section of the balance sheet herein) that will be amortized over
the remaining term of the agreement.
On April 7, 2017, the Company issued 300,000 shares of restricted common stock to a consultant. The Company valued the shares at $0.30
per share (the market price of the common stock on the date of the agreement) and recorded stock compensation expense of $90,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2017.
Common Stock to be issued
On December 31, 2017, the Company recorded 102,564 shares of common stock to be issued to a marketing consultant (see Note 12) and
recorded $8,974 of stock-based compensation expense (based on the market price on the date of the agreement) for the year ended
December 31, 2017. The shares were certificated on February 27, 2018.
Preferred Stock
The Company has 25,000,000 authorized shares of $0.0001 preferred stock. As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, there were no shares of
preferred stock issued and outstanding.
NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On February 5, 2018, the Company completed the closing of a private placement financing transaction whereby a third-party investor
purchased a convertible note. The Convertible Note carries a 10% annual interest rate and is in the principal amount of $35,000. Principal
and interest is due and payable February 5, 2019, and the Note is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time after
one hundred eighty (180) days, at a conversion price equal to seventy-five percent (75%) of the average closing price of the Company’s
common stock for the ten (10) days immediately preceding the Conversion Date, representing a twenty-five percent (25%) discount.
On February 9, 2018, the Company completed the closing of a private placement financing transaction whereby a third-party investor,
pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated February 8, 2018. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the
investor purchased a 12% Convertible Promissory Note, dated February 8, 2017, in the principal amount of $58,300. On February 9, 2018,
the Company received proceeds of $50,000 which excluded transaction costs, fees, and expenses of $8,300. Principal and interest is due and
payable November 20, 2018, and the Note is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time after one hundred eighty
(180) days, at the average of the two lowest closing bid prices during the twenty (20) prior trading days from which a notice of conversion
is received by the Company multiplied by seventy-five percent (75%), representing a twenty-five percent (25%) discount.
On February 27, 2018, the Company entered into a Business Loan Agreement (the “BLA”) with a third- party, whereby the Company
received $32,600 on March 1, 2018. The BLA requires the Company to make twelve monthly payments of principal and interest of $3,613
per month.
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On March 2, 2018, the Company completed the closing of a private placement financing transaction whereby a third-party investor
purchased a convertible note. The Convertible Note carries a 10% annual interest rate and is in the principal amount of $50,000. Principal
and interest is due and payable March 2, 2019, and the Note is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time after one
hundred eighty (180) days, at a conversion price equal to seventy-five percent (75%) of the average closing price of the Company’s
common stock for the ten (10) days immediately preceding the Conversion Date, representing a twenty-five percent (25%) discount.
On March 7, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with a third-party to provide financial, management consulting and advisory
and due diligence related services. The one-month agreement required a non-refundable deposit of $9,500, which was paid in March, 2018.
On March 26, 2018, the Company completed the closing of a private placement financing transaction whereby a third-party investor
purchased a convertible note. The Convertible Note carries a 10% annual interest rate and is in the principal amount of $25,000. Principal
and interest is due and payable March 26, 2019, and the Note is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time after
one hundred eighty (180) days, at a conversion price equal to seventy-five percent (75%) of the average closing price of the Company’s
common stock for the ten (10) days immediately preceding the Conversion Date, representing a twenty-five percent (25%) discount.
On March 27, 2018, the Company completed the closing of a private placement financing transaction whereby a third-party investor
purchased a convertible note. The Convertible Note carries a 10% annual interest rate and is in the principal amount of $50,000. Principal
and interest is due and payable March 27, 2019, and the Note is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time after
one hundred eighty (180) days, at a conversion price equal to seventy-five percent (75%) of the average closing price of the Company’s
common stock for the ten (10) days immediately preceding the Conversion Date, representing a twenty-five percent (25%) discount.
From January 1, 2018, through the date of this report, the Company’s CEO loaned the Company $27,500 and the Company repaid $1,000.
As of the date of this report the outstanding loan balance to the Company’s CEO is $91,500.
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Exhibit 10.23

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
T h i s SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
(the “Agreement”), dated as of February 8, 2018, by and between
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corpora on, with its address at 2151 Professional Drive, 2 nd Floor, Roseville,
CA 95661 (the “Company”), andPOWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
, a Virginia corpora on, with its address at 111 Great Neck
Road, Suite 216, Great Neck, NY 11021 (the “Buyer”).
WHEREAS:
A. The Company and the Buyer are execu ng and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemp on from
securi es registra on aﬀorded by the rules and regula ons as promulgated by the United States Securi es and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); and
B. Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and condi ons set forth in this
Agreement a conver ble note of the Company, in the form a ached hereto as Exhibit A, in the aggregate principal amount of
$58,300.00 (including $5,300.00 of Original Issue Discount) (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a
dividend thereon or otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), conver ble into shares
of common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the
limitations and conditions set forth in such Note.
NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
1. Purchase and Sale of Note.
a. Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as deﬁned below), the Company shall issue and sell to the
Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth immediately below
the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.
b. Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as deﬁned below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the purchase price
for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as deﬁned below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire transfer of immediately
available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s wri en wiring instruc ons, against delivery of the Note in
the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages
hereto, and (ii) the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of
such Purchase Price.
c. Closing Date. Subject to the sa sfac on (or wri en waiver) of the condi ons thereto set forth in
Sec on 6 and Sec on 7 below, the date and me of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement (the
“Closing Date”) shall be 12:00 noon, Eastern Standard Time on or about February 9, 2018, or such other mutually agreed upon
me. The closing of the transac ons contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date at such
location as may be agreed to by the parties.
2. Buyer’s Representations and Warranties. The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:
a. Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note (such shares of Common Stock being collectively
referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collec vely with the Note, the “Securi es”) for its own account and not with
a present view towards the public sale or distribu on thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or exempted from
registration under the 1933 Act.
b. Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is deﬁned in Rule
501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”).
c. Reliance on Exemp ons. The Buyer understands that the Securi es are being oﬀered and sold to it
in reliance upon speciﬁc exemp ons from the registra on requirements of United States federal and state securi es laws and
that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the representa ons, warran es,
agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such
exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities.

d. Information. The Company has not disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic informa on and
will not disclose such informa on unless such informa on is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly following such
disclosure to the Buyer.
e. Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, un l such me as the Conversion Shares have
been registered under the 1933 Act; or may be sold pursuant to an applicable exemp on from registra on, the Conversion
Shares may bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form:
"THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR UNDER ANY STATE
SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE PLEDGED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, HYPOTHECATED OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED UNLESS (1) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WITH RESPECT THERETO IS
EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR (2)
THE ISSUER OF SUCH SECURITIES RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER OF SUCH
SECURITIES, WHICH COUNSEL AND OPINION ARE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE ISSUER’S
TRANSFER AGENT, THAT SUCH SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, HYPOTHECATED
OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS."
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a cer ﬁcate without such legend to the
holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securi es laws, (a) such
Security is registered for sale under an eﬀec ve registra on statement ﬁled under the 1933 Act or otherwise may be sold
pursuant to an exemp on from registra on without any restric on as to the number of securi es as of a par cular date that
can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transac ons, to the eﬀect that a public sale or transfer of such Security
may be made without registra on under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company so that the sale or
transfer is eﬀected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securi es, including those represented by a cer ﬁcate(s) from which the legend
has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any. In the event that the Company
does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securi es pursuant to an
exemption from registration, such as Rule 144, at the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2
of the Note.
f. Authoriza on; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This Agreement
has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement cons tutes a valid and binding agreement of
the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms.
3. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:
a. Organiza on and Qualiﬁca on. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as deﬁned below), if any,
is a corpora on duly organized, validly exis ng and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdic on in which it is
incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its proper es and to carry on
its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. “Subsidiaries” means any corpora on or other
organiza on, whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, any equity or other
ownership interest.
b. Authoriza on; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to
enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transac ons contemplated hereby and thereby and
to issue the Securi es, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execu on and delivery of this Agreement, the
Note by the Company and the consumma on by it of the transac ons contemplated hereby and thereby (including without
limita on, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reserva on for issuance of the Conversion Shares issuable upon
conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors and no further consent or
authoriza on of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required, (iii) this Agreement has been duly
executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representa ve, and such authorized representa ve is the true and
oﬃcial representa ve with authority to sign this Agreement and the other documents executed in connec on herewith and
bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement cons tutes, and upon execu on and delivery by the Company of the
Note, each of such instruments will cons tute, a legal, valid and binding obliga on of the Company enforceable against the
Company in accordance with its terms.
c. Capitalization. As of the date hereof, the authorized common stock of the Company consists of
225,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of which 61,539,334 shares are issued and

outstanding; and no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to securi es (other than the Note) exercisable for, or
conver ble into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock and 9,630,678 shares are reserved for issuance upon conversion
of the Note. All of such outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully
paid and non-assessable. .
d. Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance and, upon
conversion of the Note in accordance with its respec ve terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and free
from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be subject to preemptive rights or
other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability upon the holder thereof.
e. No Conflicts. The execu on, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Note by the Company
and the consumma on by the Company of the transac ons contemplated hereby and thereby (including, without limita on,
the issuance and reserva on for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conﬂict with or result in a viola on of any
provision of the Cer ﬁcate of Incorpora on or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conﬂict with, or result in a breach of any provision of,
or cons tute a default (or an event which with no ce or lapse of me or both could become a default) under, or give to others
any rights of termina on, amendment, accelera on or cancella on of, any agreement, indenture, patent, patent license or
instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a viola on of any law, rule, regula on,
order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securi es laws and regula ons and regula ons of any self-regulatory
organiza ons to which the Company or its securi es are subject) applicable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by
which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or aﬀected (except for such conﬂicts, defaults,
termina ons, amendments, accelera ons, cancella ons and viola ons as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a
Material Adverse Eﬀect). The businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and shall not be
conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securi es, in viola on of any law, ordinance or regula on of any
governmental en ty. “Material Adverse Eﬀect” means any material adverse eﬀect on the business, opera ons, assets, ﬁnancial
condi on or prospects of the Company or its Subsidiaries, if any, taken as a whole, or on the transac ons contemplated hereby
or by the agreements or instruments to be entered into in connection herewith.
f. SEC Documents; Financial Statements. The Company has ﬁled all reports, schedules, forms,
statements and other documents required to be ﬁled by it with the SEC pursuant to the repor ng requirements of the
Securi es Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the foregoing ﬁled prior to the date hereof and all exhibits
included therein and ﬁnancial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to such documents)
incorporated by reference therein, being hereina er referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”). Upon wri en request the
Company will deliver to the Buyer true and complete copies of the SEC Documents, except for such exhibits and incorporated
documents. As of their respec ve dates or if amended, as of the dates of the amendments, the SEC Documents complied in all
material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules and regula ons of the SEC promulgated thereunder
applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the me they were ﬁled with the SEC, contained any
untrue statement of a material fact or omi ed to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to
make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. None of the
statements made in any such SEC Documents is, or has been, required to be amended or updated under applicable law (except
for such statements as have been amended or updated in subsequent ﬁlings prior the date hereof). As of their respec ve dates
or if amended, as of the dates of the amendments, the ﬁnancial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents
complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accoun ng requirements and the published rules and regula ons
of the SEC with respect thereto. Such ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally
accepted accoun ng principles, consistently applied, during the periods involved and fairly present in all material respects the
consolidated ﬁnancial posi on of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated
results of their opera ons and cash ﬂows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal
year-end audit adjustments). The Company is subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act.
g. Absence of Certain Changes. Since September 30, 2017, except as set forth in the SEC Documents,
there has been no material adverse change and no material adverse development in the assets, liabili es, business, proper es,
opera ons, ﬁnancial condi on, results of opera ons, prospects or 1934 Act repor ng status of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.
h. Absence of Li ga on. Except as set forth in the SEC Documents, there is no ac on, suit, claim,
proceeding, inquiry or inves ga on before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organiza on or
body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or aﬀec ng the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries, or their oﬃcers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a Material Adverse Eﬀect. The
Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.
i. No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its aﬃliates, nor any person ac ng on its or

their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any oﬀers or sales in any security or solicited any oﬀers to buy any security under
circumstances that would require registra on under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securi es to the Buyer. The issuance
of the Securi es to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s securi es (past, current or
future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its securities.
j. No Brokers. The Company has taken no ac on which would give rise to any claim by any person for
brokerage commissions, transac on fees or similar payments rela ng to this Agreement or the transac ons contemplated
hereby.
k. No Investment Company. The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the Securi es as
contemplated by this Agreement will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the Investment
Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not controlled by an Investment Company.
l. Breach of Representa ons and Warran es by the Company. If the Company breaches any of the
representa ons or warran es set forth in this Sec on 3, and in addi on to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant
to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under Section 3.4 of the Note.
4. COVENANTS.
a. Best Efforts. The Company shall use its best eﬀorts to sa sfy mely each of the condi ons described
in Section 7 of this Agreement.
b. Form D; Blue Sky Laws. The Company agrees to mely make any ﬁlings required by federal and state
laws as a result of the closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
c. Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds for general working capital purposes.
d. Expenses. At the Closing, the Company’s obliga on with respect to the transac ons contemplated
by this Agreement is to reimburse Buyer’ expenses shall be $3,000.00 for Buyer’s legal fees and due diligence fee.
e. Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneﬁcially owns any Note, the Company shall maintain
its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substan ally all of the Company’s assets, except with the prior wri en consent
of the Buyer.
f. Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this Sec on 4, and
in addi on to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an event of default
under Section 3.4 of the Note.
g. Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act. So long as the Buyer beneﬁcially owns the Note, the Company
shall comply with the repor ng requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall con nue to be subject to the repor ng
requirements of the 1934 Act.
h. Right of First Refusal. Unless it shall have ﬁrst delivered to the Buyer, at least forty eight (48) hours
prior to the closing of such Future Oﬀering (as deﬁned herein), wri en no ce describing the proposed Future Oﬀering (“ROFR
No ce”), including the terms and condi ons thereof, iden ty of the proposed purchaser and proposed deﬁni ve
documenta on to be entered into in connec on therewith, and providing the Buyer an op on during the forty eight (48) hour
period following delivery of such no ce to purchase the securi es being oﬀered in the Future Oﬀering on the same terms as
contemplated by such Future Oﬀering (the limita ons referred to in this sentence and the preceding sentence are collec vely
referred to as the “Right of First Refusal”), the Company will not conduct any equity (or debt with an equity component)
ﬁnancing in an amount less than $150,000 (“Future Oﬀering(s)”) during the period beginning on the Closing Date and ending
nine (9) months following the Closing Date. In the event the terms and condi ons of a proposed Future Oﬀering are amended
in any respect a er delivery of the no ce to the Buyer concerning the proposed Future Oﬀering, the Company shall deliver a
new no ce to the Buyer describing the amended terms and condi ons of the proposed Future Oﬀering and the Buyer
therea er shall have an op on during the forty eight (48) hour period following delivery of such new no ce to purchase its pro
rata share of the securi es being oﬀered on the same terms as contemplated by such proposed Future Oﬀering, as amended.
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, any subsequent oﬀer by an investor, or an aﬃliate of such
investor, identified on an ROFR Notice is subject to this Section 4(h) and the Right of First Refusal.
5. Transfer Agent Instruc ons. The Company shall issue irrevocable instruc ons to its transfer agent to issue
cer ﬁcates, registered in the name of the Buyer or its nominee, for the Conversion Shares in such amounts as speciﬁed from

me to me by the Buyer to the Company upon conversion of the Note in accordance with the terms thereof (the “Irrevocable
Transfer Agent Instruc ons”). In the event that the Company proposes to replace its transfer agent, the Company shall
provide, prior to the eﬀec ve date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instruc ons in a form as
ini ally delivered pursuant to this Agreement (including but not limited to the provision to irrevocably reserve shares of
Common Stock in the Reserved Amount as such term is deﬁned in the Note) signed by the successor transfer agent to
Company and the Company. Prior to registra on of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the
Conversion Shares may be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration, all such certificates shall bear the restrictive legend
speciﬁed in Sec on 2(e) of this Agreement. The Company warrants that: (i) no instruc on other than the Irrevocable Transfer
Agent Instruc ons referred to in this Sec on 5, will be given by the Company to its transfer agent and that the Securi es shall
otherwise be freely transferable on the books and records of the Company as and to the extent provided in this Agreement
and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer agent not to transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in
transferring (or issuing)(electronically or in cer ﬁcated form) any cer ﬁcate for Conversion Shares to be issued to the Buyer
upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will
not fail to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from
removing) any restric ve legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instruc ons in respect thereof) on any cer ﬁcate for any
Conversion Shares issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the
Note and/or this Agreement. If the Buyer provides the Company and the Company’s transfer, at the cost of the Buyer, with an
opinion of counsel in form, substance and scope customary for opinions in comparable transac ons, to the eﬀect that a public
sale or transfer of such Securi es may be made without registra on under the 1933 Act, the Company shall permit the
transfer, and, in the case of the Conversion Shares, promptly instruct its transfer agent to issue one or more cer ﬁcates, free
from restric ve legend, in such name and in such denomina ons as speciﬁed by the Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a
breach by it of its obliga ons hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vi a ng the intent and purpose of the
transac ons contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its
obliga ons under this Sec on 5 may be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company
of the provisions of this Sec on, that the Buyer shall be en tled, in addi on to all other available remedies, to an injunc on
restraining any breach and requiring immediate transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any
bond or other security being required.
6. Condi ons to the Company’s Obliga on to Sell. The obliga on of the Company hereunder to issue and sell
the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is subject to the sa sfac on, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following
condi ons thereto, provided that these condi ons are for the Company’s sole beneﬁt and may be waived by the Company at
any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Company.
b. The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b) above.
c. The representa ons and warran es of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material respects as
of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at that me (except for representa ons and warran es
that speak as of a speciﬁc date), and the Buyer shall have performed, sa sﬁed and complied in all material respects with the
covenants, agreements and condi ons required by this Agreement to be performed, sa sﬁed or complied with by the Buyer at
or prior to the Closing Date.
d. No li ga on, statute, rule, regula on, execu ve order, decree, ruling or injunc on shall have been
enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdic on or any selfregulatory organiza on having authority over the ma ers contemplated hereby which prohibits the consumma on of any of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
7. Condi ons to The Buyer’s Obliga on to Purchase. The obliga on of the Buyer hereunder to purchase the
Note at the Closing is subject to the sa sfac on, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following condi ons, provided
that these conditions are for the Buyer’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Buyer at any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Buyer.
b. The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer the duly executed Note (in such denomina ons as
the Buyer shall request) in accordance with Section 1(b) above.
c. The Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instruc ons, in form and substance sa sfactory to the Buyer, shall
have been delivered to and acknowledged in writing by the Company’s Transfer Agent.

d. The representa ons and warran es of the Company shall be true and correct in all material respects
as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at such me (except for representa ons and warran es
that speak as of a speciﬁc date) and the Company shall have performed, sa sﬁed and complied in all material respects with the
covenants, agreements and condi ons required by this Agreement to be performed, sa sﬁed or complied with by the
Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a cer ﬁcate or cer ﬁcates, executed by the chief
execu ve oﬃcer of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing eﬀect and as to such other ma ers as may be
reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited to cer ﬁcates with respect to the Board of Directors’ resolu ons
relating to the transactions contemplated hereby.
e. No li ga on, statute, rule, regula on, execu ve order, decree, ruling or injunc on shall have been
enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdic on or any selfregulatory organiza on having authority over the ma ers contemplated hereby which prohibits the consumma on of any of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
f. No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Eﬀect
on the Company including but not limited to a change in the 1934 Act repor ng status of the Company or the failure of the
Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations.
g. The Conversion Shares shall have been authorized for quota on on an exchange or electronic
quota on system and trading in the Common Stock on such exchange or electronic quota on system shall not have been
suspended by the SEC or an exchange or electronic quotation system.
h. The Buyer shall have received an oﬃcer’s cer ﬁcate described in Sec on 3(d) above, dated as of the
Closing Date; and the Confession of Judgment fully executed with notary.
8. Governing Law; Miscellaneous.
a. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Virginia without regard to principles of conﬂicts of laws. Any ac on brought by either party against the other
concerning the transac ons contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of New York or in the
federal courts located in the state and county of Nassau. The par es to this Agreement hereby irrevocably waive any objec on
to jurisdic on and venue of any ac on ins tuted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdic on or
venue or based upon forum non conveniens. The Company and Buyer waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be en tled
to recover from the other party its reasonable a orney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Agreement or
any other agreement delivered in connec on herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law,
then such provision shall be deemed inopera ve to the extent that it may conﬂict therewith and shall be deemed modiﬁed to
conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not
aﬀect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal
service of process and consents to process being served in any suit, ac on or proceeding in connec on with this Agreement,
the Note or any related document or agreement by mailing a copy thereof via registered or cer ﬁed mail or overnight delivery
(with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in eﬀect for no ces to it under this Agreement and agrees that such
service shall cons tute good and suﬃcient service of process and no ce thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to
limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.
b. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original but all of which shall cons tute one and the same agreement and shall become eﬀec ve when
counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party.
c. Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not form
part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement.
d. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable under any
applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inopera ve to the extent that it may conﬂict therewith
and shall be deemed modiﬁed to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which may prove invalid or
unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.
e. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein contain the
en re understanding of the par es with respect to the ma ers covered herein and therein and, except as speciﬁcally set forth
herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representa on, warranty, covenant or undertaking with
respect to such ma ers. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an instrument in wri ng

signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer.
f. Notices. All no ces, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communica ons required or
permi ed hereunder shall be in wri ng and, unless otherwise speciﬁed herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii) deposited in
the mail, registered or cer ﬁed, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air courier service with
charges prepaid, or (iv) transmi ed by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth below or to such other
address as such party shall have speciﬁed most recently by wri en no ce. Any no ce or other communica on required or
permi ed to be given hereunder shall be deemed eﬀec ve (a) upon hand delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate
conﬁrma on generated by the transmi ng facsimile machine, at the address or number designated below (if delivered on a
business day during normal business hours where such no ce is to be received), or the ﬁrst business day following such
delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours where such no ce is to be received) or (b) on
the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or
upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall ﬁrst occur. The addresses for such communica ons shall be as set forth in
the heading of this Agreement with a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not cons tute no ce) to Naidich Wurman LLP, 111
Great Neck Road, Suite 214, Great Neck, NY 11021, A n: Allison Naidich, facsimile: 516-466-3555, e-mail: allison@nwlaw.com.
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.
g. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the beneﬁt of the par es
and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any rights or obliga ons
hereunder without the prior wri en consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Buyer may assign its rights
hereunder to any person that purchases Securi es in a private transac on from the Buyer or to any of its “aﬃliates,” as that
term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Company.
h. Survival. The representa ons and warran es of the Company and the agreements and covenants
set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder notwithstanding any due diligence inves ga on conducted by
or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their oﬃcers, directors,
employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged breach by the Company of
any of its representa ons, warran es and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its covenants and obliga ons under
this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred.
i. Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such
further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, cer ﬁcates, instruments and documents, as
the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this Agreement and
the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
j. No Strict Construc on. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the language
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party.
k. Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obliga ons hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Buyer by vi a ng the intent and purpose of the transac on contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the
Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obliga ons under this Agreement will be inadequate and
agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this Agreement, that the Buyer shall
be en tled, in addi on to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addi on to the penal es assessable herein, to
an injunc on or injunc ons restraining, preven ng or curing any breach of this Agreement and to enforce speciﬁcally the terms
and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as
of the date first above written.

InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.
By:________________________________
Matthew Moore
Chief Executive Officer

POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
By:____________________________________
Name: Curt Kramer
Title: Chief Executive Officer
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 216
Great Neck, NY 11021
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
Aggregate Principal Amount of Note:

$58,300.00

Original Issue Discount

$5,300.00

Aggregate Purchase Price:

$53,000.00

Exhibit 10.24

NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WH
THESE SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, O
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNE
IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 193
AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERAL
ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCIN
ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.
THE ISSUE PRICE OF THIS NOTE IS $58,300.00.
THE ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT IS $5,300.00.

Principal Amount: $58,300.00
Purchase Price: $53,000.00

Issue Date: February 8, 2018

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE
FOR VALUE RECEIVED
, InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corpora on (hereina er called the
“Borrower”), hereby promises to pay to the order of POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
, a Virginia corpora on, or registered
assigns (the “Holder”) the sum of $58,300.00 together with any interest as set forth herein, on November 20, 2018 (the
“Maturity Date”), and to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance hereof at the rate of twelve percent (12%) (the “Interest
Rate”) per annum from the date hereof (the “Issue Date”)un l the same becomes due and payable, whether at maturity or
upon accelera on or by prepayment or otherwise. This Note may not be prepaid in whole or in part except as otherwise
explicitly set forth herein. Any amount of principal or interest on this Note which is not paid when due shall bear interest at the
rate of twenty two percent (22%) per annum from the due date thereof un l the same is paid (“Default Interest”). Interest
shall be computed on the basis of a 365 day year and the actual number of days elapsed. Interest shall commence accruing on
the Issue Date but shall not be payable un l the Note becomes payable (whether at Maturity Date or upon accelera on or by
prepayment). All payments due hereunder (to the extent not converted into common stock, $0.01 par value per share (the
“Common Stock”) in accordance with the terms hereof) shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America. All
payments shall be made at such address as the Holder shall herea er give to the Borrower by wri en no ce made in
accordance with the provisions of this Note. Each capitalized term used herein, and not otherwise deﬁned, shall have the
meaning ascribed thereto in that certain Securi es Purchase Agreement dated the date hereof, pursuant to which this Note
was originally issued (the “Purchase Agreement”).
This Note is free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemp ve rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Borrower and will not impose personal liability upon
the holder thereof.
The following terms shall apply to this Note:
ARTICLE I. CONVERSION RIGHTS
1.1 Conversion Right. The Holder shall have the right from me to me, and at any me during the period
beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this Note and ending on the later of: (i) the
Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount (as deﬁned in Ar cle III), each in respect of the remaining
outstanding principal amount of this Note to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of this
Note into fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock, as such Common Stock exists on the Issue Date, or any shares
of capital stock or other securi es of the Borrower into which such Common Stock shall herea er be changed or reclassiﬁed at
the conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) determined as provided herein (a “Conversion”);provided, however, that in no
event shall the Holder be en tled to convert any por on of this Note in excess of that por on of this Note upon conversion of
which the sum of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock beneﬁcially owned by the Holder and its aﬃliates (other than
shares of Common Stock which may be deemed beneﬁcially owned through the ownership of the unconverted por on of the
Notes or the unexercised or unconverted por on of any other security of the Borrower subject to a limita on on conversion or
exercise analogous to the limita ons contained herein) and (2) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the
conversion of the por on of this Note with respect to which the determina on of this proviso is being made, would result in
beneﬁcial ownership by the Holder and its aﬃliates of more than 4.99% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. For

purposes of the proviso to the immediately preceding sentence, beneﬁcial ownership shall be determined in accordance with
Sec on 13(d) of the Securi es Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and Regula ons 13D-G thereunder,
except as otherwise provided in clause (1) of such proviso. The beneﬁcial ownership limita ons on conversion as set forth in
the sec on may NOT be waived by the Holder. The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of
this Note shall be determined by dividing the Conversion Amount (as deﬁned below) by the applicable Conversion Price then in
eﬀect on the date speciﬁed in the no ce of conversion, in the form a ached hereto as Exhibit A (the “No ce of Conversion”),
delivered to the Borrower by the Holder in accordance with Sec on 1.4 below; provided that the No ce of Conversion is
submi ed by facsimile or e-mail (or by other means resul ng in, or reasonably expected to result in, no ce) to the Borrower
before 6:00 p.m., New York, New York me on such conversion date (the “Conversion Date”); however, if the No ce of
Conversion is sent a er 6:00pm, New York, New York me the Conversion Date shall be the next business day. The term
“Conversion Amount” means, with respect to any conversion of this Note, the sum of (1) the principal amount of this Note to
be converted in such conversion plus (2) at the Holder’s op on, accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on such principal amount
at the interest rates provided in this Note to the Conversion Date,plus (3) at the Holder’s op on, Default Interest, if any, on
the amounts referred to in the immediately preceding clauses (1) and/or (2) plus (4) at the Holder’s op on, any amounts owed
to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.4 hereof.
1.2 Conversion Price. The conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) shall equal the Variable Conversion Price
(as deﬁned herein) (subject to equitable adjustments by the Borrower rela ng to the Borrower’s securi es or the securi es of
any subsidiary of the Borrower, combina ons, recapitaliza on, reclassiﬁca ons, extraordinary distribu ons and similar events).
The "Variable Conversion Price" shall mean 75% mul plied by the Market Price (as deﬁned herein) (represen ng a discount
rate of 25%). “Market Price” means the average of the lowest two (2) Trading Prices (as deﬁned below) for the Common Stock
during the twenty (20) Trading Day period ending on the latest complete Trading Day prior to the Conversion Date. “Trading
Price” means, for any security as of any date, the closing bid price on the OTCQB, OTCQX, Pink Sheets electronic quota on
system or applicable trading market (the “OTC”) as reported by a reliable repor ng service (“Repor ng Service”) designated by
the Holder (i.e. Bloomberg) or, if the OTC is not the principal trading market for such security, the closing bid price of such
security on the principal securi es exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded or, if no closing bid price
of such security is available in any of the foregoing manners, the average of the closing bid prices of any market makers for
such security that are listed in the “pink sheets”. If the Trading Price cannot be calculated for such security on such date in the
manner provided above, the Trading Price shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the Borrower and the
holders of a majority in interest of the Notes being converted for which the calcula on of the Trading Price is required in order
to determine the Conversion Price of such Notes. “Trading Day” shall mean any day on which the Common Stock is tradable for
any period on the OTC, or on the principal securi es exchange or other securi es market on which the Common Stock is then
being traded.
1.3 Authorized Shares. The Borrower covenants that during the period the conversion right exists, the
Borrower will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a suﬃcient number of shares, free from preemp ve
rights, to provide for the issuance of Common Stock upon the full conversion of this Note issued pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement. The Borrower is required at all mes to have authorized and reserved seven mes the number of shares that is
actually issuable upon full conversion of the Note (based on the Conversion Price of the Note in eﬀect from me to me
ini ally 9,630,678)(the “Reserved Amount”). The Reserved Amount shall be increased from me to me in accordance with
the Borrower’s obliga ons hereunder. The Borrower represents that upon issuance, such shares will be duly and validly issued,
fully paid and non-assessable. In addi on, if the Borrower shall issue any securi es or make any change to its capital structure
which would change the number of shares of Common Stock into which the Notes shall be conver ble at the then current
Conversion Price, the Borrower shall at the same me make proper provision so that therea er there shall be a suﬃcient
number of shares of Common Stock authorized and reserved, free from preemp ve rights, for conversion of the outstanding
Note. The Borrower (i) acknowledges that it has irrevocably instructed its transfer agent to issue cer ﬁcates for the Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note, and (ii) agrees that its issuance of this Note shall cons tute full authority to its
oﬃcers and agents who are charged with the duty of execu ng stock cer ﬁcates to execute and issue the necessary
certificates for shares of Common Stock in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note.
If, at any me the Borrower does not maintain the Reserved Amount it will be considered an Event of Default
under Section 3.2 of the Note.
1.4 Method of Conversion.
(a) Mechanics of Conversion. As set forth in Sec on 1.1 hereof, from me to me, and at any me
during the period beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this Note and ending on
the later of: (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount, this Note may be converted by the
Holder in whole or in part at any me from me to me a er the Issue Date, by (A) submi ng to the Borrower a No ce of
Conversion (by facsimile, e-mail or other reasonable means of communica on dispatched on the Conversion Date prior to 6:00

p.m., New York, New York me) and (B) subject to Sec on 1.4(b), surrendering this Note at the principal oﬃce of the Borrower
(upon payment in full of any amounts owed hereunder).
(b) Surrender of Note Upon Conversion. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein,
upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this
Note to the Borrower unless the en re unpaid principal amount of this Note is so converted. The Holder and the Borrower
shall maintain records showing the principal amount so converted and the dates of such conversions or shall use such other
method, reasonably sa sfactory to the Holder and the Borrower, so as not to require physical surrender of this Note upon
each such conversion.
(c) Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion. Upon receipt by the Borrower from the Holder of a
facsimile transmission or e-mail (or other reasonable means of communica on) of a No ce of Conversion mee ng the
requirements for conversion as provided in this Sec on 1.4, the Borrower shall issue and deliver or cause to be issued and
delivered to or upon the order of the Holder cer ﬁcates for the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion within three (3)
business days a er such receipt (the “Deadline”) (and, solely in the case of conversion of the en re unpaid principal amount
hereof, surrender of this Note) in accordance with the terms hereof and the Purchase Agreement. Upon receipt by the
Borrower of a No ce of Conversion, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of record of the Common Stock issuable upon
such conversion, the outstanding principal amount and the amount of accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall be
reduced to reﬂect such conversion, and, unless the Borrower defaults on its obliga ons hereunder, all rights with respect to
the por on of this Note being so converted shall forthwith terminate except the right to receive the Common Stock or other
securi es, cash or other assets, as herein provided, on such conversion. If the Holder shall have given a No ce of Conversion as
provided herein, the Borrower’s obliga on to issue and deliver the cer ﬁcates for Common Stock shall be absolute and
uncondi onal, irrespec ve of the absence of any ac on by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect
to any provision thereof, the recovery of any judgment against any person or any ac on to enforce the same, any failure or
delay in the enforcement of any other obliga on of the Borrower to the holder of record, or any setoﬀ, counterclaim,
recoupment, limita on or termina on, or any breach or alleged breach by the Holder of any obliga on to the Borrower, and
irrespec ve of any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such obliga on of the Borrower to the Holder in
connection with such conversion.
(d) Delivery of Common Stock by Electronic Transfer. In lieu of delivering physical cer ﬁcates
represen ng the Common Stock issuable upon conversion, provided the Borrower is par cipa ng in the Depository Trust
Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securi es Transfer (“FAST”) program, upon request of the Holder and its compliance with
the provisions set forth herein, the Borrower shall use its best eﬀorts to cause its transfer agent to electronically transmit the
Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the Holder by credi ng the account of Holder’s Prime Broker with DTC through its
Deposit and Withdrawal at Custodian (“DWAC”) system.
(e) Failure to Deliver Common Stock Prior to Deadline. Without in any way limiting the Holder’s right to
pursue other remedies, including actual damages and/or equitable relief, the par es agree that if delivery of the Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note is not delivered by the Deadline due to ac on and/or inac on of the Borrower, the
Borrower shall pay to the Holder $2,000 per day in cash, for each day beyond the Deadline that the Borrower fails to deliver
such Common Stock (the “Fail to Deliver Fee”); provided; however that the Fail to Deliver Fee shall not be due if the failure is a
result of a third party (i.e., transfer agent; and not the result of any failure to pay such transfer agent) despite the best eﬀorts
of the Borrower to eﬀect delivery of such Common Stock. Such cash amount shall be paid to Holder by the ﬁ h day of the
month following the month in which it has accrued or, at the op on of the Holder (by wri en no ce to the Borrower by the
ﬁrst day of the month following the month in which it has accrued), shall be added to the principal amount of this Note, in
which event interest shall accrue thereon in accordance with the terms of this Note and such addi onal principal amount shall
be conver ble into Common Stock in accordance with the terms of this Note. The Borrower agrees that the right to convert is a
valuable right to the Holder. The damages resul ng from a failure, a empt to frustrate, interference with such conversion right
are diﬃcult if not impossible to qualify. Accordingly, the par es acknowledge that the liquidated damages provision contained
in this Section 1.4(e) are justified.
1.5 Concerning the Shares. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note may not be sold
or transferred unless: (i) such shares are sold pursuant to an eﬀec ve registra on statement under the Act or (ii) the Borrower
or its transfer agent shall have been furnished with an opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in form, substance and scope
customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transac ons) to the eﬀect that the shares to be sold or transferred may be
sold or transferred pursuant to an exemp on from such registra on (such as Rule 144 or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”); or (iii)
such shares are transferred to an “aﬃliate” (as deﬁned in Rule 144) of the Borrower who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer
the shares only in accordance with this Section 1.5 and who is an Accredited Investor (as defined in the Purchase Agreement).
Any restric ve legend on cer ﬁcates represen ng shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note shall be

removed and the Borrower shall issue to the Holder a new cer ﬁcate therefore free of any transfer legend if the Borrower or
its transfer agent shall have received an opinion of counsel from Holder’s counsel, in form, substance and scope customary for
opinions of counsel in comparable transac ons, to the eﬀect that (i) a public sale or transfer of such Common Stock may be
made without registra on under the Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company so that the sale or transfer is
eﬀected; or (ii) in the case of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note, such security is registered for sale by
the Holder under an eﬀec ve registra on statement ﬁled under the Act; or otherwise may be sold pursuant to an exemp on
from registra on. In the event that the Company does not reasonably accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Holder
with respect to the transfer of Securi es pursuant to an exemp on from registra on (such as Rule 144), at the Deadline, it will
be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note.
1.6 Effect of Certain Events.
(a) Eﬀect of Merger, Consolida on, Etc. At the op on of the Holder, the sale, conveyance or
disposi on of all or substan ally all of the assets of the Borrower, the eﬀectua on by the Borrower of a transac on or series
of related transac ons in which more than 50% of the vo ng power of the Borrower is disposed of, or the consolida on,
merger or other business combina on of the Borrower with or into any other Person (as deﬁned below) or Persons when the
Borrower is not the survivor shall be deemed to be an Event of Default (as defined in Article III) pursuant to which the Borrower
shall be required to pay to the Holder upon the consumma on of and as a condi on to such transac on an amount equal to
the Default Amount (as deﬁned in Ar cle III). “Person” shall mean any individual, corpora on, limited liability company,
partnership, association, trust or other entity or organization.
(b) Adjustment Due to Merger, Consolida on, Etc. If, at any me when this Note is issued and
outstanding and prior to conversion of all of the Note, there shall be any merger, consolida on, exchange of shares,
recapitaliza on, reorganiza on, or other similar event, as a result of which shares of Common Stock of the Borrower shall be
changed into the same or a diﬀerent number of shares of another class or classes of stock or securi es of the Borrower or
another en ty, or in case of any sale or conveyance of all or substan ally all of the assets of the Borrower other than in
connec on with a plan of complete liquida on of the Borrower, then the Holder of this Note shall therea er have the right to
receive upon conversion of this Note, upon the basis and upon the terms and condi ons speciﬁed herein and in lieu of the
shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such stock, securi es or assets which the Holder
would have been en tled to receive in such transac on had this Note been converted in full immediately prior to such
transac on (without regard to any limita ons on conversion set forth herein), and in any such case appropriate provisions shall
be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holder of this Note to the end that the provisions hereof (including,
without limita on, provisions for adjustment of the Conversion Price and of the number of shares issuable upon conversion of
the Note) shall therea er be applicable, as nearly as may be prac cable in rela on to any securi es or assets therea er
deliverable upon the conversion hereof. The Borrower shall not aﬀect any transac on described in this Sec on 1.6(b) unless (a)
it ﬁrst gives, to the extent prac cable, ten (10) days prior wri en no ce (but in any event at least ﬁve (5) days prior wri en
no ce) of the record date of the special mee ng of shareholders to approve, or if there is no such record date, the
consumma on of, such merger, consolida on, exchange of shares, recapitaliza on, reorganiza on or other similar event or
sale of assets (during which me the Holder shall be en tled to convert this Note) and (b) the resul ng successor or acquiring
en ty (if not the Borrower) assumes by wri en instrument the obliga ons of this Note. The above provisions shall similarly
apply to successive consolidations, mergers, sales, transfers or share exchanges.
(c) Adjustment Due to Distribu on. If the Borrower shall declare or make any distribu on of its assets
(or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of Common Stock as a dividend, stock repurchase, by way of return of capital or
otherwise (including any dividend or distribu on to the Borrower’s shareholders in cash or shares (or rights to acquire shares)
of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e., a spin-oﬀ)) (a “Distribu on”), then the Holder of this Note shall be en tled, upon any
conversion of this Note a er the date of record for determining shareholders en tled to such Distribu on, to receive the
amount of such assets which would have been payable to the Holder with respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable
upon such conversion had such Holder been the holder of such shares of Common Stock on the record date for the
determination of shareholders entitled to such Distribution.
1.7 Prepayment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note, at any me during the
periods set forth on the table immediately following this paragraph (the “Prepayment Periods”), the Borrower shall have the
right, exercisable on not more than three (3) Trading Days prior wri en no ce to the Holder of the Note to prepay the
outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full, in accordance with this Sec on 1.7. Any no ce of prepayment
hereunder (an “Op onal Prepayment No ce”) shall be delivered to the Holder of the Note at its registered addresses and shall
state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the Note, and (2) the date of prepayment which shall be not more
than three (3) Trading Days from the date of the Op onal Prepayment No ce. On the date ﬁxed for prepayment (the
“Op onal Prepayment Date”), the Borrower shall make payment of the Op onal Prepayment Amount (as deﬁned below) to
Holder, or upon the direc on of the Holder as speciﬁed by the Holder in a wri ng to the Borrower (which shall direc on to be

sent to Borrower by the Holder at least one (1) business day prior to the Op onal Prepayment Date). If the Borrower exercises
its right to prepay the Note, the Borrower shall make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to the percentage
(“Prepayment Percentage”) as set forth in the table immediately following this paragraph opposite the applicable Prepayment
Period, mul plied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest
on the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the Op onal Prepayment Dateplus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts
referred to in clauses (w) and (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sec on 1.4 hereof (the “Op onal
Prepayment Amount”). If the Borrower delivers an Op onal Prepayment No ce and fails to pay the Op onal Prepayment
Amount due to the Holder of the Note within two (2) business days following the Op onal Prepayment Date, the Borrower
shall forever forfeit its right to prepay the Note pursuant to this Section 1.7.
Prepayment Period
1. The period beginning on the Issue Date and ending on the date which is thirty
(30) days following the Issue Date.
2. The period beginning on the date which is thirty-one (31) days following the
Issue Date and ending on the date which is sixty (60) days following the Issue Date.
3. The period beginning on the date which is sixty-one (61) days following the
Issue Date and ending on the date which is ninety (90) days following the Issue
Date.
4. The period beginning on the date that is ninety-one (91) day from the Issue
Date and ending one hundred twenty (120) days following the Issue Date.
5. The period beginning on the date that is one hundred twenty-one (121) day
from the Issue Date and ending one hundred ﬁ y (150) days following the Issue
Date.
6. The period beginning on the date that is one hundred ﬁ y-one (151) day
from the Issue Date and ending one hundred eighty (180) days following the Issue
Date.

Prepayment Percentage
105%
110%
115%

120%
125%

130%

A er the expira on of one hundred eighty (180) days following the Issue Date, the Borrower shall have no
right of prepayment.
ARTICLE II. CERTAIN COVENANTS
2.1 Sale of Assets. So long as the Borrower shall have any obliga on under this Note, the Borrower shall not,
without the Holder’s wri en consent, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any signiﬁcant por on of its assets outside the
ordinary course of business. Any consent to the disposi on of any assets may be condi oned on a speciﬁed use of the
proceeds of disposition.
ARTICLE III. EVENTS OF DEFAULT
If any of the following events of default (each, an “Event of Default”) shall occur:
3.1 Failure to Pay Principal and Interest. The Borrower fails to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon
when due on this Note, whether at maturity or upon accelera on and such breach con nues for a period of ﬁve (5) days a er
written notice from the Holder.
3.2 Conversion and the Shares. The Borrower fails to issue shares of Common Stock to the Holder (or
announces or threatens in wri ng that it will not honor its obliga on to do so) upon exercise by the Holder of the conversion
rights of the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Note, fails to transfer or cause its transfer agent to transfer (issue)
(electronically or in cer ﬁcated form) any cer ﬁcate for shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion of or
otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, the Borrower directs its transfer agent not to transfer or
delays, impairs, and/or hinders its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in cer ﬁcated form) any
certificate for shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and
when required by this Note, or fails to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its
transfer agent from removing) any restric ve legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instruc ons in respect thereof) on any
cer ﬁcate for any shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and
when required by this Note (or makes any wri en announcement, statement or threat that it does not intend to honor the
obliga ons described in this paragraph) and any such failure shall con nue uncured (or any wri en announcement, statement
or threat not to honor its obliga ons shall not be rescinded in wri ng) for three (3) business days a er the Holder shall have
delivered a No ce of Conversion. It is an obliga on of the Borrower to remain current in its obliga ons to its transfer agent. It

shall be an event of default of this Note, if a conversion of this Note is delayed, hindered or frustrated due to a balance owed
by the Borrower to its transfer agent. If at the op on of the Holder, the Holder advances any funds to the Borrower’s transfer
agent in order to process a conversion, such advanced funds shall be paid by the Borrower to the Holder within forty-eight (48)
hours of a demand from the Holder.
3.3 Breach of Covenants. The Borrower breaches any material covenant or other material term or condi on
contained in this Note and any collateral documents including but not limited to the Purchase Agreement and such breach
continues for a period of twenty (20) days after written notice thereof to the Borrower from the Holder.
3.4 Breach of Representa ons and Warran es. Any representa on or warranty of the Borrower made herein
or in any agreement, statement or cer ﬁcate given in wri ng pursuant hereto or in connec on herewith (including, without
limita on, the Purchase Agreement), shall be false or misleading in any material respect when made and the breach of which
has (or with the passage of me will have) a material adverse eﬀect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the
Purchase Agreement.
3.5 Receiver or Trustee. The Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower shall make an assignment for the
beneﬁt of creditors, or apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver or trustee for it or for a substan al part of its
property or business, or such a receiver or trustee shall otherwise be appointed.
3.6 Bankruptcy. Bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganiza on or liquida on proceedings or other proceedings,
voluntary or involuntary, for relief under any bankruptcy law or any law for the relief of debtors shall be instituted by or against
the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower.
3.7 Delis ng of Common Stock. The Borrower shall fail to maintain the lis ng of the Common Stock on at least
one of the OTC (which speciﬁcally includes the quota on pla orms maintained by the OTC Markets Group) or an equivalent
replacement exchange, the Nasdaq Na onal Market, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, the New York Stock Exchange, or the
American Stock Exchange.
3.8 Failure to Comply with the Exchange Act. The Borrower shall fail to comply with the repor ng requirements
of the Exchange Act; and/or the Borrower shall cease to be subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.
3.9 Liquidation. Any dissolu on, liquida on, or winding up of Borrower or any substan al por on of its
business.
3.10 Cessa on of Opera ons. Any cessa on of opera ons by Borrower or Borrower admits it is otherwise
generally unable to pay its debts as such debts become due, provided, however, that any disclosure of the Borrower’s ability to
continue as a “going concern” shall not be an admission that the Borrower cannot pay its debts as they become due.
3.11 Financial Statement Restatement. The restatement of any ﬁnancial statements ﬁled by the Borrower
with the SEC at any time after 180 days after the Issuance Date for any date or period until this Note is no longer outstanding, if
the result of such restatement would, by comparison to the un-restated ﬁnancial statement, have cons tuted a material
adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement.
3.12 Replacement of Transfer Agent. In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer agent,
the Borrower fails to provide, prior to the eﬀec ve date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer Agent
Instruc ons in a form as ini ally delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited to the provision to
irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer agent to Borrower and
the Borrower.
3.13 Cross-Default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other related or
companion documents, a breach or default by the Borrower of any covenant or other term or condi on contained in any of
the Other Agreements, a er the passage of all applicable no ce and cure or grace periods, shall, at the op on of the Holder,
be considered a default under this Note and the Other Agreements, in which event the Holder shall be en tled (but in no event
required) to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note and the Other Agreements by reason of a
default under said Other Agreement or hereunder. “Other Agreements” means, collec vely, all agreements and instruments
between, among or by: (1) the Borrower, and, or for the beneﬁt of, (2) the Holder and any aﬃliate of the Holder, including,
without limita on, promissory notes; provided, however, the term “Other Agreements” shall not include the related or
companion documents to this Note. Each of the loan transac ons will be cross-defaulted with each other loan transac on and
with all other existing and future debt of Borrower to the Holder.

Upon the occurrence and during the con nua on of any Event of Default speciﬁed in Sec on 3.1 (solely with respect to failure
to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due at the Maturity Date), the Note shall become immediately due and
payable and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full sa sfac on of its obliga ons hereunder, an amount equal to the
Default Amount (as deﬁned herein). UPON THE OCCURRENCE AND DURING THE CONTINUATION OF ANY EVENT OF DEFAULT
SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3.2, THE NOTE SHALL BECOME IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAYABLE AND THE BORROWER SHALL PAY TO
THE HOLDER, IN FULL SATISFACTION OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO: (Y) THE DEFAULT AMOUN
(AS DEFINED HEREIN); MULTIPLIED BY (Z) TWO (2). Upon the occurrence and during the con nua on of any Event of Default
speciﬁed in Sec ons 3.1 (solely with respect to failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due on this Note
upon a Trading Market Prepayment Event pursuant to Sec on 1.7 or upon accelera on), 3.3, 3.4, 3.7, 3.8, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12,
3.13, and/or 3.14 exercisable through the delivery of wri en no ce to the Borrower by such Holders (the “Default No ce”),
and upon the occurrence of an Event of Default speciﬁed the remaining sec ons of Ar cles III (other than failure to pay the
principal hereof or interest thereon at the Maturity Date speciﬁed in Sec on 3,1 hereof), the Note shall become immediately
due and payable and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full sa sfac on of its obliga ons hereunder, an amount equal to
150% times the sum of (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the
unpaid principal amount of this Note to the date of payment (the “Mandatory Prepayment Date”)plus (y) Default Interest, if
any, on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and/or (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sec ons 1.3 and
1.4(g) hereof (the then outstanding principal amount of this Note to the date of payment plus the amounts referred to in
clauses (x), (y) and (z) shall collec vely be known as the “Default Amount”) and all other amounts payable hereunder shall
immediately become due and payable, all without demand, presentment or no ce, all of which hereby are expressly waived,
together with all costs, including, without limita on, legal fees and expenses, of collec on, and the Holder shall be en tled to
exercise all other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.
If the Borrower fails to pay the Default Amount within ﬁve (5) business days of wri en no ce that such amount is due and
payable, then the Holder shall have the right at any me, so long as the Borrower remains in default (and so long and to the
extent that there are suﬃcient authorized shares), to require the Borrower, upon wri en no ce, to immediately issue, in lieu
of the Default Amount, the number of shares of Common Stock of the Borrower equal to the Default Amount divided by the
Conversion Price then in effect.
ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS
4.1 Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver. No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any
power, right or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or par al exercise of any such power,
right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power or privileges. All rights and remedies
existing hereunder are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise available.
4.2 Notices. All no ces, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communica ons required or
permi ed hereunder shall be in wri ng and, unless otherwise speciﬁed herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii) deposited in
the mail, registered or cer ﬁed, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air courier service with
charges prepaid, or (iv) transmi ed by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth below or to such other
address as such party shall have speciﬁed most recently by wri en no ce. Any no ce or other communica on required or
permi ed to be given hereunder shall be deemed eﬀec ve (a) upon hand delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate
conﬁrma on generated by the transmi ng facsimile machine, at the address or number designated below (if delivered on a
business day during normal business hours where such no ce is to be received), or the ﬁrst business day following such
delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours where such no ce is to be received) or (b) on
the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or
upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:
If to the Borrower, to:
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.
2151 Professional Drive, 2 nd Floor
Roseville, CA 95661
Attn: Matthew Moore, Chief Executive Officer
Fax:
Email: matthew@innd.com
If to the Holder:
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214

Great Neck, NY 11021
Attn: Curt Kramer, Chief Executive Officer
e-mail: info@poweruplending.com
With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice):
Naidich Wurman LLP
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 216
Great Neck, NY 11021
Attn: Allison Naidich
facsimile: 516-466-3555
e-mail: allison@nwlaw.com
4.3 Amendments. This Note and any provision hereof may only be amended by an instrument in wri ng signed
by the Borrower and the Holder. The term “Note” and all reference thereto, as used throughout this instrument, shall mean
this instrument (and the other Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) as originally executed, or if later amended or
supplemented, then as so amended or supplemented.
4.4 Most Favored Nation. During the period where any monies are owed to the Holder pursuant to this Note, if
the Borrower engages in any future ﬁnancing transac ons with a third party investor, the Borrower will provide the Holder
with wri en no ce (the “MFN No ce”) thereof promptly but in no event less than 10 days prior to closing any ﬁnancing
transac ons. Included with the MFN No ce shall be a copy of all documenta on rela ng to such ﬁnancing transac on and shall
include, upon wri en request of the Holder, any addi onal informa on related to such subsequent investment as may be
reasonably requested by the Holder. In the event the Holder determines that the terms of the subsequent investment are
preferable to the terms of the securi es of the Borrower issued to the Holder pursuant to the terms of the Purchase
Agreement, the Holder will no fy the Borrower in wri ng. Promptly a er receipt of such wri en no ce from the Holder, the
Borrower agrees to amend and restate the Securi es (which may include the conversion terms of this Note), to be iden cal to
the instruments evidencing the subsequent investment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Sec on 4.4 shall not apply in
respect of (i) an Exempt Issuance, or (ii) an underwri en public oﬀering of Common Stock.“Exempt Issuance” means the
issuance of: (a) shares of Common Stock or op ons to employees, oﬃcers, consultants, advisors or directors of the Borrower
pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such purpose by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors or a
majority of the members of a commi ee of directors established for such purpose, (b) securi es upon the exercise or
exchange of or conversion of this Note and/or other securi es exercisable or exchangeable for or conver ble into shares of
Common Stock issued and outstanding on the date hereof, and (c) securi es issued pursuant to acquisi ons or strategic
transac ons approved by a majority of the disinterested directors of the Borrower, provided that any such issuance shall only
be to a Person which is, itself or through its subsidiaries, an opera ng company in a business synergis c with the business of
the Borrower and in which the Borrower receives beneﬁts in addi on to the investment of funds, but shall not include a
transac on in which the Borrower is issuing securi es primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an en ty whose primary
business is investing in securities.
4.5 Assignability. This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns, and shall inure
to be the beneﬁt of the Holder and its successors and assigns. Each transferee of this Note must be an “accredited investor”
(as deﬁned in Rule 501(a) of the Securi es and Exchange Commission). Notwithstanding anything in this Note to the contrary,
this Note may be pledged as collateral in connec on with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement; and may
be assigned by the Holder without the consent of the Borrower.
4.6 Cost of Collection. If default is made in the payment of this Note, the Borrower shall pay the Holder hereof
costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
4.7 Governing Law. This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Virginia without regard to principles of conﬂicts of laws. Any ac on brought by either party against the other concerning the
transac ons contemplated by this Note shall be brought only in the state courts of New York or in the federal courts located in
the Eastern District of New York. The par es to this Note hereby irrevocably waive any objec on to jurisdic on and venue of
any ac on ins tuted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdic on or venue or based upon forum
non conveniens. The Borrower and Holder waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be en tled to recover from the other
party its reasonable a orney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Note or any other agreement delivered in
connec on herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be
deemed inopera ve to the extent that it may conﬂict therewith and shall be deemed modiﬁed to conform with such statute or
rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not aﬀect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and

consents to process being served in any suit, ac on or proceeding in connec on with this Note, any agreement or any other
document delivered in connec on with this Note by mailing a copy thereof via registered or cer ﬁed mail or overnight delivery
(with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in eﬀect for no ces to it under this Note and agrees that such service
shall cons tute good and suﬃcient service of process and no ce thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in
any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.
4.8 Purchase Agreement. By its acceptance of this Note, each party agrees to be bound by the applicable terms
of the Purchase Agreement.
4.9 Remedies. The Borrower acknowledges that a breach by it of its obliga ons hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Holder, by vi a ng the intent and purpose of the transac on contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the
Borrower acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obliga ons under this Note will be inadequate and agrees, in
the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Borrower of the provisions of this Note, that the Holder shall be en tled, in
addi on to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addi on to the penal es assessable herein, to an injunc on
or injunc ons restraining, preven ng or curing any breach of this Note and to enforce speciﬁcally the terms and provisions
thereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by its duly authorized oﬃcer this on
February 8, 2018
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.

By: _______________________________
Matthew Moore
Chief Executive Officer
EXHIBIT A -- NOTICE OF CONVERSION

The undersigned hereby elects to convert $_________________ principal amount of the Note (deﬁned below) into
that number of shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Note (“Common Stock”) as set forth
below, of InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corpora on (the “Borrower”) according to the condi ons of the
conver ble note of the Borrower dated as of February 8, 2018 (the “Note”), as of the date wri en below. No fee will be
charged to the Holder for any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any.
Box Checked as to applicable instructions:
☐

The Borrower shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of Conversion to the
account of the undersigned or its nominee with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission system
(“DWAC Transfer”).
Name of DTC Prime Broker:
Account Number:

☐

The undersigned hereby requests that the Borrower issue a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of
Common Stock set forth below (which numbers are based on the Holder’s calculation attached hereto) in the name(s)
specified immediately below or, if additional space is necessary, on an attachment hereto:
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214
Great Neck, NY 11021
Attention: Certificate Delivery
e-mail: info@poweruplendinggroup.com
Date of conversion:
Applicable Conversion Price:
Number of shares of common stock to be issued
pursuant to conversion of the Notes:
Amount of Principal Balance due remaining
under the Note after this conversion:
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.

________________
$_______________
________________
________________

By:_____________________________
Name: Curt Kramer
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: __________________

Exhibit 10.25

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of APRIL 8, 2018 , by and
between INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC. , a NEVADA, with headquarters located 2151
PROFESSIONAL DRIVE, 2 ND FLOOR, ROSEVILLE, CA 95661 (the “Company”), and CAREBOURN
CAPITAL, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the “Buyer”).
WHEREAS:
A. The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption
from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”);
B. Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set forth
in this Agreement a 10% convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in the aggregate
principal amount of US$95,450.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or
otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), that may be convertible into shares of
common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the
limitations and conditions set forth in such Note. This Agreement, the Note, and such other agreements entered into
between the Company and Buyer in connection with the sale of the Note are collectively referred to hereinafter as the
“Transaction Documents”.
C. The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal
amount of Note as is set forth immediately below its name on the signature pages hereto; and
NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
1. PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE .
a. Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and sell to
the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.
b. Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the
purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and (ii) the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of
the Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price.
c. Closing Date. Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set forth
in Sections 6 and Section 7 below, the date and time of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement
(the “Closing Date”) shall be 4:30 P.M., Eastern Standard Time on or about APRIL 8, 2018 , or such other mutually
agreed upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the
Closing Date at such location as may be agreed to by the parties.
2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BUYER . The Buyer represents and warrants
to the Company that:
a. Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and any potential
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise issuable by the Company pursuant to the Note
(including, without limitation, such additional shares of Common Stock, if any, as are issuable (i) on account of interest
on the Note or (ii) as a result of the events described in Article I of the Note, such shares of Common Stock being
collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own
account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered
or exempted from registration under the 1933 Act; provided, however, that by making the representations herein, the
Buyer does not agree to hold any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to
dispose of the Securities at any time in accordance with or pursuant to a registration statement or an exemption under

the 1933 Act.
b. Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in
Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”).
c. Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered and sold
to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state securities
laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities.
d. Information. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain
outstanding will continue to be, furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the
Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which have been requested by the Buyer or its
advisors and which are available to the public. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the
Note remain outstanding will continue to be, afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic information and
will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly following such
disclosure to the Buyer. Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence investigation conducted by Buyer or any of
its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s right to rely on the Company’s representations and
warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that its investment in the Securities involves a
significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may constitute a breach of any of the Company's
representations and warranties made herein.
e. Governmental Review. The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or
any other government or governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or endorsement of the
Securities.
f. Transfer or Re-sale. The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities has not
been and is not being registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities may not
be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act,
(b) the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities to be
sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, which opinion shall be
accepted by the Company, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144
promulgated under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”)) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise
transfer the Securities only in accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited Investor, (d) the Securities are
sold pursuant to Rule 144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a successor
rule) (“Regulation S”), and the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of
counsel that shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which
opinion shall be accepted by the Company; (ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made
only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any re-sale of such Securities
under circumstances in which the seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an
underwriter (as that term is defined in the 1933 Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the
1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any other person is
under any obligation to register such Securities under the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with the
terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each case).
g. Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion Shares
have been registered under the 1933 Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to
the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, the Conversion Shares may bear a
restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the
certificates for such Securities):
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY
THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES
ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION

STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE
SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING
THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH
A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING
ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”

The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to
the holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a)
such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may
be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular
date that can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or
transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company so that the sale or transfer is affected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a
certificate(s) from which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery
requirements, if any. In the event that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with
respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, at the
Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note.
h. Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This
Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms.
i. Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth immediately below the Buyer’s
name on the signature pages hereto.
3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY . The Company represents and
warrants to the Buyer that:
a. Organization and Qualification. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined below),
if any, is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which
it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties and
to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. Schedule 3(a) sets forth a list
of all of the Subsidiaries of the Company and the jurisdiction in which each is incorporated. The Company and each of
its Subsidiaries is duly qualified as a foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in
which its ownership or use of property or the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary
except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect. “Material
Adverse Effect” means any material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects
of the Company or its Subsidiaries, if any, taken as a whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the
agreements or instruments to be entered into in connection herewith. “Subsidiaries” means any corporation or other
organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, any equity or
other ownership interest.
b. Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority
to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the
Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board
of Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is
required, (iii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative,
and such authorized representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the
other documents executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement
constitutes, and upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a
legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms.
c. Capitalization. As of the date hereof, the authorized capital stock of the Company consists of:
(i) 225,000,000 shares of Common Stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of which 61,763,406 shares are issued and

outstanding; and (ii) 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.0001 par value per share, of which ZERO shares are
issued and outstanding; Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to the
Company’s stock option plans, no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to securities (other than the Note)
exercisable for, or convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock and 20,000,000 shares are reserved for
issuance upon conversion of the Note. All of such outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. No shares of capital stock of the Company are subject to
preemptive rights or any other similar rights of the shareholders of the Company or any liens or encumbrances imposed
through the actions or failure to act of the Company. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, as of the effective date
of this Agreement, (i) there are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip, rights to subscribe for, puts, calls, rights of first
refusal, agreements, understandings, claims or other commitments or rights of any character whatsoever relating to, or
securities or rights convertible into or exchangeable for any shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, or arrangements by which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or may become bound to issue
additional shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) there are no agreements or
arrangements under which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is obligated to register the sale of any of its or their
securities under the 1933 Act and (iii) there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions contained in any
security issued by the Company (or in any agreement providing rights to security holders) that will be triggered by the
issuance of the Note or the Conversion Shares. The Company has filed in its SEC Documents true and correct copies of
the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation as in effect on the date hereof (“Certificate of Incorporation”), the
Company’s By-laws, as in effect on the date hereof (the “By-laws”), and the terms of all securities convertible into or
exercisable for Common Stock of the Company and the material rights of the holders thereof in respect thereto. The
Company shall provide the Buyer with a written update of this representation signed by the Company’s Chief
Executive on behalf of the Company as of the Closing Date.
d. Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance
pursuant to the terms of the Note and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its respective terms, will be
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the
issue thereof and shall not be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and
will not impose personal liability upon the holder thereof.
e. Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company understands and acknowledges the potentially
dilutive effect to the Common Stock if the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note occurs. The
Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note in
accordance with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such
issuance may have on the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company.
f. No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Note by the
Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or
result in a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or
result in a breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both
could become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of,
any agreement, indenture, patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a
party, or (iii) result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state
securities laws and regulations and regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its
securities are subject) applicable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments,
accelerations, cancellations and violations as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse
Effect). Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of its Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws or
other organizational documents and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default (and no event has
occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both could put the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in default) under,
and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has taken any action or failed to take any action that would give to
others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to
which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any property or assets of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries is bound or affected, except for possible defaults as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a
Material Adverse Effect. The businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and shall
not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, in violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of
any governmental entity. Except as specifically contemplated by this Agreement and as required under the 1933 Act
and any applicable state securities laws, the Company is not required to obtain any consent, authorization or order of, or
make any filing or registration with, any court, governmental agency, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization or
stock market or any third party in order for it to execute, deliver or perform any of its obligations under this Agreement,

the Note in accordance with the terms hereof or thereof or to issue and sell the Note in accordance with the terms hereof
and to issue the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and
registrations which the Company is required to obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or
effected on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing requirements of the OTC Markets
Group Inc. (the “OTC Markets”) or any similar quotation system, and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common
Stock will be delisted by the OTC Markets or any similar quotation system, in the foreseeable future. The Company and
its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.
g. SEC Documents; Financial Statements . The Company has timely filed all reports, schedules,
forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof
and all exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to
such documents) incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”). The
Company has delivered to the Buyer true and complete copies of the SEC Documents or they have been publicly
available, except for such exhibits and incorporated documents. As of their respective dates, the SEC Documents
complied in all material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC
promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were filed
with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading. None of the statements made in any such SEC Documents is, or has been, required to be amended or
updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been amended or updated in subsequent filings prior
the date hereof). As of their respective dates, the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents
complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and
regulations of the SEC with respect thereto. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United
States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, during the periods involved and fairly present in
all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates
thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of
unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments). Except as set forth in the financial statements of the
Company included in the SEC Documents, the Company has no liabilities, contingent or otherwise, other than (i)
liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business subsequent to November 14, 2012, and (ii) obligations under
contracts and commitments incurred in the ordinary course of business and not required under generally accepted
accounting principles to be reflected in such financial statements, which, individually or in the aggregate, are not
material to the financial condition or operating results of the Company. The Company is subject to the reporting
requirements of the 1934 Act. For the avoidance of doubt, filing of the documents required in this Section 3(g) via the
SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system (“EDGAR”) shall satisfy all delivery requirements of
this Section 3(g).
h. Absence of Certain Changes . Since NOVEMBER 20, 2017, there has been no material
adverse change and no material adverse development in the assets, liabilities, business, properties, operations, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
i. Absence of Litigation. There is no action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation
before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the
knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a Material Adverse Effect. Schedule
3(i) contains a complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened
proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, without regard to whether it would have a
Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might
give rise to any of the foregoing.
j. Patents, Copyrights, etc. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries owns or possesses the
requisite licenses or rights to use all patents, patent applications, patent rights, inventions, know-how, trade secrets,
trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, service names, trade names and copyrights (“Intellectual Property”)
necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the
future); Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, there is no claim or action by any person pertaining to, or
proceeding pending, or to the Company’s knowledge threatened, which challenges the right of the Company or of a
Subsidiary with respect to any Intellectual Property necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and,
as presently contemplated to be operated in the future); to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s or its
Subsidiaries’ current and intended products, services and processes do not infringe on any Intellectual Property or other
rights held by any person; and the Company is unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of

the foregoing. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the
secrecy, confidentiality and value of their Intellectual Property.
k. No Materially Adverse Contracts, Etc . Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is
subject to any charter, corporate or other legal restriction, or any judgment, decree, order, rule or regulation which in
the judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected in the future to have a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any contract or agreement which in the judgment of the Company’s
officers has or is expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
l. Tax Status. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has made or filed all federal, state and
foreign income and all other tax returns, reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject
(unless and only to the extent that the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has set aside on its books provisions
reasonably adequate for the payment of all unpaid and unreported taxes) and has paid all taxes and other governmental
assessments and charges that are material in amount, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and
declarations, except those being contested in good faith and has set aside on its books provisions reasonably adequate
for the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply.
There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the
officers of the Company know of no basis for any such claim. The Company has not executed a waiver with respect to
the statute of limitations relating to the assessment or collection of any foreign, federal, state or local tax. None of the
Company’s tax returns is presently being audited by any taxing authority.
m. Certain Transactions. Except for arm’s length transactions pursuant to which the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries makes payments in the ordinary course of business upon terms no less favorable than the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries could obtain from third parties and other than the grant of stock options disclosed
on Schedule 3(c), none of the officers, directors, or employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction
with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including
any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of
real or personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee
or, to the knowledge of the Company, any corporation, partnership, trust or other entity in which any officer, director, or
any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner.
n. Disclosure. All information relating to or concerning the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
set forth in this Agreement and provided to the Buyer pursuant to Section 2(d) hereof and otherwise in connection with
the transactions contemplated hereby is true and correct in all material respects and the Company has not omitted to
state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein or therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading. No event or circumstance has occurred or exists with respect to the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or its or their business, properties, prospects, operations or financial conditions,
which, under applicable law, rule or regulation, requires public disclosure or announcement by the Company but which
has not been so publicly announced or disclosed (assuming for this purpose that the Company’s reports filed under the
1934 Act are being incorporated into an effective registration statement filed by the Company under the 1933 Act).
o. Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities . The Company acknowledges and
agrees that the Buyer is acting solely in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the Buyer is not acting as a financial
advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is
merely incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the
Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company
and its representatives.
p. No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting
on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy any
security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities to the
Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities.
q. No Brokers. The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by any
person for brokerage commissions, transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions

contemplated hereby, with the exception of the fees identified in the Placement Agent Agreement entered into by the
Company with Moody Capital Solutions, Inc.
r. Permits; Compliance . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is in possession of all
franchises, grants, authorizations, licenses, permits, easements, variances, exemptions, consents, certificates, approvals
and orders necessary to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted
(collectively, the “Company Permits”), and there is no action pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened
regarding suspension or cancellation of any of the Company Permits. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries
is in conflict with, or in default or violation of, any of the Company Permits, except for any such conflicts, defaults or
violations which, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
As of the Closing Date, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notification with respect to
possible conflicts, defaults or violations of applicable laws, except for notices relating to possible conflicts, defaults or
violations, which conflicts, defaults or violations would not have a Material Adverse Effect.
s. Environmental Matters.
(i) There are, to the Company’s knowledge, with respect to the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries or any predecessor of the Company, no past or present violations of Environmental Laws (as defined
below), releases of any material into the environment, actions, activities, circumstances, conditions, events, incidents, or
contractual obligations which may give rise to any common law environmental liability or any liability under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 or similar federal, state, local or
foreign laws and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notice with respect to any of the
foregoing, nor is any action pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened in connection with any of the
foregoing. The term “Environmental Laws” means all federal, state, local or foreign laws relating to pollution or
protection of human health or the environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, groundwater,
land surface or subsurface strata), including, without limitation, laws relating to emissions, discharges, releases or
threatened releases of chemicals, pollutants contaminants, or toxic or hazardous substances or wastes (collectively,
“Hazardous Materials”) into the environment, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use,
treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials, as well as all authorizations, codes, decrees,
demands or demand letters, injunctions, judgments, licenses, notices or notice letters, orders, permits, plans or
regulations issued, entered, promulgated or approved thereunder.
(ii) Other than those that are or were stored, used or disposed of in compliance with
applicable law, no Hazardous Materials are contained on or about any real property currently owned, leased or used by
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and no Hazardous Materials were released on or about any real property
previously owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries during the period the property was owned,
leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except in the normal course of the Company’s or any of its
Subsidiaries’ business.
(iii) There are no underground storage tanks on or under any real property owned, leased
or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that are not in compliance with applicable law.
t. Title to Property. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents the Company and its Subsidiaries
have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal property
owned by them which is material to the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all
liens, encumbrances and defects or such as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Any real property and facilities
held under lease by the Company and its Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases
with such exceptions as would not have a Material Adverse Effect.
u. Internal Accounting Controls. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, the Company and
each of its Subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient, in the judgment of the Company’s
board of directors, to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management’s
general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access
to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded
accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken
with respect to any differences.
v. Foreign Corrupt Practices . Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor any director,
officer, agent, employee or other person acting on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary has, in the course of his

actions for, or on behalf of, the Company, used any corporate funds for any unlawful contribution, gift, entertainment or
other unlawful expenses relating to political activity; made any direct or indirect unlawful payment to any foreign or
domestic government official or employee from corporate funds; violated or is in violation of any provision of the U.S.
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or made any bribe, rebate, payoff, influence payment, kickback or
other unlawful payment to any foreign or domestic government official or employee.
w.
Solvency. The Company (after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement) is solvent (i.e., its assets have a fair market value in excess of the amount required to pay its probable
liabilities on its existing debts as they become absolute and matured) and currently the Company has no information
that would lead it to reasonably conclude that the Company would not, after giving effect to the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement, have the ability to, nor does it intend to take any action that would impair its ability
to, pay its debts from time to time incurred in connection therewith as such debts mature. The Company did not receive
a qualified opinion from its auditors with respect to its most recent fiscal year end and, after giving effect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, does not anticipate or know of any basis upon which its auditors might
issue a qualified opinion in respect of its current fiscal year. For the avoidance of doubt any disclosure of the
Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not, by itself, be a violation of this Section 3(w).
x. No Investment Company. The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the
Securities as contemplated by this Agreement will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not controlled by an Investment
Company.
y. Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches any of
the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3 and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer
pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of Default as that term is defined in the Note.
4. COVENANTS.
a. Best Efforts. The parties shall use their commercially reasonable best efforts to satisfy timely
each of the conditions described in Section 6 and 7 of this Agreement.
b. Form D; Blue Sky Laws. If required under applicable law, the Company agrees to file a Form
D with respect to the Securities as required under Regulation D and to provide a copy thereof to the Buyer promptly
after such filing. The Company shall, on or before the Closing Date, take such action as the Company shall reasonably
determine is necessary to qualify the Securities for sale to the Buyer at the applicable closing pursuant to this
Agreement under applicable securities or “blue sky” laws of the states of the United States (or to obtain an exemption
from such qualification), and shall provide evidence of any such action so taken to the Buyer on or prior to the Closing
Date.
c. Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds from the sale of the Note for working
capital and other general corporate purposes and shall not, directly or indirectly, use such proceeds for any loan to or
investment in any other corporation, partnership, enterprise or other person (except in connection with its currently
existing direct or indirect Subsidiaries or pending merging partner(s)).
d. Right of First Offer . For amounts less than the current Principal Balance owed to Buyer by
the Company, the Company shall have first delivered to the Buyer, within the earlier of i) at least seventy two (72)
hours following the Company’s decision to initiate a Future Offering or ii) within seventy two (72) hours of the
Company’s receipt of such Future Offering (as defined herein), written notice describing the proposed Future Offering,
including the terms and conditions thereof, and providing the Buyer an option during the seventy two (72) hour period
following delivery of such notice to purchase the securities being offered in the Future Offering on the same terms as
contemplated by such Future Offering (the limitations referred to in this sentence and the preceding sentence are
collectively referred to as the “Right of First Offer”) (and subject to the exceptions described below), the Company will
not conduct any bridge debt financing (including debt with an equity component) (“Future Offerings”) during the
period beginning on the Closing Date and ending twelve (12) months following the Closing Date. In the event the
terms and conditions of a proposed Future Offering are amended in any respect after delivery of the notice to the Buyer
concerning the proposed Future Offering, the Company shall deliver a new notice to the Buyer describing the amended
terms and conditions of the proposed Future Offering and the Buyer thereafter shall have an option during the seventy
two (72) hour period following delivery of such new notice to purchase its pro rata share of the securities being offered
on the same terms as contemplated by such proposed Future Offering, as amended. The foregoing sentence shall apply
to successive amendments to the terms and conditions of any proposed Future Offering. The Right of First Offer shall

not apply to any transaction involving (i) issuances of securities in a firm commitment underwritten public offering
(excluding a continuous offering pursuant to Rule 415 under the 1933 Act), (ii) issuances to employees, officers,
directors, contractors, consultants or other advisors approved by the Board, (iii) issuances to strategic partners or other
parties in connection with a commercial relationship, or providing the Company with equipment leases, real property
leases or similar transactions approved by the Board (iv) issuances of securities as consideration for a merger,
consolidation or purchase of assets, or in connection with any strategic partnership or joint venture (the primary purpose
of which is not to raise equity capital), or in connection with the disposition or acquisition of a business, product or
license by the Company. The Right of First Offer also shall not apply to the issuance of securities upon exercise or
conversion of the Company’s options, warrants or other convertible securities outstanding as of the date hereof or to the
grant of additional options or warrants, or the issuance of additional securities, under any Company stock option or
restricted stock plan approved by the shareholders of the Company.
e. Expenses. At the Closing, the Company shall reimburse Buyer in an amount not to exceed
$8,000.00 for expenses incurred by them in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement and the other agreements to be executed in connection herewith (“Documents”),
including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ and consultants’ fees and expenses, transfer agent fees, fees for
stock quotation services, fees relating to any amendments or modifications of the Documents or any consents or
waivers of provisions in the Documents, fees for the preparation of opinions of counsel, escrow fees, and costs of
restructuring the transactions contemplated by the Documents. The Company’s obligation to reimburse Buyer’s
expenses with respect to this transaction shall be limited to the above identified $8,000.00, which such amount shall be
withheld from the proceeds paid to the Company upon the closing of this transaction.
f. Financial Information. The Company agrees to send or make available the following reports to
the Buyer until the Buyer transfers, assigns, or sells all of the Securities: (i) within ten (10) days after the filing with the
SEC, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any Current Reports on Form
8-K; (ii) within one (1) day after release, copies of all press releases issued by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries;
and (iii) contemporaneously with the making available or giving to the shareholders of the Company, copies of any
notices or other information the Company makes available or gives to such shareholders. For the avoidance of doubt,
filing the documents required in (i) above via EDGAR or releasing any documents set forth in (ii) above via a
recognized wire service shall satisfy the delivery requirements of this Section 4(f).
g. Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon each
national securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then listed
(subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, shall maintain, so long as
any other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable
upon conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain
the listing and trading of its Common Stock on the OTC Markets or any equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq
National Market (“Nasdaq”), the Nasdaq SmallCap Market (“Nasdaq SmallCap”), the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”), or the NYSE MKT and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other
obligations under the bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and such exchanges,
as applicable. The Company shall promptly provide to the Buyer copies of any material notices it receives from the
OTC Markets and any other exchanges or quotation systems on which the Common Stock is then listed regarding the
continued eligibility of the Common Stock for listing on such exchanges and quotation systems.
h. Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company shall
maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event of
a merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, where the surviving or successor
entity in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments
entered into in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading
on the OTC Markets, Nasdaq, Nasdaq, SmallCap, NYSE or AMEX, or any applicable trading exchange.
i. No Integration. The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other than the
Securities) under circumstances that would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder under
the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any other offering of securities by the
Company for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities.
j. Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note, the
Company shall comply with the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject
to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act.

k. Trading Activities. Neither the Buyer nor its affiliates has an open short position (or other
hedging or similar transactions) in the common stock of the Company and the Buyer agree that it shall not, and that it
will cause its affiliates not to, engage in any short sales of or hedging transactions with respect to the common stock of
the Company.
l. Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this Section 4,
and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an event
of default under Section 3.3 of the Note.
5. Transfer Agent Instructions . Prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the
date on which the Conversion Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of
Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, all such certificates shall bear the restrictive legend
specified in Section 2(g) of this Agreement. The Company warrants that: (i) no stop transfer instructions to give effect
to Section 2(f) hereof (in the case of the Conversion Shares, prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the
1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to
the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold), will be given by the Company to its
transfer agent and that the Securities shall otherwise be freely transferable on the books and records of the Company as
and to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer agent not to transfer or
delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in certificated form) any
certificate for Conversion Shares to be issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and
when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to
remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any
stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any Conversion Shares issued to the Buyer upon
conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement. Nothing in this
Section shall affect in any way the Buyer’s obligations and agreement set forth in Section 2(g) hereof to comply with all
applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any, upon re-sale of the Securities. If the Buyer provides the Company,
at the cost of the Buyer, with (i) an opinion of counsel in form, substance and scope customary for opinions in
comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may be made without registration
under the 1933 Act and such sale or transfer is effected or (ii) the Buyer provides reasonable assurances that the
Securities can be sold pursuant to Rule 144, the Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of the Conversion
Shares, promptly instruct its transfer agent to issue one or more certificates, free from restrictive legend, in such name
and in such denominations as specified by the Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations
hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions contemplated
hereby. Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this
Section may be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions
of this Section, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining
any breach and requiring immediate transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or
other security being required.
6. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATIONS TO SELL . The obligation of
the Company hereunder to issue and sell the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before
the Closing Date of each of the following conditions thereto, provided that these conditions are for the Company’s sole
benefit and may be waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Company.
b. The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b) above.
c. The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations
and warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all
material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied
or complied with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date.
d. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have
been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction
or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
7. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE BUYER’S OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE . The obligation

of the Buyer hereunder to purchase the Note at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date
of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the Buyer’s sole benefit and may be waived
by the Buyer at any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Buyer.
b. The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer duly executed Note (in such denominations as
the Buyer shall request) in accordance with Section 1(b) above.

c. The Buyer shall have received a share reservation agreement signed by the Company and its
transfer agent in a form satisfactory to the Buyer and its counsel.
d. The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at such time (except for representations
and warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all
material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied
or complied with by the Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a certificate or
certificates, executed by the chief executive officer of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing
effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited to
certificates with respect to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws and Board of Directors’ resolutions
relating to the transactions contemplated hereby.
e. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have
been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction
or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
f. No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect on the Company including but not limited to a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or the
failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations.
g. The Conversion Shares shall have been authorized for quotation on the OTC Markets or any
similar quotation system and trading in the Common Stock on the OTC Markets or any similar quotation system shall
not have been suspended by the SEC or the OTC Markets or any similar quotation system.
h. The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate described in Section 7(d) above, dated as
of the Closing Date.
8. GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS .
a. Governing Law. Except in the case of the Mandatory Forum Selection provisions in Section
8(b) below, which clause shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with Florida law, this Agreement and all
other Transaction Documents shall be delivered and accepted in and shall be deemed to be contracts made under and
governed by the internal laws of the State of Minnesota, and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of such state, without giving effect to the choice of law provisions of such state.
b. Mandatory Forum Selection. Any action brought by either party against the other concerning
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of Minnesota or in the federal
courts located in the state of Minnesota. The parties to this Agreement hereby irrevocably waive any objection to
jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction
or venue or based upon forum non conveniens. The Company and Buyer waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this
Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable
statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and
shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or
unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement.
Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any suit,
action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof
via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for

notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process
and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other
manner permitted by law.
c. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and shall become effective
when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. This Agreement, once executed by
a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf’ format
file or other similar format file, such signature shall be deemed an original for all purposes and shall create a valid and
binding obligation of the party executing same with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or “.pdf’ signature
page was an original thereof.
d. Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not
form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement.
e. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable
under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may
conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof
which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision hereof.
f. Entire Agreement; Amendments . This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein
contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as
specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty,
covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other
than by an instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer.
g. Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications
required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable
air courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set
forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or
other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or
delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or
number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be
received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal
business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by
express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever
shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:
If to the Company, to:
INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
2151 PROFESSIONAL DRIVE, 2 ND FLOOR
ROSEVILLE, CA 95661
ATTN: MATTHEW MOORE / CEO
EMAIL: MATTHEW@INND.COM

With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice):
If to the Buyer, to:
CAREBOURN CAPITAL, L.P.
8700 Black Oaks Lane N.
Maple Grove MN 55311
Attn: Chip Rice, Managing Member
EMAIL: INFO@CAREBOURNCAPITAL.COM

Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.
h. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any rights
or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject to
Section 2(f), the Buyer may assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction
from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the
Company.
i. Third Party Beneficiaries . This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and
their respective permitted successors and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be
enforced by, any other person.
j. Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and
covenants set forth in this Agreement notwithstanding any investigation by Buyer shall survive the closing hereunder
and shall be deemed to be continuing representations and warranties until such time as the Company have fulfilled all
of its obligations to Buyer hereunder and under all other Transaction Documents, and Buyer has been indefeasibly paid
in full and disposed of any and all Conversion Shares held by Buyer.
k. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their officers,
directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach by the Company of
any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its covenants and obligations
under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred.
l. Further Assurances . Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all
such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and
documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of
this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
m. No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the
language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party.
n. Remedies.
(i) The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will
cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement
will be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in
addition to the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach
of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing
economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
(ii) In addition to any other remedy provided herein or in any document executed in
connection herewith, Borrower shall pay Holder for all costs, fees and expenses in connection with any litigation,
contest, dispute, suit or any other action to enforce any rights of Holder against Borrower in connection herewith,
including, but not limited to, costs and expenses and attorneys' fees, and costs and time charges of counsel to Holder.
o. Publicity. The Company, and the Buyer shall have the right to review a reasonable period of
time before issuance of any press releases, SEC, OTC Markets or FINRA filings, or any other public statements with
respect to the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that the Company shall be entitled, without the
prior approval of the Buyer, to make any press release or SEC, OTC Markets (or other applicable trading market) or
FINRA filings with respect to such transactions as is required by applicable law and regulations (although the Buyer
shall be consulted by the Company in connection with any such press release prior to its release and shall be provided
with a copy thereof and be given an opportunity to comment thereon).
p. Role of Counsel. The Company acknowledges its understanding that this Agreement and other
agreements entered into in connection with the Agreement were prepared at the request of the Buyer by [Legal &
Compliance, LLC], legal counsel for the Buyer and that such law firm or any of its attorneys did not represent the

Company in conjunction with this Agreement, the Transaction Documents or any of the related transactions. The
Company, as further evidenced by its signature below, acknowledges that is has had the opportunity to obtain the
advice of independent counsel of their choosing prior to the execution of this Agreement and that it has availed itself of
this opportunity to the extent the Company deemed necessary and advisable. By its signature below, the Company
represents and warrants that they it understands the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

[- Signature page follows -]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date first above written.

INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: ________________________________
Name: MATTHEW MOORE
Title: CEO

CAREBOURN CAPITAL, L.P.
By: Carebourn Partners, LLC,
a Minnesota limited liability company,
its General Partner

By:______________________________
Name: Chip Rice
Title: Managing Member

AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
Aggregate Principal Amount of Note:

$95,450.00

Aggregate Purchase Price:

$75,000.00

Exhibit 10.26

NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS NOTENOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.
THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN
THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL
SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE
144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES
MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

Principal Amount: $95,450.00
Purchase Price: $83,000.00
Original Issue Discount: $12,450.00

Issue Date: April 8, 2018

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE
FOR VALUE RECEIVED , InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. a Nevada corporation (hereinafter
called the “Borrower”), hereby promises to pay to the order of CAREBOURN CAPITAL, L.P. , a Delaware limited
partnership, or registered assigns (the “Holder”) the sum of $95,450.00 together with any interest as set forth herein, on
July 8, 2019 (the “Maturity Date”), and to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance hereof at the rate of 10% (The
“Interest Rate”) per annum from the date hereof (the “Issue Date”) until the same becomes due and payable, whether at
maturity or upon acceleration or by prepayment or otherwise. Interest shall commence accruing on the date that the
Note is fully paid and shall be computed on the basis of a 365-day year and the actual number of days elapsed. All
payments due hereunder (to the extent not converted into common stock, $0.0001 par value per share (the “Common
Stock”) in accordance with the terms hereof) shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America. All
payments shall be made at such address as the Holder shall hereafter give to the Borrower by written notice made in
accordance with the provisions of this Note. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due
on any day which is not a business day, the same shall instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business
day and, in the case of any interest payment date which is not the date on which this Note is paid in full, the extension
of the due date thereof shall not be taken into account for purposes of determining the amount of interest due on such
date. As used in this Note, the term “business day” shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on
which commercial banks in the city of New York, New York are authorized or required by law or executive order to
remain closed. Each capitalized term used herein, and not otherwise defined, shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in
that certain Securities Purchase Agreement dated the date hereof, pursuant to which this Note was originally issued (the
“Purchase Agreement”).
This Note carries an original issue discount of $12,450.00 (the “OID”). In addition, the Borrower shall
authorize the Holder, pursuant to a disbursement memorandum dated on or around the Issue Date, to pay $8,000.00
(the “Transactional Expense Amount”) to the Holder or the Holder’s designee, to cover the Holder’s accounting fees,
due diligence fees, monitoring (including but not limited to ACH monitoring costs), and/or other transactional costs
incurred in connection with the purchase of the Note, as well as $-0- (the “Legal Fee”) to Holder’s attorney, to cover
Holder’s legal review fees in connection with the purchase and sale of the Note, all of which are included in the initial
principal balance of this Note. The Purchase Price of this Note shall be $83,000.00, computed as follows: $95,450.00
initial principal balance less the OID. Accordingly, the net amount to be received by the Company shall be $ 75,000.00,
computed as follows: the purchase price of $83,000.00, less the Transactional Expense Amount.
This Note is free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not
be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Borrower and will not impose personal
liability upon the holder thereof.
The following terms shall apply to this Note:
ARTICLE I. CONVERSION RIGHTS

1.1 Conversion Right. The Holder shall have the right from time to time, and at any time following
Ninety (90) days after the date of this Note and ending on the later of: (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of
payment of the Default Amount (as defined in Article III) pursuant to Section 1.6(a) or Article III, each in respect of the
remaining outstanding principal amount of this Note to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid principal
amount of this Note into fully paid and non- assessable shares of Common Stock, as such Common Stock exists on the
Issue Date, or any shares of capital stock or other securities of the Borrower into which such Common Stock shall
hereafter be changed or reclassified at the conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) determined as provided herein (a
“Conversion”); provided, however, that in no event shall the Holder be entitled to convert any portion of this Note in
excess of that portion of this Note upon conversion of which the sum of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock
beneficially owned by the Holder and its affiliates (other than shares of Common Stock which may be deemed
beneficially owned through the ownership of the unconverted portion of the Notes or the unexercised or unconverted
portion of any other security of the Borrower subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the
limitations contained herein) and (2) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the
portion of this Note with respect to which the determination of this proviso is being made, would result in beneficial
ownership by the Holder and its affiliates of more than 4.99% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. For
purposes of the proviso to the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial ownership shall be determined in accordance
with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and Regulations 13D-G
thereunder, except as otherwise provided in clause (1) of such proviso, provided, further, however, that the limitations
on conversion may be waived by the Holder upon, at the election of the Holder, not less than 61 days’ prior notice to
the Borrower, and the provisions of the conversion limitation shall continue to apply until such 61st day (or such later
date, as determined by the Holder, as may be specified in such notice of waiver). The number of shares of Common
Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be determined by dividing the Conversion Amount (as
defined below) by the applicable Conversion Price then in effect on the date specified in the notice of conversion, in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Notice of Conversion”), delivered to the Borrower by the Holder in accordance
with Section 1.4 below; provided that the Notice of Conversion is submitted by facsimile or e-mail (or by other means
resulting in, or reasonably expected to result in, notice) to the Borrower before 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time
on such conversion date (the “Conversion Date”). The term “Conversion Amount” means, with respect to any
conversion of this Note, the sum of (1) the principal amount of this Note to be converted in such conversion plus (2) at
the Holder’s option, accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on such principal amount at the interest rates provided in this
Note to the Conversion Date, plus (34) at the Holder’s option, any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3
and 1.4(g) hereof.
1.2 Conversion Price.
Calculation of Conversion Price . The conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) shall equal the Variable
Conversion Price (as defined herein) (subject to equitable adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends or rights
offerings by the Borrower relating to the Borrower’s securities or the securities of any subsidiary of the Borrower,
combinations, recapitalization, reclassifications, extraordinary distributions and similar events). The "Variable
Conversion Price" shall mean 65% multiplied by the Market Price (as defined herein) (representing a discount rate of
35%). In the case that shares of the Borrower’s common stock are not deliverable via DWAC following the conversion
of any amount hereunder, an additional Five Percent (5%) discount shall be added to the amount being converted at
such time. In the event that the Borrower defaults on ACH Payment (3.18), an additional five percent (5%) discount
shall be added to the amount being converted at such time. “Market Price” means the lowest Trading Price (as defined
below) for the Common Stock during the twenty (20) Trading Day period ending on the latest complete Trading Day
prior to the Conversion Date. “Trading Price” means, for any security as of any date, the lowest price quoted on the
OTC Markets operated by the OTC Markets Group, Inc. or applicable trading market (the “OTC”) as reported by a
reliable reporting service (“Reporting Service”) designated by the Holder (i.e. Bloomberg) or, if the OTC Markets is not
the principal trading market for such security, the closing bid price of such security on the principal securities exchange
or trading market where such security is listed or traded. If the Trading Price cannot be calculated for such security on
such date in the manner provided above, the Trading Price shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the
Borrower and the holders of a majority in interest of the Notes being converted for which the calculation of the
Trading Price is required in order to determine the Conversion Price of such Notes. “Trading Day” shall mean any day
on which the Common Stock is tradable for any period on the OTC Markets, or on the principal securities exchange or
other securities market on which the Common Stock is then being traded.
1.3 Authorized Shares. The Borrower covenants that during the period the conversion right exists, the
Borrower will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares, free from
preemptive rights, to provide for the issuance of Common Stock upon the full conversion of this Note issued pursuant
to the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower is required at all times to have authorized and reserved five times the
number of shares that is actually issuable upon full conversion of the Note (based on the Conversion Price of the Notes

in effect from time to time)(the “Reserved Amount”). The Reserved Amount shall be increased from time to time in
accordance with the Borrower’s obligations pursuant to Section 4(g) of the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower
represents that upon issuance, such shares will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. In addition, if
the Borrower shall issue any securities or make any change to its capital structure which would change the number of
shares of Common Stock into which the Notes shall be convertible at the then current Conversion Price, the Borrower
shall at the same time make proper provision so that thereafter there shall be a sufficient number of shares of Common
Stock authorized and reserved, free from preemptive rights, for conversion of the outstanding Notes. The Borrower (i)
acknowledges that it has irrevocably instructed its transfer agent to issue certificates for the Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of this Note, and (ii) agrees that its issuance of this Note shall constitute full authority to its officers
and agents who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary certificates
for shares of Common Stock in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note.
If, at any time the Borrower does not maintain the Reserved Amount it will be considered an Event of
Default under Article III of the Note. However, upon receipt of written notice from the Holder of Borrower’s failure to
maintain the Reserved Amount, the Borrower shall have three (3) days to cure any deficiencies in the Reserved
Amount.
1.4 Method of Conversion .
(a) Mechanics of Conversion . Subject to Section 1.1, this Note may be converted by the Holder
in whole or in part at any time from time to time after Ninety (90) Days following the Issue Date, by (A) submitting to
the Borrower a Notice of Conversion (by facsimile, e-mail or other reasonable means of communication dispatched on
the Conversion Date prior to 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time) and (B) subject to Section 1.4(b), surrendering this
Note at the principal office of the Borrower.
(b) Surrender of Note Upon Conversion . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth
herein, upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically
surrender this Note to the Borrower unless the entire unpaid principal amount of this Note is so converted. The Holder
and the Borrower shall maintain records showing the principal amount so converted and the dates of such conversions
or shall use such other method, reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and the Borrower, so as not to require physical
surrender of this Note upon each such conversion. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, such records of the
Borrower shall, prima facie, be controlling and determinative in the absence of manifest error. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any portion of this Note is converted as aforesaid, the Holder may not transfer this Note unless the Holder
first physically surrenders this Note to the Borrower, whereupon the Borrower will forthwith issue and deliver upon the
order of the Holder a new Note of like tenor, registered as the Holder (upon payment by the Holder of any applicable
transfer taxes) may request, representing in the aggregate the remaining unpaid principal amount of this Note. The
Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of this Note, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this
paragraph, following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note
represented by this Note may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.
(c) Payment of Taxes. The Borrower shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable
in respect of any transfer involved in the issue and delivery of shares of Common Stock or other securities or property
on conversion of this Note in a name other than that of the Holder (or in street name), and the Borrower shall not be
required to issue or deliver any such shares or other securities or property unless and until the person or persons (other
than the Holder or the custodian in whose street name such shares are to be held for the Holder’s account) requesting
the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Borrower the amount of any such tax or shall have established to the
satisfaction of the Borrower that such tax has been paid.
(d) Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion . Upon receipt by the Borrower from the
Holder of a facsimile transmission or e-mail (or other reasonable means of communication) of a Notice of Conversion
meeting the requirements for conversion as provided in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall issue and deliver or cause to
be issued and delivered to or upon the order of the Holder certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion within three (3) business days after such receipt (the “Deadline”) (and, solely in the case of conversion of
the entire unpaid principal amount hereof, surrender of this Note) in accordance with the terms hereof and the Purchase
Agreement.
(e) Obligation of Borrower to Deliver Common Stock . Upon receipt by the Borrower of a
Notice of Conversion, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of record of the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion, the outstanding principal amount and the amount of accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall be
reduced to reflect such conversion, and, unless the Borrower defaults on its obligations under this Article I, all rights

with respect to the portion of this Note being so converted shall forthwith terminate except the right to receive the
Common Stock or other securities, cash or other assets, as herein provided, on such conversion. If the Holder shall have
given a Notice of Conversion as provided herein, the Borrower’s obligation to issue and deliver the certificates for
Common Stock shall be absolute and unconditional, irrespective of the absence of any action by the Holder to enforce
the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision thereof, the recovery of any judgment against any person
or any action to enforce the same, any failure or delay in the enforcement of any other obligation of the Borrower to the
holder of record, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by
the Holder of any obligation to the Borrower, and irrespective of any other circumstance which might otherwise limit
such obligation of the Borrower to the Holder in connection with such conversion. The Conversion Date specified in the
Notice of Conversion shall be the Conversion Date so long as the Notice of Conversion is received by the Borrower
before 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time, on such date.
(f) Delivery of Common Stock by Electronic Transfer . In lieu of delivering physical certificates
representing the Common Stock issuable upon conversion, provided the Borrower is participating in the Depository
Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer (“FAST”) program, upon request of the Holder and its
compliance with the provisions contained in Section 1.1 and in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall use its best efforts to
cause its transfer agent to electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the Holder by
crediting the account of Holder’s Prime Broker with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission
(“DWAC”) system.
( g ) Failure to Deliver Common Stock Prior to Deadline . Without in any way limiting the
Holder’s right to pursue other remedies, including actual damages and/or equitable relief, the parties agree that if
delivery of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note is not delivered by the Deadline (other than a
failure due to the circumstances described in Section 1.3 above, which failure shall be governed by such Section) the
Borrower shall pay to the Holder $2,000 per day in cash, for each day beyond the Deadline that the Borrower fails to
deliver such Common Stock. Such cash amount shall be paid to Holder by the fifth day of the month following the
month in which it has accrued or, at the option of the Holder (by written notice to the Borrower by the first day of the
month following the month in which it has accrued), shall be added to the principal amount of this Note, in which event
interest shall accrue thereon in accordance with the terms of this Note and such additional principal amount shall be
convertible into Common Stock in accordance with the terms of this Note. The Borrower agrees that the right to convert
is a valuable right to the Holder. The damages resulting from a failure, attempt to frustrate, interference with such
conversion right are difficult if not impossible to qualify. Accordingly the parties acknowledge that the liquidated
damages provision contained in this Section 1.4(g) are justified.
1.5 Concerning the Shares. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note may
not be sold or transferred unless (i) such shares are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Act or
(ii) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have been furnished with an opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in
form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that the shares to
be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration or (iii) such shares are
sold or transferred pursuant to Rule 144 under the Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”) or (iv) such shares are
transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144) of the Borrower who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the shares
only in accordance with this Section 1.5 and who is an Accredited Investor (as defined in the Purchase Agreement).
Except as otherwise provided in the Purchase Agreement (and subject to the removal provisions set forth below), until
such time as the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note have been registered under the Act or
otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date
that can then be immediately sold, each certificate for shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note
that has not been so included in an effective registration statement or that has not been sold pursuant to an effective
registration statement or an exemption that permits removal of the legend, shall bear a legend substantially in the
following form, as appropriate:
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS
CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE
EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE
OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A)
AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH
COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE
FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS
SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING

THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A
BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT
SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Borrower shall issue to the Holder a new certificate
therefore free of any transfer legend if (i) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have received an opinion of counsel,
in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public
sale or transfer of such Common Stock may be made without registration under the Act, which opinion shall be
accepted by the Company so that the sale or transfer is effected or (ii) in the case of the Common Stock issuable upon
conversion of this Note, such security is registered for sale by the Holder under an effective registration statement filed
under the Act or otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of securities as of
a particular date that can then be immediately sold. In the event that the Company does not accept the opinion of
counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration,
such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, at the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of
the Note.
1.6 Effect of Certain Events .
(a) Effect of Merger, Consolidation, Etc . At the option of the Holder, the sale, conveyance or
disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower, the effectuation by the Borrower of a transaction or
series of related transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power of the Borrower is disposed of, or the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Borrower with or into any other Person (as defined below)
or Persons when the Borrower is not the survivor shall either: (i) be deemed to be an Event of Default (as defined in
Article III) pursuant to which the Borrower shall be required to pay to the Holder upon the consummation of and as a
condition to such transaction an amount equal to the Default Amount (as defined in Article III) or (ii) be treated
pursuant to Section 1.6(b) hereof. “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, limited liability company,
partnership, association, trust or other entity or organization.
(b) Adjustment Due to Merger, Consolidation, Etc . If, at any time when this Note is issued and
outstanding and prior to conversion of all of the Notes, there shall be any merger, consolidation, or an exchange of
shares, recapitalization or reorganization pursuant to a merger or consolidation, or other similar event, as a result of
which shares of Common Stock of the Borrower shall be changed into the same or a different number of shares of
another class or classes of stock or securities of the Borrower or another entity, or in case of any sale or conveyance of
all or substantially all of the assets or more than 50% of the total outstanding shares of the Borrower other than in
connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Borrower, then the Holder of this Note shall thereafter have the
right to receive upon conversion of this Note, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified herein and in
lieu of the shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such stock, securities or assets
which the Holder would have been entitled to receive in such transaction had this Note been converted in full
immediately prior to such transaction (without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein), and in any such
case appropriate provisions shall be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holder of this Note to the end
that the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustment of the Conversion Price and of the
number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as may be practicable
in relation to any securities or assets thereafter deliverable upon the conversion hereof. The Borrower shall not affect
any transaction described in this Section 1.6(b) unless (a) it first gives, to the extent practicable, thirty (30) days prior
written notice (but in any event at least fifteen (15) days prior written notice) of the record date of the special meeting
of shareholders to approve, or if there is no such record date, the consummation of, such merger, consolidation,
exchange of shares, recapitalization, reorganization or other similar event or sale of assets (during which time the
Holder shall be entitled to convert this Note) and (b) the resulting successor or acquiring entity (if not the Borrower)
assumes by written instrument the obligations of this Section 1.6(b). The above provisions shall similarly apply to
successive consolidations, mergers, sales, transfers or share exchanges.
(c) Adjustment Due to Distribution . If the Borrower shall declare or make any distribution of its
assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of Common Stock as a dividend, stock repurchase, by way of return of
capital or otherwise (including any dividend or distribution to the Borrower’s shareholders in cash or shares (or rights to
acquire shares) of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e., a spin-off)) (a “Distribution”), then the Holder of this Note shall be
entitled, upon any conversion of this Note after the date of record for determining shareholders entitled to such
Distribution, to receive the amount of such assets which would have been payable to the Holder with respect to the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion had such Holder been the holder of such shares of Common
Stock on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to such Distribution.

(f) Notice of Adjustments . Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the
Conversion Price as a result of the events described in this Section 1.6, the Borrower, at its expense, shall promptly
compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Holder of a certificate setting forth such
adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The
Borrower shall, upon the written request at any time of the Holder, furnish to such Holder a like certificate setting forth
(i) such adjustment or readjustment, (ii) the Conversion Price at the time in effect and (iii) the number of shares of
Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other securities or property which at the time would be received upon
conversion of the Note.
1.8 Status as Shareholder . Upon submission of a Notice of Conversion by a Holder, (i) the shares
covered thereby (other than the shares, if any, which cannot be issued because their issuance would exceed such
Holder’s allocated portion of the Reserved Amount or Maximum Share Amount) shall be deemed converted into shares
of Common Stock and (ii) the Holder’s rights as a Holder of such converted portion of this Note shall cease and
terminate, excepting only the right to receive certificates for such shares of Common Stock and to any remedies
provided herein or otherwise available at law or in equity to such Holder because of a failure by the Borrower to
comply with the terms of this Note. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Holder has not received certificates for all
shares of Common Stock prior to the tenth (10th) business day after the expiration of the Deadline with respect to a
conversion of any portion of this Note for any reason, then (unless the Holder otherwise elects to retain its status as a
holder of Common Stock by so notifying the Borrower) the Holder shall regain the rights of a Holder of this Note with
respect to such unconverted portions of this Note and the Borrower shall, as soon as practicable, return such
unconverted Note to the Holder or, if the Note has not been surrendered, adjust its records to reflect that such portion of
this Note has not been converted. In all cases, the Holder shall retain all of its rights and remedies (including, without
limitation, (i) the right to receive Conversion Default Payments pursuant to Section 1.3 to the extent required thereby
for such Conversion Default and any subsequent Conversion Default and (ii) the right to have the Conversion Price
with respect to subsequent conversions determined in accordance with Section 1.3) for the Borrower’s failure to convert
this Note.
1.9 Prepayment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note, the Borrower may
prepay the amounts outstanding hereunder pursuant to the following terms and conditions, and subject to the Holder’s
acceptance in Holder’s sole discretion:
(a) At any time during the period beginning on the Issue Date and ending on the date which is
one hundred and eighty (180) days following the Issue Date, the Borrower shall have the right,
exercisable on not less than twenty (20) Trading Days prior written notice to the Holder of the Note to
prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full by making a payment to the Holder
of an amount in cash equal to 130%, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount
of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note.
(b) At any time during the period beginning the day which is one hundred and eighty one (181)
days following the Issue Date and ending on the date which is FOUR HUNDRED & TWENTY SIX
(426) days following the Issue Date, the Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than
twenty (20) Trading Days prior written notice to the Holder of the Note to prepay the outstanding Note
(principal and accrued interest), in full by making a payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to
150%, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued
and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note.
(c) After the expiration of FOUR HUNDRED & TWENTY-SIX (426) days, the Borrower shall
have no right of prepayment.
Any notice of prepayment hereunder (an “Optional Prepayment Notice”) shall be delivered to the Holder
of the Note at its registered addresses and shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the
Note, and (2) the date of prepayment which shall be not more than twenty (20) Trading Days from the date of
the Optional Prepayment Notice. On the date fixed for prepayment (the “Optional Prepayment Date”), the
Borrower shall make payment of the applicable prepayment amount to or upon the order of the Holder as
specified by the Holder in writing to the Borrower at least one (1) business day prior to the Optional Prepayment
Date. If the Borrower delivers an Optional Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the applicable prepayment amount
due to the Holder of the Note within two (2) business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the
Borrower shall forever forfeit its right to prepay the Note pursuant to this Section 1.9. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary in this Note, the Borrower’s right to prepay the amounts outstanding under this Note, in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note, is expressly conditional upon the Holder’s written

acceptance, in Holder’s sole discretion, of such applicable prepayment during the time that the Borrower is
exercising their right to prepay this Note.
ARTICLE II. CERTAIN COVENANTS
2.1 Distributions on Capital Stock. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note,
the Borrower shall not without the Holder’s written consent (a) pay, declare or set apart for such payment, any dividend
or other distribution (whether in cash, property or other securities) on shares of capital stock other than dividends on
shares of Common Stock solely in the form of additional shares of Common Stock or (b) directly or indirectly or
through any subsidiary make any other payment or distribution in respect of its capital stock except for distributions
pursuant to any shareholders’ rights plan which is approved by a majority of the Borrower’s disinterested directors.

2.3 Sale of Assets . So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower
shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, sell, lease, exchange (including but not limited to an exchange for assets
of equal or greater value) or otherwise dispose of any significant portion of its assets outside the ordinary course of
business. Any consent to the disposition of any assets may be conditioned on a specified use of the proceeds of
disposition.
2.4 Advances and Loans. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the
Borrower shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, lend money, give credit or make advances to any person,
firm, joint venture or corporation, including, without limitation, officers, directors, employees, subsidiaries and
affiliates of the Borrower, except loans, credits or advances (a) in existence or committed on the date hereof and which
the Borrower has informed Holder in writing prior to the date hereof, (b) made in the ordinary course of business, (c)
made to a pending merging partner pursuant to an agreement of merger or (c) not in excess of $100,000.

ARTICLE III. EVENTS OF DEFAULT
If any of the following events of default (each, an “Event of Default”) shall occur:
3.1 Failure to Pay Principal or Interest . The Borrower fails to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon
when due on this Note, whether at maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise, following a five (5) day cure period.
3.2 Conversion and the Shares . The Borrower fails to issue shares of Common Stock to the Holder (or
announces or threatens in writing that it will not honor its obligation to do so) upon exercise by the Holder of the
conversion rights of the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Note, fails to transfer or cause its transfer agent to
transfer (issue) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder
upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, the Borrower directs its
transfer agent not to transfer or delays, impairs, and/or hinders its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing)
(electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder upon
conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, or fails to remove (or directs its
transfer agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend
(or to withdraw any stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any shares of Common Stock
issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note (or
makes any written announcement, statement or threat that it does not intend to honor the obligations described in this
paragraph) and any such failure shall continue uncured (or any written announcement, statement or threat not to honor
its obligations shall not be rescinded in writing) for three (3) business days after the Holder shall have delivered a
Notice of Conversion. It is an obligation of the Borrower to remain current in its obligations to its transfer agent. It shall
be an event of default of this Note, if a conversion of this Note is delayed, hindered or frustrated due to a balance owed
by the Borrower to its transfer agent. If at the option of the Holder, the Holder advances any funds to the Borrower’s
transfer agent in order to process a conversion, such advanced funds shall be paid by the Borrower to the Holder within
forty eight (48) hours of a demand from the Holder.
3.3 Breach of Covenants . The Borrower breaches any covenant or other material term or condition
contained in this Note and any collateral documents including but not limited to the Purchase Agreement and such
breach continues for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof to the Borrower from the Holder.
3.4 Breach of Representations and Warranties . Any representation or warranty of the Borrower made
herein or in any agreement, statement or certificate given in writing pursuant hereto or in connection herewith

(including, without limitation, the Purchase Agreement), shall be false or misleading in any material respect when made
and the breach of which has (or with the passage of time will have) a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder
with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement.
3.5 Receiver or Trustee . The Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower shall make an assignment for
the benefit of creditors, or apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver or trustee for it or for a substantial part
of its property or business, or such a receiver or trustee shall otherwise be appointed.
3.6 Judgments. Any money judgment, writ or similar process shall be entered or filed against the
Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower or any of its property or other assets for more than $50,000, and shall
remain unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of twenty (20) days unless otherwise consented to by the Holder,
which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.
3 . 7 Bankruptcy. Bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or liquidation proceedings or other
proceedings, voluntary or involuntary, for relief under any bankruptcy law or any law for the relief of debtors shall be
instituted by or against the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower.
3.8 Delisting of Common Stock . The Borrower shall fail to maintain the listing of the Common Stock
on at least one of the OTC Markets or an equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq National Market, the Nasdaq
SmallCap Market, the New York Stock Exchange, or the American Stock Exchange.
3.9 Failure to Comply with the Exchange Act . The Borrower shall fail to comply with the reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act; and/or the Borrower shall cease to be subject to the reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act.
3.10 Liquidation. Any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of Borrower or any substantial portion of
its business.
3.11 Cessation of Operations. Any cessation of operations by Borrower or Borrower admits it is
otherwise generally unable to pay its debts as such debts become due, provided, however, that any disclosure of the
Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not be an admission that the Borrower cannot pay its debts as
they become due.
3.12 Maintenance of Assets . The failure by Borrower to maintain any material intellectual property
rights, personal, real property or other assets which are necessary to conduct its business (whether now or in the future).
3.13 Financial Statement Restatement. The restatement of any financial statements filed by the
Borrower with the SEC for any date or period from two years prior to the Issue Date of this Note and until this Note is
no longer outstanding, if the result of such restatement would, by comparison to the unrestated financial statement,
have constituted a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase
Agreement.
3.14 Reverse Splits. The Borrower effectuates a reverse split of its Common Stock without twenty (20)
days prior written notice to the Holder.
3.15 Replacement of Transfer Agent . In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer
agent, the Borrower fails to provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable
Transfer Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not
limited to the provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the
successor transfer agent to Borrower and the Borrower.
3.16 Cross-Default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or other related or
companion documents, a breach or default by the Borrower of any covenant or other term or condition contained any
other financial instrument, including but not limited to all convertible promissory notes, already issued, or issued in the
future, by the Borrower, to the Holder or any other 3 rd party, after the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace
periods, shall, at the option of the Holder, be considered a default under this Note.
3.17 ACH Account Change . The Borrower changes it bank account to an account that differs from the
bank account specified on Exhibit B attached hereto, without (i) prior signed written consent of the Holder and (ii)

Borrower’s execution of a signed authorization agreement for preauthorized payments that is exactly the same as the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B (except for the new bank account information) with respect to the new bank account.
3.18 ACH Payment Default . The Borrower blocks, rejects, or otherwise restricts any action taken by
Holder pursuant to Holder’s rights under this Note with respect to the Borrower’s bank account, including but not
limited to Holder’s withdrawal of the Specific Daily Repayment Amount (as defined in Exhibit B attached hereto)
pursuant to an ACH debit transaction or otherwise from the Borrower’s bank account, or the Holder’s withdrawal of the
Specific Daily Repayment Amount from the Borrower’s bank account pursuant to an ACH debit transaction or
otherwise is rejected for any reason.
3.19 Event of Default. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default specified in Sections 3.1, 3.2, 3.3,
3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.7, 3.8, 3.9, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.13, 3.14, 3.15, and/or 3.16, exercisable through the delivery of written
notice to the Borrower by such Holders (the “Default Notice”), , the Note shall become immediately due and payable
and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations hereunder, an amount equal to the greater
of (i) 150% times the sum of (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid
interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the date of payment (the “Mandatory Prepayment Date”) plus
any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof (the then outstanding principal amount of
this Note to the date of payment plus the amounts referred to in clauses (x) and, (y) shall collectively be known as the
“Default Sum”), and all other amounts payable hereunder shall immediately become due and payable, all without
demand, presentment or notice, all of which hereby are expressly waived, together with all costs, including, without
limitation, legal fees and expenses, of collection, and the Holder shall be entitled to exercise all other rights and
remedies available at law or in equity.
If the Borrower fails to pay the Default Amount within five (5) business days of written notice that such amount is due
and payable, then the Holder shall have the right at any time, so long as the Borrower remains in default (and so long
and to the extent that there are sufficient authorized shares), to require the Borrower, upon written notice, to
immediately issue, in lieu of the Default Amount, the number of shares of Common Stock of the Borrower equal to the
Default Amount divided by the Conversion Price then in effect.
ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS
4.1 Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of
any power, right or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any
such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power or privileges. All
rights and remedies existing hereunder are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise
available.
4.2 Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications required or
permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii)
deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth
below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other
communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or
delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or
number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be
received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal
business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by
express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever
shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:
If to the Borrower, to:
InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.
2151 Professional Drive, 2 nd Floor
Roseville, CA 95661
Attention: Matthew Moore / CEO
Email: matthew@innd.com
If to the Holder:

CAREBOURN CAPITAL, L.P.
8700 Black Oaks Lane N
Maple Grove, Minnesota 55311
Attn: Chip Rice, Managing Member
Email: info@carebourncapital.com
4.3 Amendments. This Note and any provision hereof may only be amended by an instrument in writing
signed by the Borrower and the Holder. The term “Note” and all reference thereto, as used throughout this instrument,
shall mean this instrument (and the other Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) as originally executed, or if
later amended or supplemented, then as so amended or supplemented.
4.4 Assignability. This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns, and
shall inure to be the benefit of the Holder and its successors and assigns. Each transferee of this Note must be an
“accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501(a) of the 1933 Act). Notwithstanding anything in this Note to the
contrary, this Note may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending
arrangement.
4.5 Cost of Collection . If default is made in the payment of this Note, the Borrower shall pay the Holder
hereof costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
4.6 Governing Law.
(a). Except in the case of the Mandatory Forum Selection provisions in Section 4.6(b) below,
which clause shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with Minnesota law, this Agreement and all other
Transaction Documents shall be delivered and accepted in and shall be deemed to be contracts made under and
governed by the internal laws of the State of Minnesota, and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of such State, without giving effect to the choice of law provisions of such state. This Agreement shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to principles of
conflicts of laws.
(b). Mandatory Forum Selection. Any action brought by either party against the other
concerning the transactions contemplated by this Note shall be brought only in the state courts or federal courts located
in the state of Minnesota, County of Hennepin. The parties to this Note hereby irrevocably waive any objection to
jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction
or venue or based upon forum non conveniens. The Borrower and Holder waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this
Note or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute
or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be
deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or
unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement.
Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any suit,
action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof
via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for
notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process
and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other
manner permitted by law.
4.7 Certain Amounts. Whenever pursuant to this Note the Borrower is required to pay an amount in
excess of the outstanding principal amount (or the portion thereof required to be paid at that time) plus accrued and
unpaid interest, the Borrower and the Holder agree that the actual damages to the Holder from the receipt of cash
payment on this Note may be difficult to determine and the amount to be so paid by the Borrower represents stipulated
damages and not a penalty and is intended to compensate the Holder in part for loss of the opportunity to convert this
Note and to earn a return from the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired upon conversion of this Note at a price in
excess of the price paid for such shares pursuant to this Note. The Borrower and the Holder hereby agree that such
amount of stipulated damages is not plainly disproportionate to the possible loss to the Holder from the receipt of a cash
payment without the opportunity to convert this Note into shares of Common Stock.
4 . 8 Usury Savings Clause. Notwithstanding any provision in this Note or the other Transaction
Documents to the contrary, the total liability for payments of interest and payments in the nature of interest, including,

without limitation, all charges, fees, exactions, or other sums which may at any time be deemed to be interest, shall not
exceed the limit imposed by the usury laws of the jurisdiction governing this Note or any other applicable law. In the
event the total liability of payments of interest and payments in the nature of interest, including, without limitation, all
charges, fees, exactions or other sums which may at any time be deemed to be interest, shall, for any reason
whatsoever, result in an effective rate of interest, which for any month or other interest payment period exceeds the
limit imposed by the usury laws of the jurisdiction governing this Note, all sums in excess of those lawfully collectible
as interest for the period in question shall, without further agreement or notice by, between, or to any party hereto, be
applied to the reduction of the outstanding principal balance due hereunder immediately upon receipt of such sums by
the Holder hereof, with the same force and effect as though the Company had specifically designated such excess sums
to be so applied to the reduction of the principal balance then outstanding, and the Holder hereof had agreed to accept
such sums as a penalty-free payment of principal; provided, however, that the Holder may, at any time and from time to
time, elect, by notice in writing to the Company, to waive, reduce, or limit the collection of any sums in excess of those
lawfully collectible as interest, rather than accept such sums as a prepayment of the principal balance then outstanding.
It is the intention of the parties that the Company does not intend or expect to pay, nor does the Holder intend or expect
to charge or collect any interest under this Note greater than the highest non-usurious rate of interest which may be
charged under applicable law.
4 . 9 Purchase Agreement. By its acceptance of this Note, each party agrees to be bound by the
applicable terms of the Purchase Agreement.
4.10 Notice of Corporate Events . Except as otherwise provided below, the Holder of this Note shall
have no rights as a Holder of Common Stock unless and only to the extent that it converts this Note into Common
Stock. The Borrower shall provide the Holder with prior notification of any meeting of the Borrower’s shareholders
(and copies of proxy materials and other information sent to shareholders). In the event of any taking by the Borrower
of a record of its shareholders for the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to receive payment of any
dividend or other distribution, any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire (including by way of merger,
consolidation, reclassification or recapitalization) any share of any class or any other securities or property, or to receive
any other right, or for the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to vote in connection with any proposed
sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower or any proposed liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the Borrower, the Borrower shall mail a notice to the Holder, at least twenty (20) days prior to the
record date specified therein (or thirty (30) days prior to the consummation of the transaction or event, whichever is
earlier), of the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, right or other
event, and a brief statement regarding the amount and character of such dividend, distribution, right or other event to
the extent known at such time. The Borrower shall make a public announcement of any event requiring notification to
the Holder hereunder substantially simultaneously with the notification to the Holder in accordance with the terms of
this Section 4.9.
4.11 Remedies. The Borrower acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Holder, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby. Accordingly,
the Borrower acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Note will be inadequate
and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Borrower of the provisions of this Note, that the Holder
shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties assessable
herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Note and to enforce
specifically the terms and provisions thereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or
other security being required.
4.12 Right of First Refusal . If at any time while this Note is outstanding, the Borrower has a bona fide
offer of capital or financing from any 3rd party, the Borrower must first offer such opportunity to the Holder to provide
such capital or financing to the Borrower on the same terms as each respective 3rd party’s terms. Should the Holder be
unwilling or unable to provide such capital or financing to the Borrower within 10 days from receipt of written notice
of the offer (the “Offer Notice”) from the Borrower, then the Borrower may obtain such capital or financing from that
respective 3rd party upon the same terms and conditions offered by the Borrower to the Holder, which transaction must
be completed within 30 days after the date of the Offer Notice. If the Borrower does not complete such transaction
within such time period, then the Borrower must again offer the capital or financing opportunity to the Holder on the
same terms, and the process detailed above shall be repeated.
4.13 ACH Payment Authorization . Borrower irrevocably authorizes Holder’s right to withdraw (through
an ACH debit or otherwise) $375.00 (the “Specific Daily Repayment Amount”) (subject to adjustment as provided
herein) from the Borrower’s bank account (initially, the bank account identified on Exhibit B attached hereto, but also

including any subsequent bank account of the Borrower if such account is changed) (the “Bank Account”), on each
business day, until this Note is satisfied in full. Borrower shall provide Holder with all required access codes to
effectuate any and all ACH debit transactions as provided for in this Note. Borrower understands that it is responsible
for ensuring that at least the Specific Daily Repayment Amount remains in its Bank Account on each business day until
this Note is satisfied in full, and that the Borrower shall be responsible for any charges incurred by the Holder resulting
from a rejected ACH attempt, insufficient funds in the Bank Account, and/or all related bank charges. Such charges
shall be immediately added to the outstanding balance of the Note. The Specific Daily Repayment Amount shall
automatically adjust to such prorated higher amount based upon the addition of charges to the outstanding balance of
Note, as well as to reflect any penalties incurred or events of defaults triggered under the terms of the Note (to be
calculated as follows: the total outstanding amount under the Note (including but not limited to all principal, interest,
charges, penalties, and additions due to any event of default) divided by the number of business days remaining prior to
the Maturity Date). Holder shall not be responsible for any overdrafts or rejected transactions that result from Holder’s
ACH debiting of the Specific Daily Repayment Amount as provided in this Note and the exhibits hereto. Holder may
debit the Specific Daily Repayment Amount each business day.
The Holder shall be permitted to aggregate the Specific Daily Repayment Amount of all convertible
promissory notes then issued by the Borrower to the Holder, and withdraw such aggregated amount from the
Borrower’s bank account, in the interest of reducing overall fees associated with the ACH debit transactions.
The Holder may, from time to time, provide a schedule to the Borrower via electronic mail (each a
“Schedule”) to MATTHEW@INND.COM.COM, showing the outstanding balance of the Note as well as all ACH
debits, conversion amounts, and/or all other adjustments as provided in the Note (the “Schedule”). If the Borrower does
not respond to the Holder, via electronic mail INFO@CAREBOURNCAPITAL.COM, stating that the respective
Schedule is accurate or disputing the amounts contained therein (with objective documentation unequivocally
supporting such dispute), within two (2) business days of receipt of the respective Schedule, then the Borrower shall be
deemed to have irrevocably approved the amounts contained in such respective Schedule.
4.14 Terms of Future Financings. So long as this Note is outstanding, upon any issuance by the
Borrower or any of its subsidiaries of any security with any term more favorable to the holder of such security or with a
term in favor of the holder of such security that was not similarly provided to the Holder in this Note, then the Borrower
shall notify the Holder of such additional or more favorable term and such term, at Holder’s option, shall become a part
of the transaction documents with the Holder. The types of terms contained in another security that may be more
favorable to the holder of such security include, but are not limited to, terms addressing conversion discounts,
prepayment rate, conversion lookback periods, interest rates, original issue discounts, stock sale price, private
placement price per share, and warrant coverage.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by its duly authorized
officer this April 8, 2018 .

InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.

By: _______________________________
Name: Matthew Moore
Title: CEO

EXHIBIT A: NOTICE OF CONVERSION
The undersigned hereby elects to convert $______________________ principal amount of the Note (defined
below) into that number of shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Note (“Common
Stock”) as set forth below, of InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Borrower”)
according to the conditions of the convertible note of the Borrower dated as of April 8, 2 018 (the “Note”), as of the
date written below. No fee will be charged to the Holder for any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any.
Box Checked as to applicable instructions:
☐

The Borrower shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of Conversion
to the account of the undersigned or its nominee with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent
Commission system (“DWAC Transfer”).
Name of DTC Prime Broker:
Account Number:

☐

The undersigned hereby requests that the Borrower issue a certificate or certificates for the number of shares
of Common Stock set forth below (which numbers are based on the Holder’s calculation attached hereto) in
the name(s) specified immediately below or, if additional space is necessary, on an attachment hereto:
CAREBOURN CAPITAL, L.P.
8700 Black Oaks Lane N
Maple Grove, Minnesota 55311
Attention: Certificate Delivery
612.889.4671
Date of conversion:
Applicable Conversion Price:
Number of shares of common stock to be issued
pursuant to conversion of the Notes:
Amount of Principal Balance due remaining
under the Note after this conversion:
CAREBOURN CAPITAL, L.P.
By : Carebourn Partners, LLC,
a Minnesota limited liability company,
its General Partner
By:_____________________________
Name: Chip Rice
Title: Managing Member

________________
$_______________
________________
________________

EXHIBIT B
(see attached)

AUTHORIZATION AGREEMENT FOR PREAUTHORIZED PAYMENTS
INNERSCOPE HEARING TECHNOLOGIES, INC. , a NEVADA corporation (the “Company”), hereby
irrevocably authorizes Carebourn Capital, L.P. (the “Holder”), to initiate debit and credit entries to its checking account
indicated below (the “Account”) and the depository named below (the “Depository”), to debit or credit the same to such
Account. The Company further authorizes the Holder to debit said Account for such total outstanding amount of the
convertible promissory note issued by the Company to Holder on April 8, 2018 (the “Note”), upon an Event of Default
(as defined in the Note). The Company hereby represents and certifies that the Account is used for commercial and/or
business purposes only.
Depository Name: Innerscope Advertising Agency
Name of Bank Account: Wells Fargo Bank
Bank Address: 2000 Douglas Blvd.
Roseville, CA., 95661
Routing/ABA Number: 121042882
Account Number: 3524834524
A copy of a voided check for the Account is attached hereto as Exhibit “C”. This authority is to remain in full
force and effect until the Holder confirms in a signed writing that the Note has been satisfied in full, and in a manner as
to afford the Depository a reasonable opportunity to act on it.

_______________________________
Signature

Name: Matthew Moore
Title: CEO

EXHIBIT C
(see attached)

EXHIBIT D
(see attached)
Representations and Warranties Regarding Anti-Money Laundering; OFAC.
1.1.

The Borrower should check the Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) website at http://www.treas.gov/ofac
before making the following representations.

1.2.

The Borrower represents that the cash amounts to be paid to Carebourn Capital, L.P. (the “Holder”) under the
convertible promissory note dated April 8, 2018 (the “Note”), by the Borrower, were not and are not directly or
indirectly derived from activities that contravene U.S. federal or state or international laws and regulations, including
anti-money laundering laws and regulations. U.S. federal regulations and executive orders administered by OFAC
prohibit, among other things, the engagement in transactions with, and the provision of services to, certain foreign
countries, territories, entities and individuals. The lists of OFAC prohibited countries, territories, persons and entities
can be found on the OFAC website at http://www.treas.gov/ofac. In addition, the programs administered by OFAC
(the “OFAC Programs”) prohibit dealing with individuals[1] or entities in certain countries regardless of whether such
individuals or entities appear on the OFAC lists.

1.3.

To the best of the Borrower’s knowledge, none of: (1) the Borrower; (2) any person controlling or controlled by the
Borrower; (3) if the Borrower is a privately-held entity, any person having a beneficial interest in the Borrower; or (4)
any person for whom the Borrower is acting as agent or nominee is a country, territory, individual or entity named on
an OFAC list, or a person or entity prohibited under the OFAC Programs.

1.4.

To the best of the Borrower’s knowledge, none of: (1) the Borrower; (2) any person controlling or controlled by the
Borrower; (3) if the Borrower is a privately-held entity, any person having a beneficial interest in the Borrower; or (4)
any person for whom the Borrower is acting as agent or nominee is a senior foreign political figure[2], or any
immediate family[3] member or close associate[4] of a senior foreign political figure, as such terms are defined in the
footnotes below.

1.5.

Borrower hereby represents and warrants that the cash payments under the Note are to be made on its own behalf or,
if applicable, and such cash payments do not directly or indirectly contravene United States federal, state, local or
international laws or regulations applicable to Borrower, including anti-money laundering laws.

1.6.

If the Borrower is affiliated with a non-U.S. banking institution (a “Foreign Bank”), or if the Borrower receives
deposits from, makes payments on behalf of, or handles other financial transactions related to a Foreign Bank, the
Borrower represents and warrants to the Holder that: (1) the Foreign Bank has a fixed address, other than solely an
electronic address, in a country in which the Foreign Bank is authorized to conduct banking activities; (2) the Foreign
Bank maintains operating records related to its banking activities; (3) the Foreign Bank is subject to inspection by the
banking authority that licensed the Foreign Bank to conduct banking activities; and (4) the Foreign Bank does not
provide banking services to any other Foreign Bank that does not have a physical presence in any country and that is
not a regulated affiliate.

1.7.

Upon the written request from the Holder, Borrower agrees to provide all information to the Holder to enable the
Holder to comply with all applicable anti-money laundering statutes, rules, regulations and policies. Borrower
understands and agrees that the Holder may release confidential information about Borrower and, if applicable, any of
its affiliates, directors, officers, trustees, beneficiaries and grantors related thereto, to any person if the Holder, in its
sole discretion, determines that such disclosure is necessary to comply with applicable statutes, rules, regulations and
policies.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this representation letter to be signed in its name by its duly
authorized officer this April 8, 2018 .

InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc.

By: _______________________________
Name: Matthew Moore
Title: CEO

[1] These

individuals include specially designated nationals, specially designated narcotics traffickers and other parties subject
to OFAC sanctions and embargo programs.

[2] A

“senior foreign political figure” is defined as a senior official in the executive, legislative, administrative, military or
judicial branches of a foreign government (whether elected or not), a senior official of a major foreign political party, or a
senior executive of a foreign government-owned corporation. In addition, a “senior foreign political figure” includes any
corporation, business or other entity that has been formed by, or for the benefit of, a senior foreign political figure.

[3] “Immediate

in-laws.

[4] A

family” of a senior foreign political figure typically includes the figure’s parents, siblings, spouse, children and

“close associate” of a senior foreign political figure is a person who is widely and publicly known to maintain an
unusually close relationship with the senior foreign political figure, and includes a person who is in a position to conduct
substantial domestic and international financial transactions on behalf of the senior foreign political figure.

Exhibit 31.1
Certifications
I, Matthew Moore, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 of Innerscope Hearing
Technologies, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15-d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: April 17, 2018

/s/ Matthew Moore
Matthew Moore
Principal Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
Certifications
I, Kimberly Moore, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 of Innerscope Hearing
Technologies, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15-d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: April 17, 2018

/s/ Kimberly Moore
Kimberly Moore
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer)

Exhibit 32.1
Section 1350 Certification
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of InnerScope Hearing Technologies, Inc. (the "Company") for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Report"), I, Matthew Moore, Principal
Executive Officer and I, Kimberly Moore, Principal Financial Officer, of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
Date: April 17, 2018

/s/ Matthew Moore
Matthew Moore,
Principal Executive Officer

Date: April 17, 2018

/s/ Kimberly Moore
Kimberly Moore,
Principal Financial Officer

This certification accompanies this Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by such Act, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certification will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference.

